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OUR
VISION

OUR
VALUES

OUR
PRIORITIES

Our vision is to be First in
Care, Research and Learning
to improve outcomes for our
community and Victorians.

Our values and behaviours
guide the way we work
together to achieve our vision.

We aim to achieve our
vision by focusing on six
strategic priorities.

Care

Caring

Care and outcomes

First in delivering safe and high
quality care

We treat everyone with kindness
and compassion

We deliver outstanding care
and outcomes

Research

Excellence

Patient and consumer
experience

First in evidence-based research
integrated into practice

We are committed to learning
and innovation

Learning

Integrity

First in developing our workforce
and community

We are open, honest and fair

Respect
We treat everyone with respect
and dignity at all times

Unity
We work together for the benefit
of all

We partner with and empower
our patients and consumers

Innovation and
transformation
We embrace innovative
thinking in everything we do

Workforce and culture
We enable our people to be
the best they can be

Collaboration
We maximise the potential
of our partnerships

Sustainability
We are recognised, respected
and sustainable health services

Front cover: Dr Paul Champion de Crespigny, Nephrologist
and Safety Champion and Erika Gardiner, Clinical Nurse
Specialist and Safety Champion
Back cover: Penny Herbert, Manager, Quality, NorthWestern
Mental Health and Safety Champion
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Chairman & Chief
Executive’s Report
In accordance with the Financial Management Act 1994, we are pleased to present
the Report of Operations for Melbourne Health for the year ending 30 June 2016.

Planning for the future

Mr Robert Doyle
Chairman

Dr Gareth Goodier
Chief Executive

At Melbourne Health, we have a proud tradition
of firsts since 1848 when the Royal Melbourne was
established as Victoria’s first public hospital. Through
our services, we continue to enhance our legacy of
excellence in caring for our community. Our Strategic
Plan 2015–2020 builds on the successes of our past
and is integral to our commitment to leading and
transforming the way we deliver high quality care.
This year we were proud to launch Transforming Health
– The Melbourne Health Strategic Plan 2015–2020,
which sets out our priorities for the next five years as
we continue to lay the foundation for a sustainable
health service for the future.
The Strategic Plan was developed after an extensive
consultation program with our staff, patients,
consumers, carers and partners. They told us what
was important to them and what was expected of us
as an organisation. Their feedback was vital in creating
our six strategic priorities that will help us achieve our
bold and ambitious vision to be First in Care, Research
and Learning.

Transforming our culture
– an ongoing journey
A vision is underpinned by values. Our values help
define our culture – they guide how we behave and
how we will achieve our goals. Our staff told us
that our values are important to them but that as an
organisation we need to live our values every day and
embed them in everything we do. They told us that
we need to be more accountable and we need to always
put safety first.
This important feedback helped us develop our
Because We Care Cultural Transformation Program,
a long term commitment to creating a safer and more
positive culture. Implemented in partnership with the
Cognitive Institute’s Safety and Reliability Improvement
Program, our culture change aims to make Melbourne
Health the best place to work and the best place to
be treated and cared for – somewhere our staff would
recommend to their family and friends.
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Safety is a major focus for this program. We want all
of our staff to feel empowered to speak up when they
have concerns about safety, for our patients, consumers
and each other. As part of our Safety Culture Program,
our Speaking Up for Safety training will help us create
a culture of feedback by providing our staff with a
structure and language for raising concerns about
safety. By the end of this year we had trained over 1600
staff in how to speak up for safety. The weCare system
allows our staff to nominate colleagues for awards but
also submit feedback about behaviours that undermine
a safety culture and our values. These initiatives will
help drive improvements in key areas that are crucial
to transforming our culture, such as anti-bullying,
leadership and communication.
Our commitment to this program is unwavering.
We are conducting robust research into the
implementation of the Safety Culture Program
to gain an understanding of its effectiveness and
its impact on our culture so that we can continue
to grow and improve as an organisation.

Excelling at Accreditation
We take pride in our ability to provide high quality,
safe care and services to our patients, consumers
and their families. Much of the focus for 2015 was
on Accreditation, with surveyors assessing Melbourne
Health against the 15 EQuIPNational and Mental
Health Standards. We are pleased to advise that
we received full Accreditation, receiving 27 Met
with Merits. The surveyors were impressed with
the excellent work being undertaken in all areas
of The Royal Melbourne Hospital (RMH) and
NorthWestern Mental Health (NWMH) – including
clinical practice, access and safety, consumer focus,
and corporate and strategic functions. We were
commended specifically for our many continuous
improvement projects and excellence in clinical care,
training, support, and research. The Australian Aged
Care Quality Agency also undertook a re‑accreditation
site audit of NWMH aged care facilities, with all
facilities meeting the expected outcomes under
the aged care standards. These are wonderful
accomplishments that could not have been achieved
without the hard work and dedication of our staff.

Undertaking major works
The last 12 months saw many significant milestones
for the north-side redevelopment of the RMH,
part of the revolutionary Victorian Comprehensive
Cancer Centre (VCCC) Project. Through innovation
and collaboration, the VCCC aims to drive the
next generation of improvements in the prevention,
detection and treatment of cancer.
In July, a new intraoperative MRI was delicately lifted
into place, enabling surgeons to image a patient via an
MRI scanner while a patient is undergoing surgery.
Also part of the north-side redevelopment, we
celebrated the opening of our new Central Sterile
Supply Department which provides services to the
RMH and Peter Mac and we began using automated
TUG robots to help our staff with the transport of
surgical instruments.
In April and May, patients from our cancer wards
and Intensive Care Unit (ICU) moved into two brand
new spaces; a 32-bed Haematology and Bone Marrow
Transplant ward and a 42-bed capacity ICU. With
improved patient privacy and infection control these
state-of-the-art wards provide care to some of our
sickest patients.
The VCCC Project culminated in the historic move of
Peter Mac to the brand new facility in late June 2016,
marking the beginning of a new era in the treatment
of cancer in the Melbourne Biomedical Precinct.
Melbourne Health is excited to be a part of the
powerful VCCC alliance which includes ten leading
Melbourne-based institutions, all working together
in the fight against cancer. The partnership includes
The Peter MacCallum Cancer Centre, Melbourne
Health, The University of Melbourne, The Walter and
Eliza Hall Institute of Medical Research, The Royal
Women’s Hospital, The Royal Children’s Hospital,
Western Health, St Vincent’s Hospital Melbourne and
Austin Health.
At the Royal Park Campus, we opened a new
movement lab that uses 3D motion capture
technology, allowing doctors to detect human
movement that is not visible to the naked eye, helping
them develop targeted treatments to help patients
improve their walking and balance.

92,600+

INPATIENT SERVICES WERE PROVIDED ACROSS OUR
ACUTE, SUB-ACUTE, MENTAL HEALTH AND RESIDENTIAL
CARE FACILITIES THIS YEAR, AN INCREASE OF MORE
THAN 5,700 COMPARED TO LAST YEAR

68,500+

PEOPLE PROVIDED WITH URGENT CARE IN OUR BUSY
EMERGENCY DEPARTMENT

This year, the difficult decision was made to close
Westside Lodge, one of our aged mental health
residential care service. We are working with residents
from these facilities to find suitable alternative
accommodation based on care needs. Melbourne Health
retains a significant program in this area continuing to
provide 75 generic aged residential beds and 62 specialist
mental health aged persons residential beds.
We also undertook a review of our NWMH
Community Care Units to identify improvements
in care and facilities. This involved an extensive
consultation process with our consumers, carers,
families, staff and community providers, who had
the opportunity to express their feedback and suggest
potential improvements. A program of work is
underway across 2016 to address recommendations
and enhance the experience of residents.
In the 2016/17 Victorian state budget $60 million
was allocated to redevelop ageing facilities at Orygen,
The National Centre of Excellence in Youth Mental
Health, and Orygen Youth Health Clinical Program.
Planning is well underway.
In February 2016 we opened a six-bed Bahavioural
Assessment Unit within our Emergency Department
to care for patients with psychosocial problems,
toxicological and mental health issues.

A new dialysis service was officially opened at
Essendon Fields, with views overlooking the Essendon
Airport runway. The service includes 15 dialysis
stations and an outpatient service, providing our
patients in the outer north western corridor with
access to modern facilities right on their doorstep.
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178,000+
5,300+

PEOPLE ATTENDED OUTPATIENT APPOINTMENTS THIS YEAR

ADMISSIONS ACROSS 219 ACUTE ADULT, YOUTH
AND AGED INPATIENT MENTAL HEALTH BEDS

Improving care and outcomes
Safety is the foundation of everything we do at
Melbourne Health.
In 2015/16 we launched two new initiatives to
strengthen partnerships with our patients, carers
and the community to deliver the best care. If You’re
Worried, We’re Worried encourages family members
and carers to work together with the care team to
better communicate queries and concerns, and a
new brochure and video called What Matters to You,
Matters to Us inspires patients to be involved in their
own safety during their hospital stay.
In November 2015, our new Enterprise Content
Management system went live. This marked a
significant step towards a future electronic medical
record and helps us to provide safer care for our
patients and improved access to medical records.
To help us build a standardised best-practice approach
to nursing and improve opportunities in nursing
education, we reviewed Nursing Assessment and Care
Planning (NACP). NACP ensures all nurses have the
confidence, skills and tools to assess and plan safe,
appropriate and responsive care for every patient.
We also changed our medical model which has helped
transform how patients are cared for and managed
within the hospital, striving to have the “Right Patient
in the Right Ward – First Time Every Time”.
In early 2016 we established a new reward and
recognition program called Recognising Team
Excellence to acknowledge great teamwork on the
wards, leading to improved patient outcomes and safe,
high quality care.
With our world renowned experts in stroke treatment,
the RMH was officially appointed the first state-wide
service to pioneer the roll out of a new breakthrough
treatment for stroke care in Victoria; Endovascular
Clot Retrieval, which is recognised as the most
effective way to treat acute ischemic stroke patients.
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In mental health, we commenced a significant
program of work to address the growing problem of
aggression against staff in our acute mental health
units. This includes improved support to staff, a review
and increase in staff training and a range of capital
and infrastructure changes. Staff safety is always
paramount and continues to be an ongoing focus
throughout 2016.

Embracing innovation
Melbourne Health continues to attract the best
and brightest. In January 2016 we welcomed a new
generation of staff, with 80 medical interns and 107
graduate nurses joining the team with enthusiasm and
fresh perspectives.
It was an extraordinary year in research breakthroughs
at Melbourne Health. In a truly collaborative effort,
medical researchers from the RMH, the University
of Melbourne and The Florey Institute of Neuroscience
and Mental Health received world-wide recognition
for creating a new minimally invasive brain-machine
interface – a stentrode – which gives people with spinal
cord injuries new hope to walk again with the power
of thought.
Working with the Walter and Eliza Hall Institute,
patients from the RMH and Peter Mac took part in
the clinical trial of an anti-cancer drug which proved
to be effective in killing cancer cells in people with
advanced forms of chronic lymphocytic leukaemia.
In the area of neurology, scientists at the RMH
developed an Australian-first software that detects
minute changes in the brain in patients with
Multiple Sclerosis, allowing doctors to determine
whether a treatment is working or not long before
symptoms continue.
In late 2015, more than $35 million in grant funding
from the National Health and Medical Research
Council (NHMRC) was allocated to medical
research involving Chief Investigators from across
various specialities at Melbourne Health.
Also from the NHMRC, a $13.7 million grant was
dedicated to the fight against stroke. Saving brain
and changing practice in stroke is Australia’s only
comprehensive stroke research program that looks
at saving brain after stroke. The research strives to
test stroke treatments in a pre-hospital setting using
Australia’s first mobile CT scanner. Led by Professor
Stephen Davis, Director of the Melbourne Brain
Centre and Neurology at the RMH, this funding will
have a major impact on the diagnosis and treatment of
stroke worldwide and is a testament to the outstanding
stroke specialists and medical researchers in Australia.

Celebrating excellence
Our staff continue to go above and beyond to
achieve excellence. In 2015/16, a number of staff were
recognised for their dedication and commitment to
patient care.
In the 2016 Australia Day Honours, four of
our senior staff were honoured for their contributions
to medicine.
• Professor Kate Leslie AO was awarded an Officer
of the Order of Australia for distinguished service
to medicine in the field of anaesthesia and pain
management as a clinician and researcher, to higher
education, and to professional medical groups.
• Professor Finlay Macrae AO was also
awarded an Officer of the Order of Australia
for distinguished service to medicine in the field
of gastroenterology and genomic disorders as a
clinician and academic, and to human health
through the Human Variome Project.
• Associate Professor Peter Greenberg OAM,
was recognised for his service to medicine, and
to population health with a Medal of the Order
of Australia.
• M
 r John Cunningham OAM, also received a Medal
of the Order of Australia for service to medicine, and
to the promotion of immunisation.
In the Queen’s Birthday Honours, Dr Richard Travers
OAM, former Rheumatologist at Melbourne Health
and currently an Honorary Associate, was awarded
an Order of Australia Medal for service to medical
history, to medicine, and to the community. RMH
Neurologist Professor John King, AM, received a
Member of the Order of Australia for significant
service to medicine as a neurologist, to medical
education, to Multiple Sclerosis research, and to
professional organisations.
Professor Frank Vajda received the Ambassador for
Epilepsy Award by the International League Against
Epilepsy and the International Bureau for Epilepsy for
his service to the epilepsy community, and Professor
Jeff Szer was appointed President of the Worldwide
Network for Blood and Marrow Transplantation, the
first time an Australian has held the position.
The Royal Australasian College of Surgeons honoured
Professor James Tatoulis with the Award for Excellence
in Surgery, for obtaining the highest level of surgical
achievement by world standards and for the highest
standards of surgical ethics, as well as his leadership,
innovation and advancement in the field.
In mental health, three of Orygen’s leading researchers,
Professor Patrick McGorry, Professor Michael Berk,
and Associate Professor Barnaby Nelson, were
recognised by the Brain and Behaviour Foundation for
their outstanding work in the field, marking the first
time that the Foundation has granted these prestigious
awards to researchers working in Australia.

Professor Patrick McGorry AO, Executive Director
of Orygen and Professor Geoffrey Lindeman, medical
oncologist and head of RMH Familial Cancer Centre,
were among 21 Fellows elected in the Australian
Academy of Science, one of the highest honours an
Australian scientist can receive.
An up and coming leader in the field of neurosurgery,
trainee Dr Ruth Mitchell, was recognised for
her outstanding leadership, advocacy, and
accomplishments, and for her passion for addressing
bullying and sexual harassment in the medical
profession, being awarded the AMA’s Doctor in
Training of the Year Award.
At the annual Celebrating Research Gala dinner, three
research legends were inducted into the Research Hall
of Fame – Sir Ian Jeffreys Wood MBE, Professor G.
Ian Taylor AO and Professor Leonard C. Harrison.
We also recognised the great work of consultant
neuropsychiatrist Associate Professor Mark Walterfang
who was awarded the prestigious $50,000 RMH
Research Medal, funded by the RMH Foundation.
After three decades of exceptional research and clinical
practice, Professor Peter Colman, Director of Diabetes
and Endocrinology, was the 2015 recipient of the
Diabetes Australia – Outstanding Achievement Award
for Diabetes Research.
Associate Professor Sharon van Doornum was
awarded the Lorin Prentice Memorial Award for
2015 by Arthritis and Osteoporosis Victoria for her
leadership in translational research in Rheumatoid
Arthritis and pregnancy.
Professor Sharon Lewin, Director of the Peter Doherty
Institute for Infection and Immunity, received
Research Australia’s prestigious Peter Wills Medal for
her contribution to health and medical research.
Further recognition also went to the landmark stroke
study EXTEND-IA, which received gold at the 2015
Victorian Public Healthcare Awards and was named
a finalist in the inaugural Trial of the Year Award 2016
by the Australian Clinical Trials Alliance.
The recognition went beyond the clinical area with
Tanya Jardine, Senior Manager Revenue Services,
being awarded the Australia Health Services Financial
Management Association Finance Innovator of the Year
Award for demonstrating innovation in health finance
and driving change to improve patient service delivery.
Our volunteers also play an important role in the
patient experience, providing warmth and friendship
to patients and their family and friends. In the 2016
Minister for Health Volunteer Awards, Volunteers
Val and Peter Simpson were recognised for their
contribution to a person-centred model of care, and
Ben Sutu and Julia Gorton were also acknowledged
for leading the Medical Students for Music and
Wellbeing @RMH program.
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Board and Executive
Acknowledgements
On behalf of the Melbourne Health Board and
Executive, we would like to thank and acknowledge
Professor Stephen Smith whose tenure on the Board
came to an end in September 2015. In October we
then welcomed Professor Mark Hargreaves, Dean,
Faculty of Medicine, Dentistry and Health Sciences
at the University of Melbourne, to the board as an
observer until Professor Shitij Kapur commences as
Dean in October 2016.

We also said farewell to Sharon McGowan, Executive
Director Communications and Community Relations
after five years, and to Dr David Alcorn who finished
in the role of Executive Director, The Royal Melbourne
Hospital. To this role we welcomed Professor Daryl
Williams in an interim capacity.
It has been another extraordinary year for Melbourne
Health and we would like to sincerely thank all of our
staff and volunteers for their hard work, commitment
and dedication to serving our community and
improving patient care and experience.

In 2015/16 we also said farewell to several members
of the Executive team after many years of service to
Melbourne Health and we would like to thank them
for their contribution to the organisation.
In November after eight years at Melbourne Health,
Christine Fitzherbert retired from the position
of Executive Director, Human Resources and
Organisational Development and we welcomed
Bridgid Connors in the role of Executive Director
People and Culture.
Dr Peter Bradford finished as Executive Director
Clinical Governance and Medical Services in late
December after seven years and Dr Cate Kelly was
appointed to this role.
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Mr Robert Doyle
Chairman

Dr Gareth Goodier
Chief Executive

Report of Operations
Board of Directors
Melbourne Health was established in July 2000
under the Health Services Act 1988 (Victoria).
The Board comprises nine independent non-executive
directors. The Directors are elected for a term of up to
three years, and may be re-elected to serve for up to
nine years.
The Board is accountable to the Minister for Health.
Its role is to exercise governance in the achievement
of Melbourne Health’s objectives as detailed in the
Melbourne Health Strategic Plan 2015–2020 and
Melbourne Health Annual Business Plan. This
necessarily includes all of the following:
• Setting the strategic direction and priorities for
Melbourne Health and monitoring compliance
• Approving financial and business, risk and audit
plans, and budgets to ensure the accountable and
efficient provision of health services by Melbourne
Health and its long-term financial viability
• The establishment and maintenance of effective
systems to ensure the health services provided
meet the needs of the communities served by
Melbourne Health
• Monitoring the performance of the Chief Executive
each financial year, against agreed strategic plans
• Through the Chief Executive, monitoring the
effectiveness of arrangements with other relevant
agencies and service providers to enable effective
and efficient health service delivery and continuity
of care
• Advising the Minister for Health and the Secretary
of the Department on significant Board decisions
and issues of public concern, which may affect
Melbourne Health
• Facilitating health research and education
• Adopting a code of conduct for staff of
Melbourne Health
• Providing appropriate training for Board
directors and embedding regular Board
performance evaluation.

The Directors for 2015/16 were:
Mr Robert Doyle – Chairman
Mr Doyle was appointed to the Melbourne Health
Board in July 2007.
Robert Doyle was elected in 2008 and is the
serving Lord Mayor of Melbourne. Robert Doyle
is a Principal at The Nous Group, a management
consultancy business based in Melbourne, and, since
2007, has been Chairman of Melbourne Health.
Robert is President of the Lord Mayor’s Charitable
Foundation, Chairman of the Royal Melbourne
Hospital Foundation and a Trustee of the Shrine
of Remembrance. Robert is also an Ambassador
for Odyssey House, a drug and alcohol abuse
rehabilitation facility, an Ambassador for SecondBite,
a not-for profit organisation committed to making a
positive difference by distributing fresh food to the
disadvantaged and homeless, an ex officio member
of Cancer Council Victoria and an Ambassador for
Field of Women, a charity raising awareness of breast
cancer, an Ambassador for the White Ribbon Day
Foundation, an international day for the elimination
of violence against women, an Ambassador for the
Juvenile Diabetes Research Foundation, the Honorary
President of the Melbourne Region of the Scout
Association and a Board member of the Plumbing
Industry Climate Action Centre (PICAC) Ltd. In 2010
Robert was made a Fellow of Monash University.
A Member of Victoria’s Parliament for 14 years,
Robert was Leader of the Opposition and Leader
of the Liberal Party for four years. He has also been
Shadow Minister for Health and, in government,
Parliamentary Secretary for Health.

In December 2010, the Board endorsed the Melbourne
Health Corporate Governance Framework, which
provides an outline of the key elements of corporate
governance structures at Melbourne Health.
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Mr Bill Mountford
Mr Mountford was appointed to the Melbourne Health
Board in July 2007.

Mr Des Pearson AO
Mr Pearson was appointed to the Melbourne Health
Board in July 2013.

Mr Mountford is the Managing Director of Newly
PL an online start up business and a Director
of Insight Economics Pty Ltd, a public policy
consultancy. Previously, Mr Mountford was a parttime Commissioner with the Victorian Competition
and Efficiency Commission and served as CEO of
the Victorian WorkCover Authority. Prior to that
he was a Partner of Arthur Anderson, Director of
Australian Consulting Partners, Executive Director of
Australian Manufacturing Council and a consultant
for the Boston Consulting Group. He holds a Master
of Philosophy in Economics, a Bachelor of Economics
and has attended the Advanced Management Program
at Harvard Business School.

Mr Pearson is a non-executive Director and advisor
on public sector governance, accountability and
performance reporting. Previously he served as
Auditor-General of Victoria and Western Australia
for over 21 years. Prior to that he held several executive
positions in financial management and corporate
support roles across Commonwealth, State and
Territory jurisdictions.

Mr Michael Gorton AM
Mr Gorton was appointed to the Melbourne Health
Board in July 2008.
Michael Gorton AM is a Partner in a Melbourne law
firm, Russell Kennedy Solicitors. He is also Chair
of the Agency Management Committee of AHPRA
and a Board member of the Australasian College for
Emergency Medicine and Melbourne Primary Care
Network. He has had government roles, including
Chair, VEOHRC; President of the Health Services
Review Council; Chair of the Biotechnology Ethics
Advisory Committee and Chair of the Infertility
Treatment Authority. He has also been a member
of the Advisory Board of the Monash Institute for
Medical Research; National President of Greening
Australia and inaugural Co-Chair of Reconciliation
Victoria Inc. Michael advises many of the Australasian
medical colleges, and for his work was awarded
Honorary Fellowships with Royal Australasian College
of Surgeons and Australian & New Zealand College
of Anaesthetists and was made a Member in the Order
of Australia in 2004 for his community contribution.
Mrs Jane Bell
Mrs Bell was appointed to the Melbourne Health
Board in July 2009.
Mrs Bell is a banking and finance lawyer with
more than 20 years’ experience in leading law firms,
financial services and corporate treasury operations
in Melbourne, London, Toronto, San Francisco and
Brisbane. Mrs Bell currently serves as a Director of
UCA Funds Management Limited and its subsidiaries
and as a Director of Hudson Institute of Medical
Research. Mrs Bell holds a Bachelor of Laws,
Bachelor of Economics and a Master of Laws
(Lon) and is a Fellow of the Australian Institute
of Company Directors.
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Mr David Cartwright
David Cartwright was appointed to the Melbourne
Health Board in December 2013.
Mr Cartwright is a Director of Superpartners and a
Global Partner of ICG an international provider of
management consulting and project execution services.
Previously Mr Cartwright served as COO of the ANZ
Banking Group, CEO of iPSL (one of the largest UK
outsourcing businesses) and held a number of senior
domestic and international executive roles within
Barclays PLC. He holds an MA/BA in Natural Science
(Chemistry) from Oxford, is a Sloan Fellow of London
Business School, a GAICD and an ACIB (UK).
Professor Stephen Smith
Professor Smith was appointed to the Melbourne Health
Board in July 2014 and resigned in September 2015.
Professor Stephen K Smith was the Dean, Faculty
of Medicine Dentistry and Health Sciences at the
University of Melbourne and Chair of the Melbourne
Academic Centre for Health.
Prior to taking up the position of Dean, Professor
Smith was Vice President (Research) at the Nanyang
Technological University which led the review of
a Singapore Stratified Medicine effort focused on
Diabetes and Oncology.
A gynaecologist by training, he has published over
230 papers on reproductive medicine and cancer.
He was awarded his Doctor of Science in 2001
for his work in Cambridge on the complex gene
pathways that regulate the growth of blood vessels
in reproductive tissue.
Prof Smith led the formation of the UK’s first
Academic Health Science Centre and its integration
with Imperial College London (ICL). He was Principal
of the Faculty of Medicine at ICL and had been Chief
Executive of Imperial College Healthcare National
Health Service Trust since its inception, the largest
such trust in the United Kingdom.

Ms Penelope Hutchinson
Ms Hutchinson was appointed to the Melbourne Health
Board in November 2015.
Penny’s career began in chartered accountancy,
in England, before she migrated to Australia in 1983.
Penny was a Deputy Secretary in the Department
of Premier and Cabinet from 2000–15, primarily
as Director Arts Victoria, also acting in other
Deputy Secretary roles and serving on secondment
to the Department of Environment, Land, Water
and Planning.
At BDO, Penny led the consulting division which
focused on a core client base across many portfolios
in the Victorian Public Sector – including health,
transport, treasury, environment and community
services. Before that, she was a senior policy officer
at the Department of Management and Budget and
the National Companies and Securities Commission.
Penny has served on various boards, including
Medibank Private, Swanston Trams, Federal Airports
Corporation, Victorian Rehabilitation Services Pty
Ltd, the Victorian Council of Social Service, the
Victorian College of the Arts and Monash University.
From 2005–11 Penny was a member of the Regional
Council of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
and was Chair in 2009.
Penny has a degree in German and Music from the
University of London. She has a diploma of music
performance in the clarinet, a Masters in Public Policy
at the University of Melbourne, is a fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia and
a graduate of the Institute of Company Directors.

Board Committees
The Board has established a number of sub-committees
and advisory committees, which are also attended
by members of the Melbourne Health Executive.
The Chairman is an ex officio of each committee.
Community Advisory Committee
Board membership: Mrs Jane Bell (Chair) and
members of the community in which Melbourne
Health operates.
Primary Care and Population Health
Advisory Committee
Board membership: Mr David Cartwright (Chair),
Ms Penny Hutchinson
Audit Committee
Board membership: Mr Des Pearson (Chair),
Ms Jane Bell, Ms Angela Jackson
Finance Committee
Board membership: Mr Bill Mountford (Chair),
Mr Michael Gorton AM, Mr David Cartwright
Foundation Committee
Board membership: Mr Robert Doyle (Chair)
Clinical Governance and Improvement
Committee (Quality Committee)
Board membership: Mr Michael Gorton AM (Chair),
Mr Bill Mountford, Ms Angela Jackson,
Mr Des Pearson
Remuneration Committee
Board membership: Mr Robert Doyle (Chair),
Mrs Jane Bell, Mr Des Pearson

Ms Angela Jackson
Ms Jackson was appointed to the Melbourne Health
Board in September 2015.
Angela is an experienced public sector economist
with 15 years of experience, including as an economic
adviser in the Department of Prime Minister and
Cabinet and Deputy Chief of Staff to Australia’s
Finance Minister. In 2011, Angela completed her
Masters in International Health Policy (Health
Economics) with Distinction from the London
School of Economics and Political Science.
Angela is currently undertaking a PhD in health
economics at the Monash University Centre for
Health Economics, alongside looking after her two
young children.
More information about Melbourne Health’s Strategic
Plan, Board responsibilities and Director’s experience can
be found at www.thermh.org.au
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Melbourne Health at a Glance
We are a leading public health service in Victoria with
a history of providing the best possible care for our
patients and consumers. We are committed to applying
evidence based research to drive improvements in
clinical outcomes and healthcare experience. With a
focus on teaching and education, we encourage lifelong
learning to enable our people to realise their potential.
Serving a population base of over 1 million, our
world-class reputation had beginnings in The Royal
Melbourne Hospital – Victoria’s first public hospital
– established in 1848 to answer the need for public
health services for a rapidly growing town. For 168
years, we have provided a comprehensive range of
acute, sub-acute and community public health services
to our local community within Melbourne’s west and
north, and as well as regional and rural Victorians
and interstate patients and consumers.

NorthWestern Mental Health
Our mental health service
As the largest provider of mental health services in
Victoria, NorthWestern Mental Health works in
partnership with consumers and carers to provide a
comprehensive suite of general and specialist services
to youth, adult and aged people within the
community, residential and health services.
Services are delivered through six programs spanning
30 sites across the northern and western suburbs
of Melbourne reaching communities based in
Broadmeadows to the north, Preston to the east and
Sunshine to the west.
It also delivers a number of state-wide services
including the neuropsychiatry service and the eating
disorders service.
The Doherty Institute for Infection and Immunity
Our infection and immunity service
The Doherty Institute, our partnership with the
University of Melbourne, aims to be a world-class
institute that combines research into infectious disease
and immunity with teaching excellence, reference
laboratory diagnostic services, epidemiology and clinical
services. Our services at The Doherty Institute include:
• The Victorian Infectious Diseases
Reference Laboratory
• V ICNISS Healthcare Associated Infection
Surveillance System
• The Victorian Infectious Diseases Service
• The Victorian Tuberculosis Program
• National Centre for Antimicrobial Stewardship
• World Health Organisation Collaborating Centre
for Reference and Research on Influenza
• World Health Organisation Collaborating Centre
for Viral Hepatitis

Today we provide care through three key services:
The Royal Melbourne Hospital
Our acute and sub-acute academic health service
As one of the largest hospitals in Victoria, The
Royal Melbourne Hospital in Parkville provides a
comprehensive range of health services across two
campuses.
Our City campus provides general and specialist
medical and surgical acute services. Sub-acute services,
including rehabilitation and aged care, outpatient and
community programs are provided from our Royal
Park campus.
The Royal Melbourne Hospital plays a key role
within the broader Victorian health sector as a major
Victorian referral service for specialist and complex
care, and is a designated state-wide provider for
services including adult trauma. It also contains
centres of excellence for tertiary services in several
key specialties including neurosciences, nephrology,
oncology, cardiology and genomics.
MELBOURNE HEALTH CATCHMENTS & SERVICES

WHITTLESEA

Legend
HUME

NWMH (Adult Area Mental Health Service)

NILLUMBIK

NWMH (Aged Persons’ Mental Health Service)
NWMH (Youth Mental Health Service)

MORELAND

MELTON

NWMH – All programs NWMH

DAREBIN

MOONEE VALLEY BRIMBANK

Catchment

H The Royal Melbourne Hospital
RMH Primary Catchment
RMH Secondary Catchment
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BANYULE

H
MARIBYRNONG
WYNDHAM

HOBSONS BAY

MELBOURNE

Melbourne Health organisation structure as at 30 June 2016
Melbourne Health Board

Chief of Staff, Samantha Plumb**
Director, Strategy & Planning, Kelly Skene

Chief Executive, Dr Gareth Goodier
Director, Transformation & Quality Planning, Fiona Watson
Director, Public Affairs, Nicky Webster~
Executive Director
The Royal Melbourne Hospital
Prof Daryl Williams^^

Executive Director
Clinical Governance &
Medical Services
Dr Cate Kelly^^^

• Access
• Cardiovascular, Renal &
Endocrine Services
• Critical Care & Investigative
Services

• Information & Performance
• Medicine & Community Care
• Neurosciences, Cancer &
Infectious Medicine

• Outpatients
• Surgery, Perioperative, Trauma
& Surgical Oncology Services

• Collaborative Framework
• Infection Prevention &
Surveillance Service
• Medical Education

• Medical Governance
• Medicolegal
• Staff Clinic

• Transformation & Quality
• VICNISS
• VIDRL

• Health Sciences Library
• Information Technology
• Information Project
Management

• Infrastructure Services
• Legal Counsel
• Retail

• O
 ccupational Health
& Wellbeing
• Organisational Development

• P
 eople Management
& Operation
• Workforce Planning
& Recruitment

• Nurse Bank
• Nurse Education
• Nursing Workforce Unit

• A ssociate Professor
Emergency Nursing
• Professional Nursing Practice

Executive Director
• Business Development
Corporate & Information Services • Capital Works
Mrs Sally Campbell
• Commercial Operations*
• Facilities Management
Executive Director
People & Culture~~
Ms Bridgid Connors***

Executive Director
Victorian Comprehensive
Cancer Centre

• Cultural Transformation
Program
• Employee Relations
• Employee Services &
Remuneration
• V
 ictorian Comprehensive
Cancer Centre

Ms Di Gill
Executive Director
Nursing Services & Allied Health
A/Prof Denise Heinjus
Executive Director
Finance & Logistics
Mr George Kapitelli
Executive Director
NorthWestern Mental Health
A/Prof Ruth Vine
Executive Director Research
Prof Ingrid Winship

• Allied Health
• Clinical Policies & Procedures
• Emergency Management
Planning

• Finance Services*
• F
 inancial Performance
& Analysis
• Financial Systems*
• Financial Business Management • Procurement
• Financial Reporting & Auditing

• Contract Management
• Supply & Logistics
• The Royal Melbourne Hospital
Foundation~

• A
 ged Persons’ Mental
Health Program
• Inner West AMHS^

• Mid West AMHS
• Northern AMHS

• North West AMHS
• Orygen Youth Health

• Human Research
Ethics Committee
• Research Advisory Council

• Research Funding
• Research Governance

• Research Grants
• Research Staff

* Shared resource ^ Area Mental Health Service ** From 18 January 2016 ^^ From 25 January 2016 ^^^From 9 February 2016 *** From 1 February 2016
~ From June 2016 ~~ Formerly Human Resources and Organisational Development
Note: Community Engagement and the Volunteer Service moved to Transformation and Quality in June 2016
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Our Clinical Services
Allied Health
Aboriginal Health Services
Audiology
Clinical Nutrition
Facial Prosthetics
Music Therapy
Occupational Therapy
Pastoral Care
Physiotherapy & Exercise Physiology
Podiatry
Prosthetics & Orthotics
Psychology
Social Work
Speech Pathology
Transcultural & Interpreting Services

Cardiovascular, Renal
& Endocrine Services
Bone Mineral Service
Cardiac Surgery
Cardiology
Diabetes
Diabetes Foot Service
Dialysis
Endocrinology
Metabolic Service
Nephrology
Renal Surgery
Renal Transplant
Thoracic Surgery
Vascular Surgery

Critical Care & Investigative Services
Breastscreen
Emergency
Imaging
Intensive Care Unit
Medical Illustration
Pathology
Pharmacy
Organ Donation

Medicine & Community Care
Acute Medical Unit
Addiction Medicine
Aged Care Assessment Service
Case Management
Community Partnerships Unit
Department of Aged Care
Gardenview House
General Medicine
Hospital Admission Risk Program
Hospital In The Home
In Reach
Respiratory Medicine & Sleep Disorders
Sub Acute Ambulatory Care Service
Transition Care Program

12

Melbourne Health Annual Report 2015/16

Neurosciences, Cancer
& Infectious Medicine
Bone Marrow Transplant
Dermatology
Familial Cancer Centre/Genetic Medicine
Haematology
Immunology
Medical Oncology
Neurology
Neurosurgery
Ophthalmology
Palliative Care
Rehabilitation
Rheumatology
Victorian Infectious Diseases Service

NorthWestern Mental Health
Assessment & Treatment Planning – Aged
Centre of Excellence in Eating Disorders
Continuing Care Teams – Youth
Eating Disorders – Inpatients, Outpatients,
Statewide Training and Education
Inpatient Treatment – Youth, Adult and Aged
Integrated Community Teams – Adult
Mental Health Triage Service
Neuropsychiatry – Inpatients & Outpatients
Prevention and Recovery Care (PARC)
Services – Adult
Rehabilitation, Community Care Units,
Secure Extended Care – Adult
Residential Care – Adult & Aged
Substance Use & Mental Health Treatment
Youth Access Teams – Youth

Surgery, Perioperative, Trauma
& Surgical Oncology
Anaesthetics
Breast Service
Colorectal Medicine
Ear, Nose & Throat and Head & Neck Oncology
Gastroenterology
Oral & Maxillofacial
Orthopaedics
Pain Management
Perioperative Services
Plastics and Reconstructive Surgery
Special Surgery
Trauma
Urology

University of Melbourne Chairs
Cato Professor of Psychiatry
Professor Ian Everall
Chair of Neuroscience
Professor Trevor Kilpatrick
Chair of Old Age Psychiatry
Professor Nicola Lautenschlager
Edgar Rouse Professor of Radiology
Professor Patricia Desmond
James Stewart Professor of Medicine
Professor Terence O’Brien
James Stewart Professor of Surgery
Professor Andrew Kaye
NHMRC Professorial Fellow (Cardiology)
Professor Jon Kalman
NHMRC Professorial Fellow (Neurology)
Professor Helmut Butzkueven
Professor of Adult Clinical Genetics
Professor Ingrid Winship
Professor of General Medicine & Aged Care
Professor Andrea Maier
Professor of Medical Education
Professor Geoff McColl
Professor of Medicine (Endocrinology)
Professor John Walk
Professor of Medicine (Infectious Diseases)
Professor Bev Biggs
Professor of Neurology
Professor Patrick Kwan
Professor of Neuropsychiatry
Professor Christos Pantelis
Professor of Psychiatry
Professor Dennis Velakoulis
Professor of Radiology
Professor Peter Mitchell
Professor of Surgery (Cardiothoracics)
Professor Allister Royce
Professor of Translational Neuroscience
Professor Stephen Davis

Australian Catholic University Chair
Professor of Mental Health Nursing
Professor Kim Foster

La Trobe University Chairs
Professors of Allied Health
A/Prof Karl Landorf
Dr Michael Dillon
Dr Mary Whiteside

Significant Supporters
The Royal Melbourne Hospital Foundation acknowledges the following significant support:
Major Contributions
Black Moon Pty Ltd
Century 101 Pty Ltd
Cheng Investment Aust Pty Ltd
Palombara Pty Ltd
RMH Dialysis Support Group
Mrs Ofelia Aguiar
Mrs Roseanne Amarant
Mrs Betty Amsden
Mr Ross Barker
Dr Sandra Boughton
Ms Krishna Brannigan
Mrs Dorothy Brennan
Mr Ed Cameron
Mrs Josephine Cardale
Mr Seon Chua
Mrs George Claxton
Mrs Sue Clifton
Mr Andrew Cuthbertson
Mrs June Danks
Mr Jim Derham
Mrs Ann Dollman
Mr David Donnelly
Mr Abe & Mrs Vera Dorevitch
Ms Kate Drummond
Mr Phillip Elkins
Mr Jacob & Mrs Valda Ellinson
Mr Neville Elliott
Mrs Rita Ferguson
Dr John and Mrs Diana Frew
Ms Melissa Fuller
Mr Neil Gerhard
Mr Ratilal Gokal
Mr Onoufrios Gorozidis
Mrs Barbara Haynes
Mrs Miriam Henry
Mr Moneer Israil
Mr Griff Jorgenson
Mr Mark Kagan
Mr John Kaufman
Mr Alan Kozica
Mr Paul Krongold
Mr John & Mrs Betty Laidlaw
Ms Patricia Le Page
Ms Laura Lewis
Dr Meir Lichtenstein
Ms Chi Lu
Mrs Melva Markey
Mr C Marrone
Mrs Jocelyn Mead
Mr David Moore
Mr Jonathan Mordech
Mr Baillieu Myer
Mr Bernard Mylon
A/Professor Alf Nastri
Mr Chi Biu Ng
Ms Be Nguyen

Mr Chieu Nguyen
Mr Phuc Nguyen
Ms Maris O’Sullivan
Mr Leighton Passant
Mrs Assunta Pellicano
Mr David Phillips
Mrs Nancy Price
Mr Michael Quinn
Mr Joseph & Mrs Carmen Saliba
Mr Wayne Skate
Mr Peter Smedley
Mr Ross Starr
Mrs Judith Steele
Mr Laurence Stewart
Ms Sally Tan
Mr Binh Thai
Mrs Judith Thomson
Ms Linda Tivendale
Mr Liem Tran
Mr Emmanuel Vakakis
Ms Hang Vu
Mr William Woodhams
Mr Richard Wynne

Corporate Partners
Alphapharm Pty Limited
BankVic
Bendigo Property Services
BG Flowers
Cannon Toyota
Carman’s Fine Foods PTY LTD
Cerner Australia
Ckaos Ink Pty Ltd
Cobs Fine Food
Coles
Commonwealth Bank Royal
Melbourne Hospital Branch
De Bortoli Wines
Doquile Perrett Meade Financial
Services
Dr Dax Kitchen
Ecco Enterprises Pty Ltd
EFM North Melbourne
ESSO Australia Pty Ltd
FCG Property
First State Super
G&C Mutual Bank
Glenvill
GPI Australia
Grocon PCL
Healthscope Melbourne Private
Hospital Pty Ltd
Human Care Australia
LaManna Direct
LML Lift Consulants
Medikane Pty Ltd
Melbourne Recital Centre
Preshafood Limited
S. O. Asher Consultants Pty Ltd

Smartsalary
Summit Fleet Leasing and
Management
Swingshift Nurses

Trusts & Foundations
Blue Ribbon Foundation
City of Melbourne
Dry July Limited
Equity Trustees – Harold
& Cora Brennen
Esso Australia (Exxon Mobil)
Fight Cancer Foundation
Guthrie Family Charitable Trust
Hugh Williamson Foundation
Intensive Care Academic Fund
Perpetual Trustees
Price Family Foundation
State Trustees Australia Foundation
The Bell Charitable Fund
The Ian Nelleke Clark
Encouragement Fund
The Muriel & Les Batten Foundation
Walter and Eliza Hall Trust
William Buckland Foundation

Community Supporters
Bikram Yoga Ascot Vale
Braemar College
Bunnings Warehouse
Chinese Masonic Society
Koonung Secondary College
Matty’s Soldiers
Mr Alwyn Wong
Mr Finbarr Lehane
Mr Isak Ketsakidis
Mr Mauricio Munoz
Mrs Judy Manning
Mrs Melissa Chen
Melbourne Neuropsychiatry Centre
Nordia Foundation Pty Ltd
RMH Geriatric Medicine
Department
RMH Facilities Management
‘We Care’ Charitable Trust
Willmott Park Primary

Estate of Herbert Gordon Emerson
Estate of Mary Evelyn Bowley –
Charitable Trust
Estate of Maureen McDonald
Estate of Phoebe Elizabeth
Jane Lepage
Estate of Richard Kearton
Estate of Alfred Herman William
Dehnert
Estate of Douglas James Thomson
Estate of William Macrow
Estate of John Anderson
Estate of Dorothy Winifred Dike
Estate of Irene Daisy Dike
Estate of Ethel Mary Drummond
Estate of Joseph Herman
Estate of John Lambrick
Estate of Joseph & Kate Levi
Estate of J R G & E McKenzie
Estate of William Marshall
Ernest and Letitia Wears’
Memorial Trust
Louis John Wahlers Trust
Mary MacGregor Trust
George Lawrence Godfree Bequest
Werge Batters Perpetual
Charitable Fund

Estates & Gifts in Will
Estate of Arthur Blannin Lyndhurst
Estate of Charlotte Marshall
Estate of Emily Vera Winder
Estate of Helen Mary Broad
Estate of Henrietta Lucy Cherry
Estate of John Frederick Wright
Estate of Colin Archibald Campbell
Estate of Doris & Rupert Joseph
Charitable Trust
Estate of E C Blackwood –
Charitable Trust
Estate of Eric Charles Smith
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Occupational Health, Safety & Wellbeing
In 2015/16 Melbourne Health continued its progressive
and proactive approach to safety, health, wellbeing
and injury management by continuing to identify and
introduce new initiatives.
The Manual Handling Project was successful in
helping staff identify manual handling risks and
prevention strategies, which lead to a reduction in
injuries and claims.
The Anti-Bullying Awareness Campaign was launched
in September 2015 and an action plan has been
developed based on recommendations from the
Victorian Auditor General’s Office report and the
DHHS Pathways to Change Framework. This will
support our drive to provide a respectful workplace
for all of our staff.
Our one-day Combatting Compassion Fatigue
Program was introduced and well-received by staff.
The program aims to provide self-help skills to staff
who are regularly exposed to emotionally demanding
circumstances and helps to reduce risk of emotional
stress. Other major projects that commenced in
2015/16 and will be a focus in 2016/17 include:
• A major review of Occupational Violence and
Aggression across Melbourne Health
• The design of a Mental Health Strategy that
focuses on reducing and managing psychological
risks in the workplace.

WorkCover Performance
2009/10 to 2015/16
Melbourne Health WorkCover performance rate has
improved once again for 2015/16 and continues to be
better than the industry rate. We will continue to strive
to reduce workplace injuries and return injured staff to
work quickly and within their capacity.

Cultural Transformation Program
In response to feedback from staff, in addition to
increasing external scrutiny on the workplace culture
of health services and a recognition of the negative
impact that culture-related issues have on our people
and reputation, Melbourne Health has initiated a
Cultural Transformation Program.
Incorporating work in the areas of safety culture,
leadership, values, anti-bullying, communication and
engagement, and change management, the program
aims to support staff and leaders to change behaviours
and improve processes that contribute to the safety and
reliability of our health service.
Foundation work has been underway during 2015/16,
including the introduction of the Speaking Up for
Safety training and the weCare system to receive and
act upon feedback about behaviour that undermines
our culture.

Occupational Violence
Occupational violence statistics

2015/16

1. Workcover accepted claims with an
occupational violence cause per 100 FTE
2. Number of accepted Workcover claims with
lost time injury with an occupational violence
cause per 1,000,000 hours worked.
3. Number of occupational violence
incidents reported
4. Number of occupational violence incidents
reported per 100 FTE
5. Percentage of occupational violence incidents
resulting in a staff injury, illness
or condition

0.17
1.6
588
5.88
7.82

Definitions
For the purposes of the above statistics the following
definitions apply.
Occupational violence – any incident where an
employee is abused, threatened or assaulted in
circumstances arising out of, or in the course of
their employment.
Incident – occupational health and safety incidents
reported in the health service incident reporting
system. Code Grey reporting is not included.
Accepted Workcover claims – Accepted
Workcover claims that were lodged in 2015/16.
Lost time – is defined as greater than one day.
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WORKCOVER PERFORMANCE 2009/10 TO 2015/16
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109

95

80

0.20

9
101

6

93

0.15

84

0.10

40
0.05
0

0.00
2009/10

2010/11

Number of standard claims

2011/12

Number of minor claims

2012/13

2013/14

Claim per $ million of remuneration

2014/15

2015/16

Claim cost per $ million remuneration

MELBOURNE HEALTH EMPLOYEES 2015/16
Labour Category

June
Current Month FTE
2015
2016

June
YTD FTE
2015

2016

Administration/Clerical

1166.75

1205.45

1150.54

1190.67

Allied Health

590.24

604.74

595.76

604.74

HMO's

504.06

521.30

485.17

476.38

Hotel/Allied

382.31

422.20

382.31

393.78

Medical

129.67

130.68

133.41

131.73

Medical Support

752.74

776.40

746.94

756.02

Nursing

2588.80

2616.56

2555.11

2579.07

Sessional Clinical

243.87

264.53

231.30

264.53

Total

6358.45

6541.87

6280.54

6396.91
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General Information
Carers Recognition Act 2012

Freedom of Information

Melbourne Health is committed to partnering
with and empowering our patients and consumers.
We understand that our patients and consumers, their
families and carers need to play an active role in their
own healthcare and in helping us improve the quality
and safety of our services.

The Freedom of Information Act 1982 provides a legally
enforceable right of public access to information held
by government agencies. All applications made to
Melbourne Health under the Freedom of Information
Act 1982, were processed in accordance with that
Act. Melbourne Health provides a report on these
requests to the Freedom of Information Commissioner.
Applications and requests for information about
making applications, under the Act can be made to:

We take all practicable measures to ensure our
employees and agents reflect the care relationship
principles in developing, providing or evaluating
support and assistance for persons in care relationships.
The Melbourne Health Partnerships in Care Strategy
provides an organisation-wide framework describing
our approach to the embedding of person-centred care
and partnership in our culture, decision making and
how we provide care.
An updated ‘Partnering with Consumers and PersonCentered Care’ education package, incorporating
principles of cultural responsiveness and customer
service, was launched in early 2016. This package
is mandatory for all Melbourne Health staff – both
clinical and non-clinical, recognising that everyone in
the organisation has an impact on patient experience.
This learning tool draws particular attention to the
needs of carers and families.
Melbourne Health reports on its participation
indicators and priority actions in the DHHS Doing
it with us not for us participation policy in the annual
Quality of Care Report. That report is available on our
website at www.thermh.org.au and also is distributed
in hardcopy throughout Melbourne Health and our
service catchment area.
Requests for print versions can be made to:
Transformation and Quality,
The Royal Melbourne Hospital.

Postal Applications
Freedom of Information Officer
Health Information Services
Post Office
ROYAL MELBOURNE HOSPITAL
VICTORIA 3050
Hand delivery
Freedom of Information Officer
Health Information Services
The Royal Melbourne Hospital
– City Campus
300 Grattan Street
PARKVILLE VICTORIA 3050
Telephone: (03) 9342 7781
Facsimile: (03) 9342 8008
Email: FOIrequest@mh.org.au
More information about Melbourne Health can
be found on our website at www.thermh.org.au,
including how we manage FOI requests, publications,
and other material that can be inspected by the public.
Freedom of Information applications
Received during the year
In progress at the start of the year
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2327
171

Granted in full

1971

Denied in part

116

Denied in full

16

Melbourne Health

5

Withdrawn

76

In Progress

181

Transferred to another service

1

Transferred from another service

0

No Record

4

Privacy

Victorian Industry Participation Policy

Melbourne Health is committed to protecting the
privacy of its patients and clients. The organisation is
required by law to protect personal and confidential
information such as information about an individual’s
health and other personal details. Melbourne Health
complies with all applicable legislation relating to
confidentiality and privacy, including, where relevant,
the Health Services Act, Mental Health Act and the
Health Records Act. Melbourne Health’s Privacy Policy
is available to all staff on the Melbourne Health
intranet site and available to the public in hardcopy.
Melbourne Health adheres to the Department of
Health’s privacy policy which can be accessed online
at www.thermh.org.au

Melbourne Health complies with the intent of the
Victorian Industry Participation Policy Act 2003.
The aim of this legislation is to expand market
opportunities to Victorians, and indeed Australian
organisations and therefore promote employment and
business growth in the State.

Preventing detrimental action
Melbourne Health is committed to extend the
protections under the Protected Disclosure Act 2012
(Vic) to individuals who make protected disclosures
under that Act or who cooperate with investigations
into protected disclosures. The procedure and brochure
are available to all staff on the Melbourne Health
intranet site and to the public at www.thermh.org.au

Merit and Equity Principles
Merit and equity principles are encompassed in all
employment and diversity management activities
throughout Melbourne Health.
Melbourne Health is an equal opportunity employer
and is committed to providing for its employees a
work environment which is free of harassment or
discrimination together with an environment that is
safe and without risk to health.
Melbourne Health’s employees are committed to our
values and behaviours as the principles of employment
and conduct.
Melbourne Health promotes cultural diversity and
awareness in the workplace.

Competitive Neutrality
Melbourne Health continues to comply with the
Victorian Government’s Competitive Neutrality
Policy. In addition, the Victorian Government’s
Competitive Neutrality pricing principles have been
applied by Melbourne Health from 1 July 2000 for
all relevant business activities.

For tenders and resulting contracts with a value of
$3 million or more, Melbourne Health applies VIPP
specific evaluation criteria. These criteria assess:
• Level of local content
• Number of newly created or existing jobs retained
• Training, skills development and
technology transfer.
The assessment of these criteria in conjunction with
other tender specific assessment criteria leads to the
selection of the best possible product and service for
the expenditure. It also ensures those organisations
that provide quality local products and/or services are
recognised and promoted as per the policy.

Building Act 1993
Melbourne Health complies wholly with the building
and maintenance provisions of the Building Act 1993.
Melbourne Health has obtained Building Permits
for new projects and Certificates of Occupancy or
Certificates of Final Inspection for all completed
projects.
Registered Building Practitioners have been involved
with all new building works projects and were
supervised by either the relevant Construction
Manager in liaison with Melbourne Health Capital
Projects and or Independent Project Managers.
Each building practitioner has supplied the required
Building Registration Number. Building contractors
include:
• MAW Building and Maintenance
• Dovagate
• Grocon
• DNA co
• Pirotta
• Renascent
• By Design Pty Ltd
• MRU Constructions
In order to maintain buildings in a safe and serviceable
condition, routine inspections were undertaken. Where
required, Melbourne Health proceeded to implement
the highest priority recommendations arising out of
those inspections through planned rectification and
maintenance works.
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Building certified for approved design phase –
under construction
RMH City Campus
• VCCC North Side works including Hybrid
theatre & iMRI Theatre
• Level 6 roof top garden
• PC3 lab
• Purge mode hepa filtration
• Radiology Angiogram installation
• Pet scanner feasibility report
• Payroll & Accounts relocation to Jane Bell House
• Theatre Expansion Feasibility
• 5 North Refurbishment
• 2 West Relocation to 6 South East
• CMR Level 7 & 8 Mechanical Upgrade
• Car Park Extension
• 4th CT Installation
• Familial Cancer Centre refurbishment
• Research Directorate relocation to 2 South
• Clinical Trial Redevelopment
NWMH
• Broadmeadows IPU
• Preston/ Broadmeadows/ Norfolk/ St Albans
CCU Upgrades
RMH Royal Park Campus
• Dialysis Unit

Environmental performance
In 2015/16 we reviewed our environmental
management strategy. The Think Green Strategy
2015–2020 sets our sustainability goals for the next
five years. Our strategic goals include increasing
recycling rates, continued reduction in waste and
resource consumption, promoting ‘green thinking’
and sustainable transport and including environmental
sustainability principles in our procurement processes.
We received recognition for our long term
commitment to sustainability this year. In August
2015, we were honoured to be chosen as finalists in
the Health Category for the Premier’s Sustainability
Awards 2015 for our Think Green initiatives.
For more detailed information about our
environmental performance, please view our annual
Sustainability Report which will be available in
October 2016 at www.thermh.org.au.

Car Parking Fees
Melbourne Health complies with the DHHS hospital
circular on car parking fees effective 1 February 2016
and details of car parking fees and concession benefits
can be viewed at www.thermh.org.au

Additional Information
Details in respect to the items listed below have been
retained by Melbourne Health and are available to
the relevant Ministers, Members of Parliament and
the public upon request (subject to the Freedom of
Information requirements, if applicable):
(a)	A statement of pecuniary interest;
(b)	Details of shares held by senior officers as
nominee or held beneficially in a statutory
authority or subsidiary;
(c)	Details of publications produced by Melbourne
Health about our activities and where they can
be obtained;
(d)	Details of changes in prices, fees, charges, rates
and levies charged by Melbourne Health;
(e)	Details of any major external reviews carried out
on Melbourne Health;
(f)	Details of major research and development
activities undertaken by Melbourne Health that
are not otherwise covered either in the Report of
Operations or in a document that contains the
financial report and Report of Operations;
(g)	Details of overseas visits undertaken including
a summary of the objectives and outcomes of
each visit;
(h)	Details of major promotional, public relations
and marketing activities undertaken to develop
community awareness of Melbourne Health and
its services;
(i)	Details of assessments and measures undertaken
to improve the occupational health and safety
of employees;
(j)	A general statement on industrial relations
within the entity and details of time lost through
industrial accidents and disputes, which is not
otherwise detailed in the Report of Operations;
(k)	A list of major committees sponsored by
Melbourne Health, the purposes of each
committee and the extent to which the purposes
have been achieved;
(l)	Details of all consultancies and contractors
including those engaged, services provided and
expenditure committed to for each engagement.
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Details of Information and
Communication Technology
(ICT) expenditure
The total ICT expenditure incurred during
2015/16 is $23.5m (excluding GST) with
the details shown below.
DETAILS OF INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY (ICT) EXPENDITURE ($ MILLION)
Business As Usual (BAU) ICT expenditure

Non‑Business As Usual (non‑BAU) ICT expenditure

(Total)

(Total=Operational expenditure and Capital Expenditure)

Operational
expenditure

Capital
expenditure

$9.2m

$14.3m

$5m

$9.2m

CONSULTANCIES 2015/16
Total Approved
Project Fee
(exc. GST)
($’000)

Expenditure
2015/16
(exc. GST)
($’000)

Future
Expenditure
(exc. GST)
($’000)

Short Course Program Review

10

10

–

Event Public Relations

Operation Management Consulting Fee

10

10

–

Litmus Group

Procurement Spend Analytics

13

13

–

Formulate Information Design

Nursing Assessment and Care Planning Tool

14

14

–

ASH and Associates

SMS appointment and credentialing process review

17

17

–

Geoffrey Ian Goodall

Biochemistry Consultancy

20

20

–

Oxford Consulting Associates

Executive team review

34

34

–

KPMG

Parkville Electronic Medical Records Business Case

122

122

–

NOUS Group

Melbourne Health Operating Model Review

163

163

–

Cognitive Consulting Group

Safety Culture Program

297

297

216

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Audit

361

299

361

So Asher Consultants

Fundraising

990

990

954

Consultant

Purpose of Consultancy

Therese Caine Enterprises

In 2015/16, Melbourne Health engaged 28 consultancies where the total fees payable to the consultants were less than $10,000, with
a total expenditure of $122,308.27 (exc. GST).
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Financial Summary
The key financial performance measure monitored
by Melbourne Health management is the “Operating
Surplus/(Deficit) before capital and specific items”.
In 2015/16 Melbourne Health achieved a deficit result
of $2.8m which compares unfavourably with the
budgeted breakeven target.
Net Result for the year was $26.2m deficit which
compares favourably to a deficit Net Result achieved
in 2014/15.

Total Revenue increased $47.8m from 2014/15 with
proportionate increase in expenditure.
During the year, Melbourne Health remained focused
on growing its revenue, delivering organisation-wide
cost saving initiatives and improving efficiency and
productivity in order to achieve financial sustainability,
invest in upgrading its facilities and increase service
quality, access and capacity.

MELBOURNE HEALTH FINANCIAL SUMMARY 2015/16
2016
$’000

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

Total Revenue

1,013,192

965,346

913,535

896,883

876,037

Total Expenses

1,015,998

966,876

913,236

896,262

876,387

(2,806)

(1,530)

299

621

(350)

Capital and Specific Items

(23,382)

(26,717)

3,654

(31,995)

(26,239)

Net Result for the Year

(26,188)

(28,247)

3,953

(31,374)

(26,589)

(192,533)

(160,596)

(127,979)

(159,286)

(134,214)

Total Assets

849,596

807,832

793,388

626,070

639,827

Total Liabilities

298,610

273,301

284,534

259,880

245,077

Net Assets

550,986

534,531

508,854

366,190

394,750

Total Equity

550,986

534,531

508,854

366,190

394,750

Operating Surplus/(Deficit) before capital and specific items

Retained Surplus / (Deficit)
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Key Financial & Service
Performance Reporting
Statement of Priorities
The Statement of Priorities is the key accountability agreement between Melbourne Health and the Victorian
Minister for Health. This annual agreement ensures delivery of, or substantial progress towards, the key shared
objectives of improved access and quality of services and financial viability. The Statement of Priorities is
published annually on the website of the Department of Health and Human Services.

Part A: Strategic Priorities for 2015/16
DOMAIN

ACTION

DELIVERABLES

OUTCOME

Patient
experience
and outcomes

Drive improved health outcomes through
a strong focus on patient-centred care
in the planning, delivery and evaluation
of services, and the development of new
models for putting patients first.

Partnerships in Care strategy revised in alignment
with the strategic plan and supporting annual
work plan developed.

Achieved.

Strengthen the response of health
services to family violence. This includes
implementing interventions, processes
and systems to prevent, identify and
respond appropriately to family violence
at an individual and community level.

Family violence policy and procedures developed
and implemented. Confirmed presentations of
family violence monitored, with social work and/
or appropriate support referrals monitored.

Achieved.

Use consumer feedback and develop
participation processes to improve person
and family centred care, health service
practice and patient experiences.

Participation in Post-discharge patient survey
increased with action plans implemented to
respond to results. Patient satisfaction scores
have increased.

Achieved.

Implement an organisation-wide approach
to advance care planning including a
system for identifying, documenting
and/or receiving advance care plans in
partnership with patients, carers and
substitute decision makers so that people's
wishes for future care can be activated
when medical decisions need to be made.

Goals of Care program implemented with forms
rolled out and Champions in place. Advanced
care planning promoted within the community
with our partners under the Primary Health
Network Advanced Care Planning QI project.

Achieved.

Demonstrate an organisational
commitment to quality cancer
services through engagement with
the local Integrated Cancer Service
and implementation of the Optimal
Care Pathways.

Cancer and diabetes care Western &
Central Melbourne Integrated Cancer
Service project implemented with pathways
and protocols developed.

Achieved.

Empower patients, consumers and carers
to enable shared decision-making.

Inter-professional patient centred discharge
planning tools and procedures developed and
implemented at RMH.

Achieved.

2015/16 work plan developed and
implemented with quarterly reports
monitoring progress.
2016/17 work plan in development.
RMH responding to family violence
procedure completed and endorsed
key stakeholders.

Survey results response process
established which has resulted in an
increased patient satisfaction score.

Goals of Care program implemented
and Champions appointed.
Primary Health Network Advanced
Care Planning QI project funded
and underway.

Pathways and protocols
implemented and integrated into
outpatients and inpatient setting.

Discharge planning tool
and procedures developed
and implemented.
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Part A: Strategic Priorities for 2015/16 (continued)
DOMAIN

ACTION

DELIVERABLES

OUTCOME

Governance,
leadership
and culture

Demonstrate an organisational
commitment to Occupational Health
and Safety, including mental health
and wellbeing in the workplace.
Ensure accessible and affordable support
services are available for employees
experiencing mental ill health. Work
collaboratively with the DHHS and
professional bodies to identify and
address systemic issues of mental ill health
amongst the medical professions.

Build upon existing organisational wide and
medical professional specific workplace mental
health and wellbeing program including
developing resources and pathways for staff
exposed to traumatic/critical incidents to provide
awareness, support and interventions.

Achieved.

Monitor and publically report incidents
of occupational violence. Work
collaboratively with DHHS to develop
systems to prevent the occurrence of
occupational violence.

Relevant recommendations from the Victorian
Auditor-General’s report into Occupational
Violence against Healthcare Workers, and
Emergency Department violence and clinical
agreement action group implemented. Code
black review completed with security program
upgraded and evaluated. Mechanisms to publicly
report to be identified and in place.

Achieved.

Anti-bullying campaign to increase staff
awareness and change behaviours established.
Mandatory training modules, documentation
and online support developed with reporting
and monitoring enhanced.

Achieved.

Safety Culture Program developed
and implemented in partnership with the
Cognitive Institute.

Achieved.

Additional data integration from disparate source
systems completed to optimise business usage
and understanding.

Achieved.

Promote a positive workplace culture
and implement strategies to prevent
bullying and harassment in the workplace.
Monitor trends of complaints of bullying
and harassment and identify and address
organisational units exhibiting poor
workplace culture and morale.

Improve data reporting systems to
increase accountability and transparency,
consistent with the Transparency in
Government Bill.

22

Proactive Health and wellbeing
programs in place.
Mental Health Strategy endorsed.
External provider engaged to
determine the psychological risk
profile for Melbourne Health.

Code black procedures developed
and endorsed.
VAGO Occupational Violence
recommendations included in
strategic plan.
Dashboard for reporting
Occupational Violence developed.
Anti-bullying campaign developed
and communicated to staff.
Online training implemented.
Complaints policies and procedures
reviewed and updated.
Phase 1 achieved and ongoing
implementation plan in progress.
Data source ICNET added to the
data warehouse.
Dynamic reporting of infection
prevention information now
available.

Stage 1 of the Electronic Content Management
system implemented.

Achieved.

Contribute to the development
and implementation of the 10 Year
Mental Health Plan for Victoria and
State of Victoria’s Mental Health Services
Annual Report.

Phase 2 of the Adult Community Services
redesign completed in six practice areas with
a focus on leadership and practice.

Achieved.

Apply existing capability frameworks
and clinical guidelines to inform service
system planning, giving consideration
to the capability of neighbouring services
and how best to allocate available
resources so as to deliver the maximum
benefit to the local community.

Phase 3 of the Defining our Role project
completed with a focus on service and workforce
profiling and modelling.

In progress.

Planning for the Royal Melbourne development
progressed with an Ambulatory Care model
developed and tested.

Achieved.
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Stage 1 of Electronic Content
Management System implemented
in November 2015.
Local implementation plans in place
which focuses on clinical leadership,
learning and practice development
and auditing to review progress.
Phase 3 of the Defining our Role
project on hold, awaiting outcomes
from DHHS service plan review.
Operating model developed and
tested. Discussions underway with
Melbourne University and DHHS
on next steps including service and
master planning, for progression to a
business case.

Part A: Strategic Priorities for 2015/16 (continued)
DOMAIN

ACTION

DELIVERABLES

OUTCOME

Governance,
leadership
and culture

Support the vision of the Victorian
Comprehensive Cancer Centre.

The Victorian Comprehensive Cancer
Centre North Side opened with transition
and relocation of inpatient cancer services
as per agreed service model.

Achieved.

Consolidate our position in the
precinct through the promotion of
the Melbourne Biomedical Precinct
and our academic partners.

Proposal developed for precinct wide clinical
research office for ethics and governance.

Achieved.

Ensure management plans are in place to
prevent, detect and contain Carbapenem
Resistant Enterobacteriaceae as outlined
in Hospital Circular 02/15 (issued 16
June 2015).

Assessment for designated Carbapenem
Resistant Enterobacteriaceae transmission risk
areas completed with antimicrobial resistance
monitoring at a faculty level implemented and
reported every 3–6 months.

Achieved.

Implement effective antimicrobial
stewardship practices and increase
awareness of antimicrobial resistance,
its implications and actions to combat
it, through effective communication,
education, and training.

Antimicrobial stewardship service guidelines
developed for severe sepsis and empiric antibiotic
use. Electronic approval system implemented for
antimicrobials; and gram-positive and gramnegative antibiogram generated.

In progress.

Embed a Safety First Culture.

Safety First Quality Improvement plan reviewed
and aligned with the new Strategic Plan.

Achieved.

Improve cash management processes to
ensure that financial obligations are met
as they are due.

Improved procedures and processes across
Revenue, Payroll and Accounts Payable functions
developed and implemented.

Achieved.

Work with Health Purchasing
Victoria to implement procurement
savings initiatives.

Procurement Activity Plan executed and the
budgeted savings /improvements delivered for
Pharmacy, Orthopaedic prostheses, Waste and
Medical consumables.

Achieved.

Invest in revenue optimisation initiatives
to ensure maximisation of revenue from
both public and private sources.

Private patient revenue strategy developed
and implemented to deliver budget.

Achieved.

Safety
and quality

Financial
sustainability

North Side opened and cancer
inpatient services transitioned as per
agreed service model.
Precinct wide clinical research office
for ethics and governance proposal
developed and presented at Precinct
Leaders meeting.

DHHS Victorian Guidelines
on Control of Carbapenemaseproducing Enterobacteriaceae
implemented.
Sepsis pathway implemented in
Cancer Services and currently being
rolled out across RMH.

Safety First Quality
Improvement plan aligned with
the new Strategic Plan.

Continued progress of initiatives
across Revenue, Payroll, and
Accounts Payable.
Pharmacy, Orthopaedic prostheses,
Waste and Medical consumables
activity plans executed. 79
procurement projects have been
completed during the year and 58
projects are in progress. Total savings
of $3.7m were achieved during the
year.
Private patient revenue has increased$72.6m in 2013/14, $80.3m in
2014/15 and $83.3m by end of
2015/16 (+14% over two years).
Numerous private patient revenue
improvement projects initiated
and implemented.
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Part A: Strategic Priorities for 2015/16 (continued)
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DOMAIN

ACTION

DELIVERABLES

OUTCOME

Access

Implement integrated care approaches
across health and community support
services to improve access and responses
for disadvantaged Victorians.

Respecting our Community Plan refreshed
in alignment with DHHS Cultural
Responsiveness Framework, Aboriginal and
Torres Strait Islander Cultural awareness
and Disability plans.

Achieved.

Access and patient flow initiatives executed
across all RMH Clinical Divisions.

In progress

Progress partnerships with other health
services to ensure patients can access
treatments as close to where they live
when it is safe and effective to so,
making the most efficient use of available
resources across the system.

Support provided for the establishment of
the Primary Health Network governance
and strategy with transition from the
Collaborative Framework with our existing
community partners.

Achieved.

Optimise system capacity by ensuring that
allocated points of care are implemented
as per the Travis review recommendations.

Six bed Behavioural Assessment Unit
implemented within the emergency
department.

Achieved.

Work collaboratively with
Ambulance Victoria to achieve
timely transfer of patients.

Working party with Ambulance Victoria
established, with an improved interface
with our emergency department developed.
Joint initiatives through education and
research identified.

Achieved.

Ensure that policies, procedures and
service models are in place to manage and
monitor colonoscopy referrals and ensure
timely access for patients with an urgent
clinical need.

Endoscopy project completed to review
current practices and policies in line with
best practice. Partnerships with other health
services strengthened to achieve clinical
appropriate timeframes.

Achieved.
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Respecting our Community
Plan 2015/16 developed and
implemented in line with current
DHHS frameworks.
Bed review completed and twenty
beds to be commissioned in July
2016 to enhance flex capacity. RMH
wide escalation plan and sub-acute
flow review in progress.
Support provided to establish
Primary Care Network governance
and strategy.

Six bed Behavioural Assessment
Unit fully operational from
February 2016.
Regular working party meetings
established, education and research
initiatives in progress.

Project completed and sustainability
plan in place.
Number of patients on the waitlist
reduced from 2171 to 1343 and wait
times improved.

Part B: Performance Priorities
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR

2015/16
TARGET RESULT

Safety and quality performance

2015/16
TARGET RESULT

Financial sustainability performance

Compliance with NSQHS Standards
accreditation

Full
compliance

Achieved

Compliance with the Commonwealth’s Aged
Care Accreditation Standards

Full
compliance

Achieved

Overall compliance with cleaning standards

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR

Full
compliance

Achieved

Very high risk (Category A)

90 points

Achieved

High Risk (Category B)

85 points

Achieved

Moderate Risk (Category C)

85 points

Achieved

Compliance with Hand Hygiene
Australia Program

80%

77.9%

Percentage of healthcare workers
immunised for influenza

75%

78.8%

Finance
Operating result

$0.0m

-$2.8

Trade creditors

< 60 days

58

Patient fee debtors

< 60 days

56

100%

100.4%

Full
compliance

Achieved

0.7

0.56

14 days

0

Public & private WIES performance to target
2

Asset management
Asset management plan
Adjusted Current asset ratio
Days of available cash

Access performance

Patient experience and outcomes performance

Emergency Care

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey
– data submission

Full
compliance

Achieved

Percentage of ambulance patients transferred
within 40 minutes

90%

81%

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey
– patient experience
Quarter 1

95%
positive
experience

88.1%

Percentage of Triage Category 1 emergency
patients seen immediately

100%

100%

80%

74%

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey
– patient experience
Quarter 2

95%
positive
experience

89.0%

Percentage of Triage Category 1 to 5
emergency patients seen within clinically
recommended times

81%

63%

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey
– patient experience
Quarter 3

95%
positive
experience

90.0%

Percentage of emergency patients with a length
of stay less than four hours
Number of patients with a length of stay in the
emergency department greater than 24 hours

0

0

Number of patients with surgical site infection

No outliers

Achieved

Elective Surgery

ICU central line-associated blood
stream infection

No outliers

Achieved

Percentage of elective patients removed within
clinically recommended timeframes

94%

73%

SAB rate per occupied bed days1

< 2/10,000 0.73/10,000

100%

≤15/1,000

Percentage of Urgency Category 1 elective
patients removed within 30 days

100%

Mental Health – Percentage of seclusion
events relating to an acute admission
– composite seclusion rate

10% longest waiting Category 2 and 3
removals from the elective surgery waiting list

100%

100%

2368

3077

≤8 /100

9.79/100

9339

8312

0

0

10/1,000

Mental Health – Percentage of adult inpatients
who are readmitted within 28 days of discharge

14%

15%

Number of patients on the elective surgery
waiting list3

Mental Health – Percentage of adult
patients who have post-discharge follow-up
within seven days

75%

89%

Number of hospital initiated postponements
per 100 scheduled admissions

≤15/1,000

14/1,000

75%

90%

≤15/1,000

1/1,000

Mental Health – Rate of seclusion events
relating to an adult acute admission
Mental Health – Percentage of aged patients
who have post-discharge follow-up within
seven days
Mental Health – Rate of seclusion events
relating to an aged acute admission

Governance, leadership and culture performance
People Matter Survey – percentage of staff with
a positive response to safety culture questions
1

80%

Number of patients admitted from the elective
surgery waiting list – annual total
Critical Care
Adult ICU number of days below the agreed
minimum operating capacity4
2

W IES is a Weighted Inlier Equivalent Separation.

3

 e target shown is the number of patients on the elective surgery waiting list as
Th
at 30 June 2016.

4

 e agreed minimum operating capacity is 21 ICU equivalents from July to
Th
December 2015 and 24 ICU equivalents from January 2016.

70%

SAB is staphylococcus aureus bacteraemia

Melbourne Health Annual Report 2015/16

25

Part C: Activity and funding
FUNDING TYPE

2015/16 ACTIVITY
ACHIEVEMENT

Acute Admitted

2015/16 ACTIVITY
ACHIEVEMENT

Aged Care

WIES Public

61,600

WIES Private

13,721

WIES (Public & Private)

75,321

WIES DVA

434

WEIS TAC

4,467

WIES TOTAL

FUNDING TYPE

80,222

Residential Aged Care

25,375

Mental Health and Drug Services
Mental Health Inpatient – Bed days

12,100

Mental Health Inpatient – Wot

70,594

Mental Health Ambulatory

144,633

*Due to union work bans activity data is under reported

Acute Non-Admitted
Renal Dialysis – Home ABF

128

Subacute & Non-Acute Admitted
Rehab Public

12,534

Rehab Private

4,108

Rehab DVA

0

GEM Public

33,640

GEM Private

8,630

GEM DVA

557

Palliative Care Public

4,193

Palliative Care Private

1,141

Palliative Care DVA

81

Transition Care – Bed days

10,037

Transition Care – Home day

12,131

Subacute Non-Admitted
Health Independence Program

26
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98,897

Mental Health Residential

30,555

Mental Health Subacute

32,223

Attestation for Compliance with
the Ministerial Standing Direction
4.5.5 – Risk Management Framework
and Processes
I, Daryl Williams, certify that Melbourne Health
has complied with Ministerial Direction 4.5.5 –
Risk Management Framework and Processes except
for the following:
• r equirement to record the valuation of self-insured
retained losses:
	Self-insured losses arising in respect to Melbourne
Health's own assets are replaced on a needs basis,
subject to relevant budget. Self-insured losses arising
in respect to third party property are assessed on
a case-by-case basis and at a value negotiated with
the third party, allowing for condition & age.
Melbourne Health is instituting a register of selfinsured losses for third party property.
• r equirement to identify and manage state significant
risks and interagency risks:
	Melbourne Health is currently developing a specific
approach to identify and manage the inter-entity
and state significant risks.

Attestation on Data Integrity
I, Daryl Williams, certify that the Melbourne Health
has put in place appropriate internal controls and
processes to ensure that reported data reasonably
reflects actual performance. Melbourne Health has
critically reviewed these controls and processes during
the year.

Professor Daryl Williams
Acting Chief Executive
Melbourne
8 August 2016

Responsible Bodies Declaration
In accordance with the Financial Management
Act 1994, we are pleased to present the Report of
Operations for Melbourne Health for the year ending
30 June 2016.

Mr Michael Gorton
Acting Chairman
Professor Daryl Williams
Acting Chief Executive

Melbourne
8 August 2016

Melbourne
8 August 2016

Professor Daryl Williams
Acting Chief Executive
Melbourne
8 August 2016
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Disclosure Index
The annual report of the Melbourne Health is prepared in accordance with all relevant Victorian legislation.
This index has been prepared to facilitate identification of the Department’s compliance with statutory
disclosure requirements.

MINISTERIAL DIRECTIONS – REPORT OF OPERATIONS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Legislation Requirement

Legislation Requirement

Page Ref

Charter & Purpose
FRD 22G

Manner of establishment and the relevant Ministers

FRD 22G

Purpose, functions, powers and duties

Financial statements required under Part 7 of the FMA
7, 74

SD 4.2(a)

Statement of changes in equity

35

7

SD 4.2(b)

Comprehensive operating statement

33

2–6

SD 4.2(b)

Balance sheet

34

10, 12

SD 4.2(b)

Cash flow statement

36

Management & Structure

Other requirements under Standing Directions 4.2

FRD 22G

11

SD 4.2(a)

FRD 22G

Initiatives and key achievements

FRD 22G

Nature and range of services provided

Financial & Other Information

SD 4.2(c)

Compliance with Australian accounting standards
and other authoritative pronouncements
Accountable officer’s declaration
Compliance with Ministerial Directions

37

Rounding of amounts

44

Organisational structure

37–46
30

FRD 10A

Disclosure index

28

SD 4.2(c)

FRD 11A

Disclosure of ex-gratia payments

76

SD 4.2(d)

FRD 21B

Responsible person and executive officer disclosures

FRD 22G

Application and operation of Protected Disclosure
Act 2012
Application and operation of Carers Recognition
Act 2012

17

Legislation
Freedom of Information Act 1982

16

16

Protected Disclosure Act 2012

17

16

16

FRD 22G

Application and operation of Freedom of Information
Act 1982
Compliance with building and maintenance
provisions of Building Act 1993
Details of consultancies over $10,000

Carers Recognition Act 2012

FRD 22G

Details of consultancies under $10,000

FRD 22G

Employment and conduct principles

FRD 22G

Major changes or factors affecting performance

FRD 22G

Occupational health and safety

FRD 22G
FRD 24C

Operational and budgetary objectives and
performance
Reporting of office-based environmental impacts

FRD 22G

Significant changes in financial position during the year

20

FRD 22G

Statement on National Competition Policy

17

FRD 22G

Subsequent events

78

FRD 22G

Summary of the financial results for the year

20

FRD 22G
FRD 25B

Workforce Data Disclosures including a statement on 14, 15, 17
the application of employment and conduct principles
Victorian Industry Participation Policy disclosures
17

FRD 29A

Workforce Data Disclosures

SD 4.2(g)

Specific information requirements

SD 4.2(j)

Sign-off requirements

27

SD 3.4.13

Attestation on data integrity

27

SD 4.5.5

Ministerial Standing Direction 4.5.5
compliance attestation

27

FRD 22G
FRD 22G
FRD 22G

28

Page Ref
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74, 75

17–18
19
19
14, 15, 17
2–6, 20
14, 15
20, 21–26
18

14, 15
2–6

Victorian Industry Participation Policy Act 2003
Building Act 1993
Financial Management Act 1994

17
17, 18
2, 6, 30, 37, 74

Financial Statements

30
31
33
34
35
36
37

Melbourne Health Board Member’s, Accountable Officer’s
and Chief Finance & Accounting Officer’s Declaration
Independent Audit Report
Melbourne Health Comprehensive Operating Statement
Melbourne Health Balance Sheet
Melbourne Health Statement of Changes in Equity
Melbourne Health Cash Flow Statement
Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements
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Melbourne Health Board Member’s,
Accountable Officer’s and Chief Finance
& Accounting Officer’s Declaration
The attached financial statements for Melbourne Health have been prepared in accordance with Direction
4.2 of the Standing Directions of the Minister for Finance under the Financial Management Act 1994, applicable
Financial Reporting Directions, Australian Accounting Standards including Interpretations, and other mandatory
professional reporting requirements.
We further state that, in our opinion, the information set out in the comprehensive operating statement, balance
sheet, statement of changes in equity, cash flow statement and accompanying notes, presents fairly the financial
transactions during the year ended 30 June 2016 and the financial position of Melbourne Health 30 June 2016.
At the time of signing, we are not aware of any circumstance which would render any particulars included in the
financial statements to be misleading or inaccurate.
We authorise the attached financial statements for issue on this day.

30

Mr Michael Gorton
Acting Chairman

Professor Daryl Williams
Acting Chief Executive

Melbourne
8 August 2016

Melbourne
8 August 2016
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Mr George Kapitelli
Executive Director
Finance & Logistics
Melbourne Health
8 August 2016

Independent Audit Report
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Independent Audit Report (continued)
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Melbourne Health Comprehensive Operating Statement
Melbourne Health
Comprehensive Operating Statement

For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2016

For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2016

Note

Revenue from Operating Activities
Revenue from Non-Operating Activities
Revenue from Inter Hospital Inventory Sale
Employee Expenses
Non Salary Labour Costs
Supplies and Consumables
Other Expenses
Expenses from Inter Hospital Inventory Purchase

Parent Entity

Parent Entity

Consolidated

Consolidated

2016
$'000

2015
$'000

2016
$'000

2015
$'000

980,849
6,273
25,900
(704,071)
(15,206)
(163,853)
(106,677)
(25,900)

931,545
8,003
25,624
(669,808)
(14,429)
(152,255)
(104,436)
(25,624)

979,002
8,291
25,900
(704,224)
(15,206)
(163,853)
(106,816)
(25,900)

931,702
8,020
25,624
(669,959)
(14,429)
(152,255)
(104,609)
(25,624)

(2,685)

(1,380)

(2,806)

(1,530)

34,680
(48,574)
(3,461)
(6,027)

26,720
(392)
(48,091)
(3,033)
(1,921)
-

34,680
(48,574)
(3,461)
(6,027)

26,720
(392)
(48,091)
(3,033)
(1,921)
-

(26,067)

(28,097)

(26,188)

(28,247)

17

31,521

202

31,521

202

17

(1,872)

(68)

(1,872)

(68)

29,649

134

29,649

134

3,582

(27,963)

3,461

(28,113)

2
2
2
3
3
3
3
3

Net Result Before Capital & Specific Items
Capital Purpose Income
Impairment of Financial Assets
Depreciation and Amortisation
Specific Expenses
Expenditure for Capital Purpose
Assets Provided Free of Charge

2
3
4
3b
3
3c

NET RESULT FOR THE YEAR
Other comprehensive income
Changes in Physical Asset Revaluation Surplus
Changes to Financial Assets Available-for-sale Revaluation
Surplus
Total other comprehensive income
COMPREHENSIVE RESULT FOR THE YEAR

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Melbourne
Health Balance Sheet
Melbourne Health
As at 30 June 2016

Balance Sheet

As at 30 June 2016

Note Parent Entity
2016
$'000
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables
Inventories
Prepayments and Other Assets
Total Current Assets
Non-Current Assets
Receivables
Investments and Other Financial Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment
Intangible Assets
Total Non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
Current Liabilities
Payables
Borrowings
Provisions
Other Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Borrowings
Provisions
Total Non-Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS
EQUITY
Property, Plant & Equipment Revaluation Surplus
Financial Asset Available for Sale Revaluation Surplus
Restricted Specific Purpose Surplus
Contributed Capital
Accumulated Surpluses/(Deficits)
TOTAL EQUITY
Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilities
Commitments

5
6
8
9

52,493
58,294
7,568
31,402
149,757

56,974
55,207
7,528
23,421
143,130

52,750
58,297
7,568
31,405
150,020

57,215
55,212
7,527
23,424
143,378

6
7
10
11

17,473
1,323
679,011
2,773
700,580
850,337

9,249
6,334
647,499
2,231
665,313
808,443

17,473
315
679,015
2,773
699,576
849,596

9,249
5,471
647,503
2,231
664,454
807,832

12
13
14
16

83,135
412
180,711
2,782
267,040

73,939
389
171,997
1,960
248,285

82,421
412
180,755
2,782
266,370

73,225
389
172,035
1,960
247,609

13
14

1,539
30,695
32,234
299,274
551,063

1,451
24,236
25,687
273,972
534,471

1,539
30,701
32,240
298,610
550,986

1,451
24,241
25,692
273,301
534,531

17a
17a
17a
17b
17c

332,382
(272)
39,724
371,760
(192,531)
551,063

300,861
1,601
33,852
358,751
(160,594)
534,471

332,382
39,377
371,760
(192,533)
550,986

300,861
1,872
33,643
358,751
(160,596)
534,531

21
20

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Parent Entity Consolidated Consolidated
2015
2016
2015
$'000
$'000
$'000

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Balance at 30 June 2016

Net result for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year
Transfer to contributed capital
Transfer to accumulated surplus

Balance at 30 June 2015

Net result for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year
Transfer to contributed capital
Transfer to accumulated surplus

Balance at 1 July 2014

Parent

Balance at 30 June 2016

Net result for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year
Transfer to contributed capital
Transfer to accumulated surplus
Other - VCCC

Balance at 30 June 2015

Net result for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year
Transfer to contributed capital
Transfer to accumulated surplus
Other - VCCC

Balance at 1 July 2014

Consolidated

For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2016

Melbourne Health
Statement of Changes in Equity

17c
17a
17b
17a,c
17c

17c
17a
17b
17a,c
17c

Note

332,382

31,521
-

300,861

202
-

300,659

Property, Plant &
Equipment
Revaluation
Surplus
$'000

332,382

31,521
-

300,861

202
-

300,659

Property, Plant &
Equipment
Revaluation
Surplus
$'000

-

(1,872)
-

1,872

(68)
-

1,940

39,377

5,734
-

33,643

4,352
-

29,291

$'000

371,760

13,009
-

358,751

53,808
-

304,943

$'000

$'000

(272)

(1,872)
(1)

1,601

(68)
-

1,669

39,724

5,872

33,852

5,451

28,401

$'000

371,760

13,009
-

358,751

53,808
-

304,943

$'000

Restricted Specific Contributions by
Financial Asset
Available for Sale
Purpose Surplus
Owners
Revaluation Surplus

$'000

Financial Asset
Restricted Specific Contributions by
Available for Sale
Purpose Surplus
Owners
Revaluation Surplus

(192,531)

(26,067)
(5,870)

(160,594)

(28,097)
(5,449)

(127,048)

$'000

Accumulated
Surpluses/
(Deficits)

(192,533)

(26,188)
(5,734)
(15)

(160,596)

(28,247)
(4,352)
(18)

(127,979)

$'000

Accumulated
Surpluses/
(Deficits)

551,063

(26,067)
29,649
13,009
1

534,471

(28,097)
134
53,808
2

508,624

$'000

Total

550,986

(26,188)
29,649
13,009
(15)

534,531

(28,247)
134
53,808
(18)

508,854

$'000

Total

Melbourne Health Statement of Changes in Equity

For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2016
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Melbourne Health Cash Flow Statement
Melbourne Health
Cash Flow Statement

For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2016
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2016
Note

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Grants from Government
Capital Grants from Government
Patient and Resident Fees Received
Private Practice Fees Received
Donations and Bequests Received
Capital Donations and Bequests Received
GST Received from/(paid to) ATO
Recoupment from private practice for use of hospital
facilities
Interest Received
Dividend Received
Other Receipts
Total Receipts
Employee Expenses Paid
Non Salary Labour Costs
Payments for Supplies & Consumables
Other Payments
Total Payments
NET CASH FLOW FROM/(USED IN) OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

18

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for Non-Financial Assets
Purchase of Investments
Proceeds from sale of Non-Financial Assets
Proceeds from sale of Investments
NET CASH FLOW FROM/(USED IN) INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Borrowings
Contributed Capital from Government
NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS HELD
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF
FINANCIAL YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF
5
FINANCIAL YEAR

Parent Entity
2016
$'000

Melbourne Health Annual Report 2015/16

Consolidated
2016
$'000

Consolidated
2015
$'000

764,207
32,715
48,725
29,461
4,164
6
28,417

730,609
23,986
50,510
28,289
4,114
24,233

764,207
32,715
48,725
29,461
4,164
6
28,417

730,609
23,986
50,510
28,289
4,114
24,233

206
2,196
376
131,458
1,041,931

220
2,991
381
117,839
983,172

206
2,221
376
161,374
1,071,872

220
3,007
381
144,710
1,010,059

(692,793)
(7,182)
(166,479)
(142,944)
(1,009,398)

(667,541)
(6,002)
(154,086)
(139,785)
(967,414)

(692,939)
(7,182)
(190,572)
(148,776)
(1,039,469)

(667,693)
(6,002)
(177,371)
(143,400)
(994,466)

32,533

15,758

32,403

15,593

(55,463)
(460)
201
4,788

(27,511)
(183)
8,251
-

(55,462)
(315)
201
4,788

(27,512)
8,251
-

(50,934)

(19,443)

(50,788)

(19,261)

90
13,008

3,418

90
13,008

3,418

13,098

3,418

13,098

3,418

(5,303)

(267)

(5,287)

(250)

55,015

55,282

55,255

55,505

49,712

55,015

49,968

55,255

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Parent Entity
2015
$'000

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements
Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies

These annual financial statements represent the
audited general purpose financial statements
for Melbourne Health for the period ending
30 June 2016. The purpose of the report is to
provide users with information about the Health
Services’ stewardship of resources entrusted to it.
(a) Statement of compliance
These financial statements are general purpose
financial statements which have been prepared
in accordance with the Financial Management
Act 1994 and applicable Australian Accounting
Standards (AASs) which include interpretations
issued by the Australian Accounting Standards
Board (AASB). They are presented in a manner
consistent with the requirements of AASB 101
Presentation of Financial Statements.
The financial statements also comply with
relevant Financial Reporting Directions (FRDs)
issued by the Department of Treasury and
Finance and relevant Standing Directions (SDs)
authorised by the Minister for Finance.
Melbourne Health is a not-for-profit entity
and therefore applies the additional Australian
paragraphs applicable to “not-for-profit” entities
under the AASs. The annual financial statements
were authorised for issue by the Board of
Melbourne Health on 8 August 2016.
(b) Basis of accounting preparation and
measurement
Accounting policies are selected and applied
in a manner which ensures that the resulting
financial information satisfies the concepts of
relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that
the substance of the underlying transactions or
other events is reported.
The accounting policies set out below have
been applied in preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2016
and the comparative information presented
in these financial statements for the year ended
30 June 2015.
The going concern basis was used to prepare
the financial statements.
These financial statements are presented
in Australian dollars, the functional and
presentation currency of Melbourne Health.
The financial statements, except for cash flow
information, have been prepared using the
accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual
basis, items are recognised as assets, liabilities,
equity, income or expenses when they satisfy
the definitions and recognition criteria for those
items, that is they are recognised in the reporting
period to which they relate, regardless of when
cash is received or paid.

The financial statements are prepared in
accordance with the historical cost convention,
except for:
1) Non-current physical assets which, subsequent
to acquisition, are measured at revalued
amount being their fair value at the date of the
revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent impairment losses.
Revaluations are made and are re-assessed
with sufficient regularity when new indices are
published by the Valuer General to ensure that
the carrying amounts do not materially differ
from their fair values;
2) Derivative financial instruments, managed
investment schemes, certain debt securities and
investment properties after initial recognition,
which are measured at fair value with changes
reflected in the comprehensive operating
statement (fair value through profit and loss);

Consistent with AASB 13 Fair Value
Measurement, Melbourne Health determines
the policies and procedures for both recurring
fair value measurements such as property, plant
and equipment, investment properties and
financial instruments, and for non-recurring
fair value measurements such as non-financial
physical assets held for sale, in accordance
with the requirements of AASB 13 and the
relevant FRDs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:
• 
Level 1 – Quoted (unadjusted) market
prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities.

3) Available-for-sale investments which are
measured at fair value with movements reflected
in equity until the asset is derecognised
(i.e. other comprehensive income); and

• 
Level 2 – Valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable.

4) The fair value of assets other than land
is generally based on their depreciated
replacement value.

• 
Level 3 – Valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

In the application of AASs management is
required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on professional judgments
derived from historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures,
Melbourne Health has determined classes of
assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability
and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period or in the
period of the revision and future periods if
the revision affects both current and future
periods. Judgements made by management in
the application of AASs that have significant
effects on the financial statements and estimates
relate to:
1) The fair value of land, buildings, plant and
equipment (refer to Note 1(k));
2) Actuarial assumptions for employee benefit
provisions based on likely tenure of existing staff,
patterns of leave claims, future salary movements
and future discount rates (refer to Note 1(l));
3) Superannuation expense (refer to Note 15);
4) Equities and management investment
schemes classified at level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy.

In addition, Melbourne Health determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels
in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
The Valuer-General Victoria (VGV)
is Melbourne Health’s independent
valuation agency.
Melbourne Health, in conjunction with VGV
monitors the changes in the fair value of each
asset and liability through relevant data sources
to determine whether revaluation is required.
(c) Reporting Entity
The financial statements include all the
controlled activities of Melbourne Health.
Its principal address is:
c/o The Royal Melbourne Hospital
Grattan Street, Victoria 3050.
A description of the nature of Melbourne
Health’s operations and its principal activities is
included in the report of operations, which does
not form part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Principles of Consolidation
In accordance with AASB 127 Consolidated
Financial Statements, the consolidated financial
statements of Melbourne Health incorporates
the assets and liabilities of all entities controlled
by Melbourne Health as at 30 June 2016 and
their income and expenses for that part of the
reporting period in which control existed. The
consolidated financial statements exclude bodies
of Melbourne Health that are not controlled
by Melbourne Health, and therefore are not
consolidated. Control exists when Melbourne
Health has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities. In assessing control,
potential voting rights that presently
are exercisable are taken into account.
Where control of an entity is obtained during
the financial period, its results are included in
the comprehensive operating statement from
the date on which control commenced. Where
control ceases during a financial period, the
entity’s results are included for that part of
the period in which control existed. Where
dissimilar accounting policies are adopted by
entities and their effect is considered material,
adjustments are made to ensure consistent
policies are adopted in these financial statements.
Intersegment Transactions
Transactions between segments within
Melbourne Health have been eliminated
to reflect the extent of Melbourne Health’s
operations as a group.
Jointly controlled assets or operations
Interests in jointly controlled assets or operations
are not consolidated by Melbourne Health, but
are accounted for in accordance with the policy
outlined in Note 1(j) Financial Assets.
Melbourne Health holds 10% interest in jointly
controlled assets and operations of Victorian
Comprehensive Cancer Centre Limited.
(e) Scope and presentation of financial
statements
Fund Accounting
Melbourne Health operates on a fund
accounting basis and maintains three funds:
Operating, Specific Purpose and Capital
Funds. Melbourne Health’s Capital and
Specific Purpose Funds include unspent capital
donations and receipts from fundraising
activities conducted solely in respect of
these funds.

Comprehensive operating statement
The comprehensive operating statement includes
the subtotal entitled ‘net result before capital &
specific items’ to enhance the understanding of
the financial performance of Melbourne Health.
This subtotal reports the result excluding items
such as capital grants, assets received or provided
free of charge, depreciation, expenditure using
capital purpose income and items of an unusual
nature and amount such as specific income and
expenses. The exclusion of these items is made
to enhance matching of income and expenses so
as to facilitate the comparability and consistency
of results between years and Victorian Public
Health Services. The ‘net result before capital
& specific items’ is used by the management
of Melbourne Health, the Department of
Health and Human Services and the Victorian
Government to measure the ongoing operating
performance of Health Services.
Capital and specific items, which are excluded
from this sub-total, comprise:
1) Capital purpose income, which comprises
all tied grants, donations and bequests received
for the purpose of acquiring non-current assets,
such as capital works, plant and equipment
or intangible assets. It also includes donations
of plant and equipment (refer Note 1(f)).
Consequently the recognition of revenue as
capital purpose income is based on the intention
of the provider of the revenue at the time the
revenue is provided.
2) Specific expenditure includes non-current
asset revaluation increments/decrements, as
described in Note 3b.
3) Impairment of financial and non-financial
assets, includes all impairment losses
(and reversal of previous impairment losses),
which have been recognised in accordance
with Note 1(h).
4) Depreciation and amortisation, as described
in Note 1(g).
5) Expenditure using capital purpose income
comprises expenditure which either falls below
the asset capitalisation threshold or does not
meet asset recognition criteria and therefore
does not result in the recognition of an asset
in the balance sheet, where funding for that
expenditure is from capital purpose income.
6) Assets provided free of charge, as described in
Note 3c.
Other economic flows are changes arising from
market remeasurements. They include:
– gains and losses from disposal of
non-financial assets
– revaluations and impairments of
non-financial physical and intangible assets
– fair value changes of financial instruments

Balance sheet
Assets and liabilities are categorised either
as current or non-current (non-current
being those assets or liabilities expected to
be recovered/settled more than 12 months
after reporting period).
Statement of changes in equity
The Statement of Changes in Equity presents
reconciliations of each non-owner and owner
equity opening balance at the beginning of
the reporting period to the closing balance at
the end of the reporting period. It also shows
separately changes due to amounts recognised
in the comprehensive result and amounts
recognised in other comprehensive income.
Cash flow statement
Cash flows are classified according to whether
or not they arise from operating activities,
investing activities or financing activities. This
classification is consistent with requirements
under AASB 107 Statement of Cash Flows.
(f) Income from transactions
Income is recognised in accordance with AASB
118 Revenue and is recognised as to the extent
that it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to Melbourne Health and the income
can be reliably measured at fair value. Unearned
income at reporting date is reported as income
received in advance.
Amounts disclosed as revenue are, where
applicable, net of returns, allowances and duties
and taxes.
Government Grants and other transfers of
income (other than contributions by owners)
In accordance with AASB 1004 Contributions,
government grants and other transfers of
income (other than contributions by owners)
are recognised as income when Melbourne
Health gains control of the underlying assets
irrespective of whether conditions are imposed
on Melbourne Health’s use of the contributions.
Contributions are deferred as income in advance
when Melbourne Health has a present obligation
to repay them and the present obligation can be
reliably measured.
Indirect Contributions from the Department
of Health and Human Services
– I nsurance is recognised as revenue following
advice from the Department of Health and
Human Services.
–L
 ong Service Leave (LSL) – Revenue is
recognised upon finalisation of movements
in LSL liability in line with the arrangements
set out in the Finance and Corporate Services
Division Hospital Circular 05/2013.
Patient and Resident Fees
Patient fees are recognised as revenue at the time
invoices are raised or accrued when a patient is
discharged or a service is performed.
Private Practice Fees
Private practice fees are recognised as revenue
at the time invoices are raised.
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The name and details of the major employee superannuation funds
Depreciation

NOTES TO AND FORMING
PART OFassets,
THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
All infrastructure
buildings, plant
and equipment and other

assets held for sale, and investment properties). Depreciation begi
necessary for it to be capable of operating in a manner intended by

Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from commercial activities
Revenue from commercial activities such as
commercial laboratory medicine is recognised
at the time invoices are raised.
Donations and Other Bequests
Donations and bequests are recognised as
revenue when received. If donations are for
a special purpose, they may be appropriated
to a reserve, such as the specific restricted
purpose reserve.
Dividend Revenue
Dividend revenue is recognised when the
right to receive payment is established.
Interest Revenue
Interest revenue is recognised on a time
proportionate basis that takes into account
the effective yield of the financial asset.
Sale of investments
The gain/loss on the sale of investments is
recognised when the investment is realised.
Fair value of assets and services received free
of charge or for nominal consideration
Resources provided or received free of charge
or for nominal consideration are recognised
at their fair value when the transferee obtains
control over them, irrespective of whether
restrictions or conditions are imposed over
the use of the contributions, unless received
from another Health Service or agency as a
consequence of a restructuring of administrative
arrangements. In the latter case, such
transfer will be recognised at carrying value.
Contributions in the form of services are only
recognised when a fair value can be reliably
determined and the services would have been
purchased if not donated.
Other income
Other income includes non-property rental,
dividends, forgiveness of liabilities, and bad
debt reversals.
(g) Expense Recognition
Expenses are recognised as they are incurred
and reported in the financial year to which
they relate.
Cost of Goods Sold
Costs of goods sold are recognised when the
sale of an item occurs by transferring the cost
or value of the item/s from inventories.
Employee expenses
Employee expenses include:
• Wages and salaries;
• Leave entitlements;
• Termination payments;
• Workcover premiums; and
• Superannuation expenses which are
reported differently depending upon
whether employees are members of defined
benefit or defined contribution plans.

Defined contribution superannuation plans
In relation to defined contribution (i.e.
accumulation) superannuation plans, the
associated expense is simply the employer
contributions that are paid or payable in respect
of employees who are members of these plans
during the reporting period. Contributions to
defined contribution superannuation plans are
expensed when incurred.
Defined benefit superannuation plans
The amount charged to the comprehensive
operating statement in respect of defined
benefit superannuation plans represents the
contributions made by Melbourne Health to the
superannuation plans in respect of the services
of current Melbourne Health staff during the
reporting period. Superannuation contributions
are made to the plans based on the relevant rules
of each plan and are based upon actuarial advice.
Employees of Melbourne Health are entitled to
receive superannuation benefits and Melbourne
Health contributes to both the defined benefit
and defined contribution plans. The defined
benefit plan(s) provide benefits based on years
of service and final average salary.
The name and details of the major employee
superannuation funds and contributions made
by Melbourne Health are shown in Note 15.
Depreciation
All infrastructure assets, buildings, plant and
equipment and other non-financial physical
assets that have finite useful lives are depreciated
(i.e. excludes land, assets held for sale, and
investment properties). Depreciation begins
when the asset is available for use, which is when
it is in the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in a manner intended
by management.
Intangible produced assets with finite lives are
depreciated as an expense from transactions
on a systematic basis over the asset’s useful
life. Depreciation is generally calculated on a
straight line basis, at a rate that allocates the
asset value, less any estimated residual value
over its estimated useful life. Estimates of
the remaining useful lives, residual value and
depreciation method for all assets are reviewed
at least annually, and adjustments made where
appropriate. This depreciation charge is not
funded by the Department of Health and
Human Services. Assets with a cost in excess
of $1,000 are capitalised and depreciation
has been provided on depreciable assets so as
to allocate their cost or valuation over their
estimated useful lives.

Intangible produced assets with finite lives are depreciated as an e
generally calculated on a straight line basis, at a rate that allocates
the remaining useful lives, residual value and depreciation method
depreciation charge is not funded by the Department of Health and
The
table
indicatesassets
the expected
beenfollowing
provided on
depreciable
so as to allocate their cost or

useful lives of non current assets on which the
depreciation
charges are based.
The following table indicates the expected useful lives of non curre
Buildings
- Structure Shell
Building Fabric
- Site Engineering
Services and Central
Plant
Central Plant
- Fit Out
- Trunk Reticulated
Building Systems
Plant and Equipment
Medical Equipment
Computers and
Communication
Furniture and Fitting
Motor Vehicles
Intangible Assets
Leasehold
Improvements

2016

2015

5 to 52
years

5 to 52
years

3 to 32
years

3 to 32
years

2 to 25
years
1 to 22
years
10 years
10 years

2 to 25
years
1 to 22
years
10 years
10 years

3 years

3 years

10 years
4 years
3 years
2 to 10
years

10 years
4 years
3 years
2 to 10
years

As
of the
thebuildings
buildingsvaluation,
valuation,
As part
part of
building values were component
building values were componentised and each
component
assessed for its useful life which is
Amortisation
represented
Amortisationabove.
is allocated to intangible assets with finite useful lives

when the asset is available for use, that is, when it is in the location
Amortisation
management. The amortisation period and the amortisation metho
Amortisation
is allocated
intangible
reporting period.
In addition,toan
assessment is made at each repor
assets
withIf finite
on a systematic
impaired.
so, theuseful
asset lives
concerned
is tested as to whether its carr
(typically straight-line) basis over the asset’s
useful
life.assets
Amortisation
begins
whenlives
theare
asset
Intangible
with indefinite
useful
not amortised, but
livesis,
ofwhen
intangible
assets
isimpaired.
availableThe
foruseful
use, that
it is in
the that are not being am
support an
indefinite
useful
life assessment
location
and
condition
necessary
for it to for
be that asset. In additi
comparing the recoverable amount for each asset with its carrying
capable of operating in the manner intended by
management.
The amortisation period and the
· annually; and
amortisation method for an intangible asset with
whenever
is an
indication
that the
intangible
a· finite
useful there
life are
reviewed
at least
at the
end asset may b
of each annual reporting period. In addition,
Any excess of the carrying amount over the recoverable amount is
an
assessment
is made
at each
reporting
to over a 3 yea
Intangible
assets
with finite
useful
lives aredate
amortised
determine whether there are indicators that the
Finance Costs
intangible
asset concerned is impaired. If so,
Finance
are recognised
as to
expenses
the period in which th
the
assetcosts
concerned
is tested as
whetherinits
carrying
value
exceeds
its
recoverable
amount.
Finance costs include:

· interestassets
on bank
overdrafts
anduseful
short-term
Intangible
with
indefinite
lives and
are long-term borro
not
amortised, but are tested for impairment
· amortisation of discounts or premiums relating to borrowings; a
annually or whenever there is an indication that
· asset
amortisation
ancillary costs
incurred
in connection
with the a
the
may beofimpaired.
The useful
lives
of
intangible assets that are not being amortised
Other Operating Expenses
are
reviewed each period to determine whether
Other operating expenses generally represent the day-to-day runni
events and circumstances continue to support an
indefinite useful life assessment for that asset.
In addition, Melbourne Health tests all
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
for impairment by comparing the recoverable
amount for each asset with its carrying amount:

• 
annually; and
• 
whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired.
Any excess of the carrying amount over
the recoverable amount is recognised as an
impairment loss. Intangible assets with finite
useful lives are amortised over a 3 year period.

Melbourne Health Annual Report 2015/16

39

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Finance Costs
Finance costs are recognised as expenses in
the period in which they are incurred.
Finance costs include:
• interest

on bank overdrafts and short-term
and long-term borrowings;
• a mortisation of discounts or premiums
relating to borrowings; and
• amortisation of ancillary costs incurred
in connection with the arrangement
of borrowings.
Other Operating Expenses
Other operating expenses generally represent
the day-to-day running costs incurred in normal
operations and include:
Supplies and consumables
Supplies and services costs which are recognised
as an expense in the reporting period in which
they are incurred. The carrying amounts of any
inventories held for distribution are expensed
when distributed.
Bad and doubtful debts
Refer to Note 1(j) Impairment of financial assets.
(h) Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income measures the
change in volume or value of assets or liabilities
that do not result from transactions.
Net gain/(loss) on non-financial assets
Net gain/(loss) on non-financial assets and
liabilities includes realised and unrealised
gains and losses as follows:
Revaluation gains/(losses) of non-financial
physical assets
Refer to Note 1(k) Revaluations of
non-financial assets.
Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments
Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments
includes:
• r ealised and unrealised gains and losses
from revaluations of financial instruments
at fair value;
• impairment and reversal of impairment
for financial instruments at amortised cost
(refer to Note 1(j));
• disposals of financial assets and derecognition
of financial liabilities.
Impairment of non-financial assets
Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives (and intangible assets not available
for use) are tested annually for impairment and
whenever there is an indication that the asset
may be impaired. Refer to Note 1(k).
Revaluations of financial instrument at
fair value
Refer to Note 1(i) Financial instruments.
Share of net profits/(losses) of associates
and joint entities, excluding dividends.
Refer to Note 1(c) Basis of consolidation.
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(i) Financial Instruments
Financial instruments arise out of contractual
agreements that give rise to a financial asset
of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity. Due to the
nature of Melbourne Health’s activities, certain
financial assets and financial liabilities arise
under statute rather than a contract. Such
financial assets and financial liabilities do not
meet the definition of financial instruments in
AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Presentation.
For example, statutory receivables arising from
taxes, fines and penalties do not meet the
definition of financial instruments as they do
not arise under contract.
Where relevant, for note disclosure purposes,
a distinction is made between those financial
assets and financial liabilities that meet the
definition of financial instruments in accordance
with AASB 132 and those that do not.
The following refers to financial instruments
unless otherwise stated.
Categories of non-derivative financial
instruments:
Financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
Financial assets are categorised as fair value
through profit or loss at trade date if they are
classified as held for trading or designated
as such upon initial recognition. Financial
instrument assets are designated at fair value
through profit or loss on the basis that the
financial assets form part of a group of financial
assets that are managed by Melbourne Health
based on their fair values, and have their
performance evaluated in accordance with
documented risk management and investment
strategies.
Financial instruments at fair value through
profit or loss are initially measured at fair value
and attributable transaction costs are expensed
as incurred. Subsequently, any changes in fair
value are recognised in the net result as other
comprehensive income. Any dividend or interest
on a financial asset is recognised in the net result
for the year.
Reclassification of financial instruments at
fair value through profit or loss
Financial instrument assets that meet the
definition of loans and receivables may be
reclassified out of the fair value through profit
and loss category into the loans and receivables
category, where they would have met the
definition of loans and receivables had they
not been required to be classified as fair value
through profit and loss. In these cases, the
financial instrument assets may be reclassified
out of the fair value through profit and loss
category, if there is the intention and ability
to hold them for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are financial instrument
assets with fixed and determinable payments
that are not quoted on an active market.
These assets are initially recognised at fair
value plus any directly attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial measurement,
loans and receivables are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment.
Loans and receivables category includes cash
and deposits (refer to Note 1(j)), term deposits
with maturity greater than three months, trade
receivables, loans and other receivables, but not
statutory receivables.
Held-to-maturity investments
If Melbourne Health has the positive intent
and ability to hold nominated investments to
maturity, then such financial assets may be
classified as held to maturity. Held to maturity
financial assets are recognised initially at fair
value plus any directly attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition held
to maturity financial assets are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment losses.
Melbourne Health makes limited use of this
classification because any sale or reclassification
of more than an insignificant amount of held
to maturity investments not close to their
maturity, would result in the whole category
being reclassified as available for sale. Melbourne
Health would also be prevented from classifying
investment securities as held to maturity for the
current and the following two financial years.
The held to maturity category includes certain
term deposits which Melbourne Health intends
to hold to maturity.
Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial instrument assets
are those designated as available-for-sale or not
classified in any other category of financial
instrument asset. Such assets are initially
recognised at fair value. Gains and losses arising
from changes in fair value are recognised directly
in equity until the investment is disposed of or
is determined to be impaired, at which time the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
equity is included in net result for the period.
Fair value is determined in the manner described
in Note 19(f).
Reclassification of available-for-sale
financial assets
Available-for sale financial instrument
assets that meet the definition of loans and
receivables may be classified into the loans
and receivables category if there is the intention
and ability to hold them for the foreseeable
future or until maturity.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial instrument liabilities are initially
recognised on the date they are originated.
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Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
They are initially measured at fair value plus
any directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial
instruments are measured at amortised cost with
any difference between the initial recognised
amount and the redemption value being
recognised in profit and loss over the period of
the interest-bearing liability, using the effective
interest rate method.
Financial instrument liabilities measured at
amortised cost include all of Melbourne Health’s
contractual payables, deposits held and advances
received and interest-bearing arrangements other
than those designated at fair value through profit
or loss.
(j) Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents recognised on the
balance sheet comprise cash on hand and cash
at bank, deposits at call and highly liquid
investments with an original maturity of three
months or less, which are held for the purpose
of meeting short term cash commitments rather
than for investment purposes, which are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
Receivables
Receivables consist of:
– Statutory receivables, which includes
predominantly amounts owing from the
Victorian Government and GST input
tax credits recoverable; and
– Contractual receivables, which includes mainly
debtors in relation to goods and services and
accrued investment income.
Receivables that are contractual are classified
as financial instruments and categorised as
loans and receivables. Statutory receivables
are recognised and measured similarly to
contractual receivables (except for impairment),
but are not classified as financial instruments
because they do not arise from a contract.
Receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method, less any
accumulated impairment.
Trade debtors are carried at nominal amounts
due and are due for settlement within 30 days
from the date of recognition. Collectability of
debts is reviewed on an ongoing basis, and debts
which are known to be uncollectible are written
off. A provision for doubtful debts is recognised
when there is objective evidence that the debts
may not be collected and bad debts are written
off when identified.

Investments and Other Financial Assets
Investments are recognised and derecognised
on trade date where purchase or sale of an
investment is under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the investment within the
timeframe established by the market concerned
and are initially measured at fair value, net of
transaction costs.

Impairment of Financial Assets
At the end of each reporting period
Melbourne Health assesses whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. All
financial assets, except those measured at
fair value through profit and loss, are subject
to annual review for impairment.

Investments are classified in the following
categories:

Receivables are assessed for bad and doubtful
debts on a regular basis. Bad debts considered
as written off and allowances for doubtful
receivables are expensed.

– Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss;
– Loans and receivables; and
– Available-for-sale financial assets.
Melbourne Health classifies its other financial
assets between current and non-current assets
based on the purpose for which the assets
were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its other financial assets at
initial recognition.
Melbourne Health assesses at each balance
sheet date whether a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. All financial assets,
except those measured at fair value through
profit or loss are subject to annual review for
impairment.
Investments in joint operations
In respect of any interest in joint operations,
Melbourne Health recognises in the financial
statements:
• the assets that it controls jointly;
• the liabilities that it incurs;
• expenses that it incurs jointly; and
• the share of income that it earns from
selling outputs of the joint operation.
Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part
of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognised when:
• the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or
• Melbourne Health retains the right to receive
cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full without material
delay to a third party under a ‘pass through’
arrangement; or
• Melbourne Health has transferred its rights
to receive cash flows from the asset and either:
(a) has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset; or
(b) has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the fair value of an investment in an
equity instrument at balance date has reduced
by 20 percent or more than its cost price or
where its fair value has been less than its cost
price for a period of 12 or more months, the
financial asset is treated as impaired.
In assessing impairment of statutory (noncontractual) financial assets, which are not
financial instruments, professional judgement is
applied in assessing materiality using estimates,
averages and other computational methods in
accordance with AASB 136 Impairment of Assets.
Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments
Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments
includes:
– r ealised and unrealised gains and losses from
revaluations of financial instruments that are
designated at fair value through profit or loss
or held-for-trading;
– impairment and reversal of impairment for
financial instruments at amortised cost; and
–d
 isposals of financial assets and derecognition
of financial liabilities.
Revaluations of financial instruments at fair
value
The revaluation gain/(loss) on financial
instruments at fair value excludes dividends
or interest earned on financial assets.
(k) Non-financial Assets
Inventories
Inventories include goods and other
property held either for sale, consumption
or for distribution at no or nominal cost in
the ordinary course of business operations.
It includes land held for sale and excludes
depreciable assets.
Inventories held for distribution are measured
at cost, adjusted for any loss of service potential.
All other inventories, including land held for
sale, are measured at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Where Melbourne Health has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards or transferred control, the asset is
recognised to the extent of Melbourne Health’s
continuing involvement in the asset.
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Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
The basis used in assessing loss of service
potential for inventories held for distribution
include current replacement cost and technical
or functional obsolescence. Technical
obsolescence occurs when an item still functions
for some or all of the tasks it was originally
acquired to do but no longer matches existing
technologies. Functional obsolescence occurs
when an item no longer functions the way it did
when it was first acquired.
Cost for inventory is measured on the basis of
weighted average cost.
Property, plant and equipment
All non-current physical assets are measured
initially at cost and subsequently revalued at
fair value less accumulated depreciation and
impairment. Where an asset is acquired for no
or nominal cost, the cost is its fair value at the
date of acquisition. Assets transferred as part
of a merger/machinery of government are
transferred at their carrying amount.
More details about the valuation techniques
and inputs used in determining the fair value
of non-financial physical assets are discussed in
Note 10 Property, plant and equipment.
Crown Land is measured at fair value with
regard to the property’s highest and best use
after due consideration is made for any legal
or constructive restrictions imposed on the
asset, public announcements or commitments
made in relation to the intended use of the
asset. Theoretical opportunities that may be
available in relation to the asset(s) are not taken
into account until it is virtually certain that
any restrictions will no longer apply. Therefore,
unless otherwise disclosed, the current use of
these non-financial physical assets will be their
highest and best uses.
Land and Buildings are recognised initially at
cost and subsequently measured at fair value less
accumulated depreciation and impairment.
Leasehold Improvements
The cost of a leasehold improvement is
capitalised as an asset and depreciated over
the shorter of the remaining term of the lease or
the estimated useful life of the improvements.
Plant, equipment and vehicles are recognised
initially at cost and subsequently measured
at fair value less accumulated depreciation
and impairment. Depreciated historical cost
is generally a reasonable proxy for fair value
because of the short lives of the assets concerned.

Revaluations of non-financial physical assets
Non-current physical assets are measured at fair
value and are revalued in accordance with FRD
103F Non-current physical assets. This revaluation
process normally occurs at least every five years,
based upon the asset’s Government Purpose
Classification, but may occur more frequently
if fair value assessments indicate material
changes in values. Independent valuers are
used to conduct these scheduled revaluations
and any interim revaluations are determined in
accordance with the requirements of the FRDs.
Revaluation increments or decrements arise from
differences between an asset's carrying value and
fair value.

Disposal of Non-Financial Assets
Any gain or loss on the sale of non-financial
assets is recognised in the comprehensive
operating statement. Refer to note 1(h) –
‘other comprehensive income’.

Revaluation increments are recognised in ‘other
comprehensive income’ and are credited directly
in equity to the asset revaluation surplus, except
that, to the extent that an increment reverses a
revaluation decrement in respect of that same
class of asset previously recognised as an expense
in net result, the increment is recognised as
income in the net result.

• 
inventories;

Revaluation decrements are recognised in ‘other
comprehensive income’ to the extent that a
credit balance exists in the asset revaluation
surplus in respect of the same class of property,
plant and equipment.
Revaluation increases and revaluation
decreases relating to individual assets within
an asset class are offset against one another
within that class but are not offset in respect
of assets in different classes.
Revaluation surplus is not transferred to
accumulated funds on derecognition of the
relevant asset.
In accordance with FRD 103F, Melbourne
Health’s non-current physical assets were
assessed to determine whether revaluation of
the non-current physical assets was required.
A managerial revaluation of land asset class
was undertaken, refer Note 10b.
Intangible Assets
Intangible assets represent identifiable nonmonetary assets without physical substance such
as patents, trademarks, and computer software
and development costs (where applicable).
Intangible assets are initially recognised at
cost. Subsequently, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Costs incurred subsequent to initial
acquisition are capitalised when it is expected
that additional future economic benefits will
flow to Melbourne Health.
Prepayments
Other non-financial assets include prepayments
which represent payments in advance of receipt
of goods or services or that part of expenditure
made in one accounting period covering a term
extending beyond that period.
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Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite
lives (and intangible assets not yet available
for use) are tested annually for impairment
(as described below) and whenever there is an
indication that the asset may be impaired.
All other non-financial assets are assessed
annually for indications of impairment,
except for:
• 
assets arising from construction contracts.
If there is an indication of impairment, the
assets concerned are tested as to whether their
carrying value exceeds their possible recoverable
amount. Where an asset’s carrying value
exceeds its recoverable amount, the difference
is written-off as an expense except to the extent
that the write-down can be debited to an asset
revaluation surplus amount applicable to that
same class of asset.
If there is an indication that there has been a
change in the estimate of an asset’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised, the carrying amount shall be
increased to its recoverable amount. This reversal
of the impairment loss occurs only to the extent
that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation,
if no impairment loss had been recognised in
prior years.
It is deemed that, in the event of the loss or
destruction of an asset, the future economic
benefits arising from the use of the asset will be
replaced unless a specific decision to the contrary
has been made. The recoverable amount for most
assets is measured at the higher of depreciated
replacement cost and fair value less costs to sell.
Recoverable amount for assets held primarily
to generate net cash inflows is measured at the
higher of the present value of future cash flows
expected to be obtained from the asset and fair
value less costs to sell.
(l) Liabilities
Payables
Payables consist of:
• 
contractual payables which consist
predominantly of accounts payable
representing liabilities for goods and services
provided to Melbourne Health prior to the
end of the financial year that are unpaid,
and arise when Melbourne Health becomes
obliged to make future payments in respect
of the purchase of those goods and services.
The normal credit terms for accounts payable
are usually Nett 30 days.
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Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
• statutory payables, such as goods and services
tax and fringe benefits tax payables.
Contractual payables are classified as financial
instruments and are initially recognised at
fair value, and then subsequently carried at
amortised cost. Statutory payables are recognised
and measured similarly to contractual payables,
but are not classified as financial instruments
and not included in the category of financial
liabilities at amortised cost, because they do
not arise from a contract.
Borrowings
All borrowings are initially recognised at fair
value of the consideration received, less directly
attributable transaction costs. The measurement
basis subsequent to initial recognition depends
on whether Melbourne Health has categorised
its borrowings as either, financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or
loss, or financial liabilities at amortised cost.
Any difference between the initially recognised
amount and the redemption value is recognised
in net result over the period of the borrowing
using the effective interest method.
Provisions
Provisions are recognised when Melbourne
Health has a present obligation, the future
sacrifice of economic benefits is probable,
and the amount of the provision can be
measured reliably.
The amount recognised as a liability is the
best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at reporting date,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated to
settle the present obligation, its carrying amount
is the present value of those cash flows, using
a discount rate that reflects the time value of
money and risks specific to the provision.
When some or all of the economic benefits
required to settle a provision are expected to
be received from a third party, the receivable
is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that recovery will be received and the amount
of the receivable can be measured reliably.
Employee Benefits
This provision arises for benefits accruing to
employees in respect of wages and salaries,
annual leave and long service leave for services
rendered to the reporting date.
Wages and Salaries, Annual Leave,
Sick Leave and Accrued Days Off
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including
non-monetary benefits, annual leave, and
accumulating sick leave are all recognised in
the provision for employee benefits as ‘current
liabilities’, because the health service does not
have an unconditional right to defer settlements
of these liabilities.

Depending on the expectation of the timing
of settlement, liabilities for wages and salaries,
annual leave and sick leave are measured at:

• Present value – if the health service does not
expect to wholly settle within 12 months.

Superannuation liabilities
Melbourne Health does not recognise any
unfunded defined benefit liability in respect of
the superannuation plans because Melbourne
Health has no legal or constructive obligation
to pay future benefits relating to its employees;
its only obligation is to pay superannuation
contributions as they fall due.

Long Service Leave
The liability for long service leave (LSL) is
recognised in the provision for employee
benefits.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expires.

Current Liability – unconditional LSL
(representing 10 or more years of continuous
service) is disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements as a current liability even where
Melbourne Health does not expect to settle
the liability within 12 months because it will
not have the unconditional right to defer the
settlement of the entitlement should an employee
take leave within 12 months.

When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in
the respective carrying amounts is recognised
as an expense in the estimated consolidated
comprehensive operating statement.

• Undiscounted value – if the health service
expects to wholly settle within 12 months; or

The components of this current LSL liability
are measured at:
• present value – component that Melbourne
Health does not expect to settle within 12
months; and
• undiscounted value – component that
Melbourne Health expects to settle within
12 months.
Non-Current Liability – conditional LSL
(representing less than 10 years of continuous
service) is disclosed as a non-current liability.
There is an unconditional right to defer the
settlement of the entitlement until the employee
has completed the requisite years of service.
Conditional LSL is required to be measured at
present value.
Termination Benefits
Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated before the normal
retirement date or when an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits.
Liabilities for termination benefits are recognised
when a detailed plan for the termination has
been developed and a valid expectation has been
raised with those employees affected that the
terminations will be carried out. The liabilities
for termination benefits are recognised in other
creditors unless the amount or timing of the
payments is uncertain, in which case they are
recognised as a provision.
On-Costs
Employee benefit on-costs such as payroll
tax, workers compensation and superannuation
are recognised together with provisions for
employee benefits.

(m) Leases
Leases are classified at their inception as
either operating or finance leases based on the
economic substance of the agreement so as
to reflect the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership.
Leases of property, plant and equipment are
classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.
Operating Leases
Operating lease payments, including any
contingent rentals, are recognised as an
expense in the comprehensive operating
statement on a straight line basis over the
lease term, except where another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern
of the benefits derived from the use of the
leased asset. The leased asset is not recognised in
the balance sheet.
Lease Incentives
All incentives for the agreement of a new or
renewed operating lease are recognised as an
integral part of the net consideration agreed
for the use of the leased asset, irrespective of
the incentive’s nature or form or the timing
of payments.
In the event that lease incentives are received
by the lessee to enter into operating leases,
such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefits of incentives are
recognised as a reduction of rental expense
on a straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset is diminished.
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(n) Equity
Contributed Capital
Consistent with Australian Accounting
Interpretation 1038 Contributions by Owners
Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities

and FRD 119A Contributions by Owners,
appropriations for additions to the net asset
base have been designated as contributed
capital. Other transfers that are in the nature
of contributions or distributions that have
been designated as contributed capital are also
treated as contributed capital.
Property, Plant & Equipment
Revaluation Surplus
The asset revaluation surplus is used to record
increments and decrements on the revaluation
of non-current physical assets.
Financial Asset Available-for-Sale
Revaluation Surplus
The available-for-sale revaluation surplus arises
on the revaluation of available-for-sale financial
assets. Where a revalued financial asset is sold
that portion of the surplus which relates to
that financial asset is effectively realised, and
is recognised in the comprehensive operating
statement. Where a revalued financial asset
is impaired that portion of the surplus which
relates to that financial asset is recognised in
the comprehensive operating statement.
Specific Restricted Purpose Surplus
A specific restricted purpose surplus is
established where Melbourne Health has
possession or title to the funds but has no
discretion to amend or vary the restriction and/
or condition underlying the funds received.
(o) Commitments
Commitments for future expenditure include
operating and capital commitments arising from
contracts. These commitments are disclosed
by way of a note (refer to Note 20) at their
nominal value and are inclusive of the goods
and services tax (“GST”) payable. In addition,
where it is considered appropriate and provides
additional relevant information to users, the net
present values of significant individual projects
are stated. These future expenditures cease to
be disclosed as commitments once the related
liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet.
(p) Contingent assets and contingent
liabilities
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are
not recognised in the balance sheet, but are
disclosed by way of note and, if quantifiable, are
measured at nominal value. Contingent assets
and contingent liabilities are presented inclusive
of GST receivable or payable respectively.
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(q) Goods and Services Tax
Income, expenses and assets are recognised
net of the amount of associated GST, unless
the GST incurred is not recoverable from the
taxation authority. In this case it is recognised
as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or
as part of the expense.
Receivables and payables are stated inclusive
of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The
net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable
to, the taxation authority is included with other
receivables or payables in the balance sheet.
Cash flows are presented on a gross basis.
The GST components of cash flows arising
from investing or financing activities which
are recoverable from, or payable to the
taxation authority, are presented as an operating
cash flow.
Commitments for expenditure and
contingent assets and liabilities are presented
on a gross basis.
(r) Events after the reporting period
Assets, liabilities, income or expenses arise
from past transactions or other past events.
Where the transactions result from an agreement
between Melbourne Health and other parties,
the transactions are only recognised when the
agreement is irrevocable at or before the end
of the reporting period. Adjustments are made
to amounts recognised in the financial
statements for events which occur after the
reporting period and before the date the
financial statements are authorised for issue,
where those events provide information about
conditions which existed in the reporting period.
Note disclosure is made about events between
the end of the reporting period and the date
the financial statements are authorised for issue
where the events relate to conditions which arose
after the end of the reporting period and which
may have a material impact on the results of
subsequent reporting periods.
(s) Foreign currency
All foreign currency transactions during
the financial year are brought to account
using the exchange rate in effect at the date
of the transaction.
(t) Rounding
All amounts shown in the financial statements
are expressed to the nearest $1,000 unless
otherwise stated.
Minor discrepancies in tables between totals
and sum of components are due to rounding.
(u) Australian Accounting Standards issued
that are not yet effective
Certain new Australian accounting standards
and interpretations have been published that
are not mandatory for the 30 June 2016
reporting period.

As at 30 June 2016, the following standards and
interpretations had been issued by the AASB
but were not yet effective. They become effective
for the first financial statements for reporting
periods commencing after the stated operative
dates as detailed in the table below. Melbourne
Health has not and does not intend to adopt
these standards early.

All amounts shown in the financial statements are expressed to the nearest $1,000 unless otherwise stated.
Minor discrepancies in tables between totals and sum of components are due to rounding.
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(u) Australian Accounting Standards issued that are not yet effective

Certain new Australian accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2016 reporting period.

Note
1:June
Summary
significant
accounting
policies
(continued)
As at 30
2016, theof
following
standards
and interpretations
had been
issued by the AASB but were not yet effective. They become effective for the first
financial statements for reporting periods commencing after the stated operative dates as detailed in the table below. Melbourne Health has not and does not
intend to adopt these standards early.
Standard/
Interpretation

Summary

Applicable for annual reporting
periods beginning or ending on

Impact on financial
statements

AASB 9 Financial
instruments

The key changes include the simplified
requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, a new
hedging accounting model and a
revised impairment loss model to
recognise impairment losses earlier, as
opposed to the current approach that
recognises impairment only when
incurred.

1 January 2018

The assessment has identified
that the financial impact of
available for sale assets will
now be reported through other
comprehensive income and no
longer recycled to the profit and
loss.
While the preliminary
assessment has not identified
any material impact arising from
AASB 9, it will continue to be
monitored and assessed.

AASB 2010-7
Amendments to
Australian Accounting
Standards arising from
AASB 9 (December
2010)

The requirements for classifying and
measuring financial liabilities were
added to AASB 9. The existing
requirements for the classification of
financial liabilities and the ability to use
the fair value option have been
retained. However, where the fair value
option is used for financial liabilities the
change in fair value is accounted for as
follows:
• The change in fair value attributable to
changes in credit risk is presented in
other comprehensive income (OCI); and
• Other fair value changes are
presented in profit and loss. If this
approach creates or enlarges an
accounting mismatch in the profit or
loss, the effect of the changes in credit
risk are also presented in profit or loss.

1 January 2018

The assessment has identified
that the amendments are likely
to result in earlier recognition of
impairment losses and at more
regular intervals.
Changes in own credit risk in
respect of liabilities designated
at fair value through profit and
loss will now be presented
within other comprehensive
income.
Hedge accounting will be more
closely aligned with common
risk management practices
making it easier to have an
effective hedge.
For entities with significant
lending activities, an overhaul of
related systems and processes
may be needed.

AASB 2014-1
Amendments to
Australian Accounting
Standards [Part E
Financial Instruments]

Amends various AASs to reflect the
AASB’s decision to defer the mandatory
application date of
AASB 9 to annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 as
a consequence of Chapter 6 Hedge
Accounting, and to amend reduced
disclosure requirements.
Amends various AASs to incorporate
the consequential amendments arising
from the issuance of AASB 9.

1 January 2018

This amending standard will
defer the application period of
AASB 9 to the 2018-19
reporting period in accordance
with the transition requirements.

1 January 2018

The assessment has indicated
that there will be no significant
impact for the public sector.

1 January 2018

The changes in revenue
recognition requirements in
AASB 15 may result in changes
to the timing and amount of
revenue recorded in the
financial statements. The
Standard will also require
additional disclosures on
service revenue and contract
modifications.
A potential impact will be the
upfront recognition of revenue
from licenses that cover
multiple reporting periods.
Revenue that was deferred and
amortised over a period may
now need to be recognised
immediately as a transitional
adjustment against the opening
returned earnings if there are
no former performance
obligations outstanding.

AASB 2014-7
Amendments to
Australian Accounting
Standards arising from
AASB 9
AASB 15 Revenue
The core principle of AASB 15 requires
from Contracts with
an entity to recognise revenue when the
Customers
entity satisfies a performance obligation
by transferring a promised good or
service to a customer.
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AASB 2014-5
Amendments to
Australian Accounting
Standards arising from
AASB 15

Amends the measurement of trade
receivables and the recognition of
dividends.
Trade receivables, that do not have a
significant financing component, are to
be measured at their transaction price,
at initial recognition.
Dividends are recognised in the profit
and loss only when:
• the entity’s right to receive payment of
the dividend is established;
• it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the entity; and
• the amount can be measured reliably.

AASB 16 Leases

The key changes introduced by AASB
16 include the recognition of most
operating leases (which are current not
recognised) on balance sheet.

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

1 Jan 2017, except amendments to The assessment has indicated
AASB 9 (Dec 2009) and AASB 9 that there will be no significant
(Dec 2010) apply from 1 Jan 2018 impact for the public sector.

1 January 2019

The assessment has indicated
that as most operating leases
will come on balance sheet,
recognition of lease assets and
lease liabilities will cause net
debt to increase.
Depreciation of lease assets
and interest on lease liabilities
will be recognised in the income
statement with marginal impact
on the operating surplus.
The amounts of cash paid for
the principal portion of the lease
liability will be presented within
financing activities and the
amounts paid for the interest
portion will be presented within
operating activities in the cash
flow statement.
No change for lessors.

(v) Category Groups
Melbourne
Health
has used the following category groupsEmergency
for reportingDepartment
purposes for the
current(EDS)
and previous financial
years.
Other
Services not reported elsewhere –
Services
(v)
Category
Groups
(Other)
comprises services not separately
comprises
all
emergency
department
services.
Melbourne Health has used the following
Admittedgroups
Patientfor
Services
(Admitted
Patients)
comprises all acute and subacute admitted patient services, where
services
are delivered
in public
hospitals.
classified
above,
including:
Public
Health
category
reporting
purposes
for
Aged Care comprises a range of in home,
Services including laboratory testing, blood
the current and previous financial years.
specialist geriatric, residential care and
Mental Health Services (Mental Health) comprises all specialised mental health services providing a range of inpatient,
community
based transmitted
residential, infections
borne viruses
/ sexually
community
baseda mental
programs
andand
support
Admitted
Patient
Services services
(Admitted
rehabilitation
and ambulatory
which treat and support
people with
illness
their families and carers.
services
aimliaison
to identify
mental
clinicalThese
services,
Koorie
officers,
services,
ascare
Home
and Community
Care
Patients)
comprises
subacute
illness early,
and seekall
to acute
reduceand
its impact
through providing
timelysuch
acute
services
and appropriate
longer-term accommodation and support for those living
immunisation and screening services, drugs
with a mental
illness.
(HACC) that are targeted to older people,
admitted
patient
services, where services are
services including drug withdrawal, counselling
people with a disability, and their carers.
delivered in public hospitals.
Non Admitted Services comprises acute and subacute non admitted services, where services are delivered in public
clinics
provide
models Disability
of
and hospital
the needle
andand
syringe
program,
integrated
community
care,(Mental
which significantly
demand forAged
hospital
beds
and supports
the transition from
hospital
to homeaids
in a and
safeequipment
and timely and
Residential
Care
including
Mental
Mental
Health
Services
Health) reduces the
services
including
manner. all specialised mental health services
Health (RAC incl. Mental Health) referred
comprises
flexible support packages to people with a
to in the past as psychogeriatric residential
providing
a range
of inpatient,
community
disability, Community Care programs including
Emergency
Department
Services
(EDS) comprises all emergency department services.
services, comprises those Commonwealthbased residential, rehabilitation and ambulatory
sexual assault support, early parenting services,
Aged Care
comprises
a range
of inpeople
home,with
specialist geriatric,
residential
careaged
and community
based
programs andparenting
support services,
suchand
as skills
Homedevelopment,
and
licensed
residential
care services
in receipt
services
which
treat and
support
assessment
Careand
(HACC)
are targeted
to older people,
with a disability,
theirthe
carers.
of people
supplementary
fundingand
from
department
aCommunity
mental illness
theirthat
families
and carers.
and various support services. Health and
under the mental health program. It excludes
These services aim to identify mental illness
Community Initiatives also falls in this
Residential
Aged
Care including
Mental
Health (RAC all
incl.
Mental
Health) services
referred to
in the under
past asthe
psychogeriatric residential services, comprises those
other
residential
funded
early,
and seek
to reduce
its impact
through
category group.
Commonwealth-licensed residential aged care services inmental
receipthealth
of supplementary
funding
from thehealth
department under the mental health program. It excludes all
program, such
as mental
providing
timely acute care services and
other residential services funded under the mental health program, such as mental health funded community care units and secure extended care units.
funded community care units and secure
appropriate longer-term accommodation and
extended care units.
support for those living with a mental illness.
Other Services not reported elsewhere - (Other) comprises services not separately classified above, including: Public Health Services including laboratory

Non
Admitted
Services
and infections clinical services, Koorie liaison officers, immunisation and screening services, drugs services
testing,
blood borne
virusescomprises
/ sexually acute
transmitted
including drug
withdrawal,services,
counselling
andservices
the needle and syringe program, Disability services including aids and equipment and flexible support packages to
subacute
non admitted
where
people
with a in
disability,
Careand
programs including sexual assault support, early parenting services, parenting assessment and skills development, and
are
delivered
public Community
hospital clinics
various support services. Health and Community Initiatives also falls in this category group.
provide models of integrated community care,
which significantly reduces the demand for
hospital beds and supports the transition from
hospital to home in a safe and timely manner.

46

Melbourne Health Annual Report 2015/16

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2: Analysis of Revenue by Source

Note 2: Analysis of Revenue by Source

Government Grant
Indirect contributions by Department of Health and Human
Services*
Patient & Resident Fees

Admitted
Patients

NonAdmitted

2016

2016

$'000

$'000

EDs

Mental
Health

RAC incl.
Mental
Health

Aged Care

Other

2016

2016

2016

2016

2016

2016

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

Total

421,795

11,313

64,498

231,503

13,960

4,178

16,627

4,925

132

753

2,703

163

49

194

8,919

29,398

789

4,495

16,135

973

291

1,159

53,240

Commercial Activities

23,151

621

3,540

12,707

766

229

913

41,927

Other revenue from operating activities - S&W Recoveries
from external orgnisations

11,932

320

1,825

6,549

395

118

470

21,609

Other Revenue from Operating Activities

49,385

1,324

7,551

27,103

1,634

489

1,947

89,433

540,586

14,499

82,662

296,700

17,891

5,354

21,310

979,002

1,226

33

188

673

41

12

48

2,221

208

6

32

114

7

2

8

377

Other Revenue from Non-Operating Activities

3,144

84

481

1,725

104

31

124

5,693

Total Revenue from Non-Operating Activities

4,578

123

701

2,512

152

45

180

8,291

Revenue from Inter Hospital Inventory sale

-

-

-

-

-

-

25,900

25,900

Total revenue from Inter Hospital Inventory sale

-

-

-

-

-

-

25,900

25,900

Capital Purpose Income (excluding Interest)

-

-

-

-

-

-

34,680

34,680

Total Capital Purpose Income

-

-

-

-

-

-

34,680

34,680

545,164

14,622

83,363

299,212

18,043

5,399

82,070

1,047,873

Total Revenue from Operating Activities
Interest
Dividends

Total Revenue

Admitted
Patients

NonAdmitted

2015

2015

$'000

$'000

763,874

EDs

Mental
Health

RAC incl.
Mental
Health

Aged Care

Other

2015

2015

2015

2015

2015

2015

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

Total

Government Grant
Indirect contributions by Department of Health and Human
Services*
Patient & Resident Fees

395,620

10,470

57,732

229,038

15,851

4,144

14,251

2,758

73

402

1,597

110

29

99

5,068

27,996

741

4,085

16,208

1,122

293

1,008

51,453

Commercial Activities
Other revenue from operating activities - S&W Recoveries
from external orgnisations
Other Revenue from Operating Activities

21,463

568

3,132

12,426

860

225

773

39,447

11,905

315

1,737

6,892

477

125

429

21,880

47,200

1,249

6,888

27,326

1,891

494

1,700

86,748

506,942

13,416

73,976

293,487

20,311

5,310

18,260

931,702

1,635

43

239

947

66

17

59

3,006

207

5

30

120

8

2

7

379

Other Revenue from Non-Operating Activities

2,523

67

368

1,459

101

26

91

4,635

Total Revenue from Non-Operating Activities

4,365

115

637

2,526

175

45

157

8,020

Revenue from Inter Hospital Inventory sale

-

-

-

-

-

-

25,624

25,624

Total revenue from Inter Hospital Inventory sale

-

-

-

-

-

-

25,624

25,624

Capital Purpose Income (excluding Interest)

-

-

-

-

-

-

26,720

26,720

Total Capital Purpose Income

-

-

-

-

-

-

26,720

26,720

511,307

13,531

74,613

296,013

20,486

5,355

70,761

992,066

Total Revenue from Operating Activities
Interest
Dividends

Total Revenue

727,106

*Department of Health and Human Services makes certain payments on behalf of Melbourne Health (Insurance and Long Service Leave). These amounts have been brought to account in determining
the operating result for the year by recording them as revenue and expenses.
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Note 2a: Net gain/(loss) on disposal of non-financial assets
Note 2a: Net gain/(loss) on disposal of non-financial assets

Consolidated
2016
$'000
Proceeds from Disposals of Non-Current Assets
Plant and Equipment
Medical Equipment
Motor Vehicles
Buildings
Land
Total Proceeds from Disposal of Non-Current Assets
Less: Written Down Value of Non-Current Assets Sold
Plant & Equipment
Medical Equipment
Motor Vehicles
Buildings
Land
Total Written Down Value of Non-Current Assets Sold
Net gains/(losses) on Disposal of Non-Current Assets

Consolidated
2015
$'000

6
195
201

2
184
3,226
4,839
8,251

12
190
129
331

118
305
142
2,145
3,223
5,933

(130)

2,318

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

Note 3: Analysis of Expenses by Source

Note 3: Analysis of Expenses by Source

Employee Expenses

Admitted
Patients

NonAdmitted

2016

2016

$'000

$'000

RAC incl.
Mental
Health

Aged Care

Other

2016

2016

2016

2016

2016

2016

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

Total

388,857

10,430

59,461

213,425

12,870

3,852

15,329

Non Salary Labour Costs

8,397

225

1,284

4,608

278

83

331

15,206

Supplies & Consumables

90,475

2,427

13,835

49,658

2,995

896

3,567

163,853

Expenses from Inter Hospital Inventory Purchase

704,224

-

-

-

-

-

-

25,900

25,900

58,982

1,582

9,019

32,372

1,952

584

2,325

106,816

546,711

14,664

83,599

300,063

18,095

5,415

47,452

1,015,999

Expenditure for Capital Purposes

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,461

3,461

Depreciation & Amortisation (refer note 4)

-

-

-

-

-

-

48,574

48,574

Assets Provided Free of Charge (refer note 3c)

-

-

-

-

-

-

6,027

6,027

Total other expenses

-

-

-

-

-

-

58,062

58,062

546,711

14,664

83,599

300,063

18,095

5,415

105,514

1,074,061

Other Expenses
Total Expenditure from Operating Activities

Total Expenses

Employee Expenses

Admitted
Patients

NonAdmitted

2015

2015

$'000

$'000

EDs

Mental
Health

RAC incl.
Mental
Health

Aged Care

Other

2015

2015

2015

2015

2015

2015

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

Total

364,525

9,647

53,195

211,037

14,605

3,819

13,131

Non Salary Labour Costs

7,851

208

1,146

4,545

315

82

282

14,429

Supplies & Consumables

82,842

2,192

12,089

47,960

3,319

868

2,985

152,255

Expenses from Inter Hospital Inventory Purchase

669,959

-

-

-

-

-

-

25,624

25,624

56,919

1,506

8,306

32,952

2,280

596

2,050

104,609

512,137

13,553

74,736

296,494

20,519

5,365

44,072

966,876

Expenditure for Capital Purposes

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,921

1,921

Impairment of Financial Assets

-

-

-

-

-

-

392

392

Depreciation & Amortisation (refer note 4)

-

-

-

-

-

-

48,091

48,091

Specific Expenses (refer note 3b)

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,033

3,033

Total other expenses

-

-

-

-

-

-

53,437

53,437

512,137

13,553

74,736

296,494

20,519

5,365

97,509

1,020,313

Other Expenses
Total Expenditure from Operating Activities

Total Expenses

48

EDs

Mental
Health
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Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

Note 3a: Analysis of Expense and Revenue by Internally Managed and Restricted Specific Purpose Funds

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

Note 3a: Analysis of Expense and Revenue by Internally Managed and Restricted
Specific Purpose Funds
Expense

Revenue

Note 3a: Analysis of Expense and Revenue
by Internally
Managed
and Restricted
Consolidated
Consolidated
Consolidated
Consolidated
2016
2015
2016
2015
Specific Purpose Funds
Commercial Activities
Private Practice
and Other of
Patient
Activities
Note
3a: Analysis
Expense
Laboratory Medicine
Specific
Purpose Funds
Diagnostic Imaging
Commercial
Activities
CateringPractice and Other Patient Activities
Private
Cafeteria Medicine
Laboratory
Car Park Imaging
Diagnostic
Breastscreen Service
Catering
Commercial
Mental HealthActivities
Services
Cafeteria
Private
Practice and Other Patient Activities
Medical
Car
ParkSpecial Purpose Funds
Laboratory
Medicine
External Supply
Agreements
Breastscreen
Service
Diagnostic
Imaging
Other
Mental Health Services
Catering
Other Activities
Medical
Special Purpose Funds
Cafeteria
Fundraising
andAgreements
Community Support
External
Supply
Car Park
Research and Scholarship
Other
Breastscreen Service
TOTALActivities
Other
Mental
Health Services
Fundraising
and Purpose
Community
Support
Medical
Special
Funds
ResearchSupply
and Scholarship
External
Agreements
TOTAL
Other

and

Other Activities
Note 3b: Specific Expenses
Fundraising and Community Support
Note
3b:and
Specific
Expenses
Research
Scholarship
TOTAL

Note 3b: Specific Expenses

Specific Expenses
Litigation Settlements
Other
Note
3b:
Specific
Expenses
Closure
of South
Stone Lodge
Residential Aged
Specific
Expenses
Care
Facility
Litigation Settlements
Total Specific Expenses
Other
Closure of South Stone Lodge Residential Aged
Care Facility
Specific Expenses
Total
Specific
Expenses
Litigation
Settlements

$'000 Expense $'000
$'000 Revenue $'000
Consolidated Consolidated Consolidated Consolidated
497
Revenue
by 607
Internally
and569Restricted
2016
2015Managed
2016
2015 553
$'000 52
$'000 62
$'000 53
$'000 50
174
553
2,141
2,212
Expense
Revenue
227
643
413
373
607
497
569
553
Consolidated
Consolidated
Consolidated
Consolidated
895
941
2,409
2,390
52
62
53
50
20161,546
20151,660
20166,780
20156,300
174
553
2,141
2,212
$'0003,726
$'0003,042
$'0003,821
$'0003,883
227
643
413
373
3,134
4,709
4,528
4,796
895
941
2,409
2,390
607
497
569
553
17,445
16,529
18,665
17,067
1,546
1,660
6,780
6,300
52
62
53
50
25,900
25,624
25,900
25,624
3,726
3,042
3,821
3,883
174
553
2,141
2,212
1,887
445
5,979
4,483
3,134
4,709
4,528
4,796
227
643
413
373
17,445
16,529
18,665
17,067
895
941
2,409
2,390
15,430
12,722
24,219
21,174
25,900
25,624
25,900
25,624
1,546
1,660
6,780
6,300
12,213
11,306
12,918
12,317
1,887
445
5,979
4,483
3,726
3,042
3,821
3,883
83,236
78,733
108,395
101,222
3,134
4,709
4,528
4,796
15,430
12,722
24,219
21,174
17,445
16,529
18,665
17,067
12,213
11,306
12,918
12,317
25,900
25,624
25,900
25,624
83,236
78,733
108,395
101,222
1,887
445
5,979
4,483
15,430
12,213
Consolidated
83,236
2016
$'000

12,722
11,306
Consolidated
78,733
2015
$'000

24,219
12,918
108,395

21,174
12,317
101,222

Consolidated Consolidated
2016
20152,231
$'000
$'000
802
-2,231
Consolidated - Consolidated
3,033
2016
2015
$'000
$'000
802
3,033
2,231

Other
Note 3c: Assets provided free of charge or for nominal consideration
Closure of South Stone Lodge Residential Aged
Care Facility
802
Consolidated- Consolidated
3,033
Total
Expensesprovided free of charge or2016
2015
NoteSpecific
3c: Assets
for nominal
consideration
$'000
$'000
During the reporting period, the fair value of assets
Consolidated
Consolidated
Note
3c:
Assets
provided
free
of
charge
or
for
nominal
consideration
provided free of charge, was as follows:
2016
2015
$'000
Note
3c: Assets provided free of charge or$'000
for1,536
nominal
consideration
Land the
During
reporting period, the fair value of assets
Buildings
4,491
provided free of charge, was as follows:
Consolidated
6,027 ConsolidatedTOTAL
2016
2015
Land
1,536
$'000
$'000
The land and buildings for South Stone Lodge Residential Aged Care
Facility which closed
Buildings
4,491
- during 2014-15 and was
During the reporting period, the fair value of assets
transferred to Department of Health and Human Services.
6,027
TOTAL
provided free of charge, was as follows:
The land and buildings for South Stone Lodge Residential Aged Care
Facility which closed- during 2014-15 and was
Land
1,536
transferred to Department of Health and Human Services.
Buildings
4,491
Note 4: Depreciation and amortisation
6,027
TOTAL
Consolidated
The land and buildings for South Stone Lodge Residential Aged
Care FacilityConsolidated
which closed during 2014-15 and was
2016
2015
transferred
Department of Health
Human Services.
Note 4: to
Depreciation
andandamortisation
$'000
$'000
Depreciation
Consolidated Consolidated
Buildings
33,414
33,069
2016
2015
Plant & Equipment
1,798
1,286
$'000
$'000
Note
Depreciation and amortisation
Medical4:
Equipment
8,932
8,605
Depreciation
Computer Equipment
3,052
2,696
Buildings
33,414
33,069
Consolidated
Furniture
& Fittings
210 Consolidated
250
Plant
& Equipment
1,798
1,286
2016 293
2015 382
Motor Vehicles
Medical
Equipment
8,932
8,605
$'000
$'000
Total Depreciation
47,699
46,288
Computer
Equipment
3,052
2,696
Depreciation
Furniture & Fittings
210
250
Buildings
33,414
33,069
Amortisation
Motor
Vehicles
293
382
Plant
& Equipment
1,798
1,286
Leased
Assets
443
407
Total
Depreciation
47,699
46,288
Medical
Equipment
8,932
8,605
Intangible
Assets
432
1,396
Computer
Equipment
3,052
2,696
Total Amortisation
875
1,803
Amortisation
Furniture & Fittings
210
250
Leased Assets
443
407
Motor
Vehicles
293
382
Total
Depreciation
&
Amortisation
48,574
48,091
Intangible Assets
432
1,396
Total Depreciation
47,699
46,288
Total Amortisation
875
1,803
Amortisation
Total
Depreciation
& Amortisation
Leased
Assets
Intangible Assets
Total Amortisation

48,574
443
432
875

48,091
407
1,396
1,803
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Land
Buildings
TOTAL

1,536
4,491
6,027

-

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The land and buildings for South Stone Lodge Residential Aged Care Facility which closed during 2014-15 and was
transferred to Department of Health and Human Services.

Note 4: Depreciation and amortisation
Note 4: Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation
Buildings
Plant & Equipment
Medical Equipment
Computer Equipment
Furniture & Fittings
Motor Vehicles
Total Depreciation
Amortisation
Leased Assets
Intangible Assets
Total Amortisation
Total Depreciation & Amortisation

Consolidated
2016
$'000

Consolidated
2015
$'000

33,414
1,798
8,932
3,052
210
293
47,699

33,069
1,286
8,605
2,696
250
382
46,288

443
432
875

407
1,396
1,803

48,574

48,091

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

Note 5: Cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash assets includes cash on hand and in banks, and shortterm deposits which are readily convertible to cash on hand, and are subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value.

Note 5: Cash and cash equivalents

Consolidated
2016
$'000

Consolidated
2015
$'000

41
49,927

32
55,223

2,782
52,750

1,960
57,215

Represented by:
Cash for Health Service Operations (as per
Cash Flow Statement)

49,968

55,255

Cash for Monies Held in Trust
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

2,782
52,750

1,960
57,215

Consolidated
2016
$'000

Consolidated
2015
$'000

Cash on Hand
Cash at Bank
Other
- Patient Trust Monies
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

Note 6: Receivables

CURRENT
Contractual
Inter Hospital Debtors
Trade Debtors
Patient Fees
Accrued Investment Income
Accrued Revenue - Other
Less Allowance for Doubtful Debts
Trade Debtors
Patient Fees

14,246
19,215
14,624
173
8,414

9,358
14,979
10,759
17,742

(246)
(2,016)
54,410

(327)
(1,080)
51,431

TOTAL CURRENT RECEIVABLES

3,887
3,887
58,297

3,781
3,781
55,212

NON-CURRENT
Statutory
Long Service Leave - Department of Health
and Human Services
TOTAL NON-CURRENT RECEIVABLES
TOTAL RECEIVABLES

17,473
17,473
75,770

9,249
9,249
64,461

Consolidated

Consolidated

Statutory
GST Receivable
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(a) Movement in the Allowance for doubtful debts

Cash for Monies Held in Trust
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

2,782
52,750

1,960
57,215
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 6: Receivables

Note 6: Receivables
Consolidated
2016
$'000
CURRENT
Contractual
Inter Hospital Debtors
Trade Debtors
Patient Fees
Accrued Investment Income
Accrued Revenue - Other
Less Allowance for Doubtful Debts
Trade Debtors
Patient Fees

Consolidated
2015
$'000

14,246
19,215
14,624
173
8,414

9,358
14,979
10,759
17,742

(246)
(2,016)
54,410

(327)
(1,080)
51,431

TOTAL CURRENT RECEIVABLES

3,887
3,887
58,297

3,781
3,781
55,212

NON-CURRENT
Statutory
Long Service Leave - Department of Health
and Human Services
TOTAL NON-CURRENT RECEIVABLES
TOTAL RECEIVABLES

17,473
17,473
75,770

9,249
9,249
64,461

Consolidated
2016
$'000
1,407
(1,093)

Consolidated
2015
$'000
1,414
(1,294)

1,948
2,262

1,287
1,407

Statutory
GST Receivable

(a) Movement in the Allowance for doubtful debts

Balance at beginning of year
Amounts written off during the year
Increase/(decrease) in allowance recognised
in net result
Balance at end of year

(b) Ageing analysis of receivables
Please refer to note 19(c) for the ageing analysis of contractual receivables
(c) Nature and extent of risk arising from receivables
Please refer to note 19(e) for the nature and extent of credit risk arising from contractual
receivables
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Note 7: Investments and other financial assets
Note 7: Investments and other financial assets

Note 7: Investments and other financial assets

Note 7: Investments and other financial assets

CURRENT
CURRENT
NON-CURRENT
NON-CURRENT
Available for sale
Available
for sale
Other
CURRENT
Other
Shares
NON-CURRENT
Shares
Total
Non-Current
Available
for sale
Total Non-Current
TOTAL
Other INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
TOTAL
INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Shares
Represented by:
Total
Non-Current
Represented
Health Serviceby:
Investments
TOTAL
INVESTMENTS
AND
Health
Investments
TOTALService
INVESTMENTS
AND OTHER
OTHER FINANCIAL
FINANCIAL ASSETS
ASSETS
TOTAL INVESTMENTS
AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Represented
by:

Operating Fund
Operating Fund
2016
2015
2016
2015
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000
Operating Fund
2016
2015
$'000
$'000
-----

Specific Purpose Fund
Specific
Fund
2016 Purpose
2015
2016
2015
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000
Specific Purpose Fund
2016
2015
$'000
$'000
32
32
32
32
32
32
32
32
32
32
32
32

315
315
315
315
315
315
315
315
315
315
315
315

Health Service Investments
32
315
(a) Ageing analysis of investments and other financial assets
TOTAL
INVESTMENTS
AND
OTHER
FINANCIAL
ASSETS
32
315
(a)
Ageing
analysis
of
investments
and
other
financial
assets
Please refer to note 19(c) for the ageing analysis of investments and other financial assets
Please refer to note 19(c) for the ageing analysis of investments and other financial assets
(b) Nature and extent of risk arising from investments and other financial assets
(a)
Ageing
analysis
ofof
investments
and
other financial and
assets
(b)
Nature
extent
risk
arising
from
other
financial
assets
Please
referand
to note
19(e)
for the
nature
and investments
extent of credit risk
arising
from investments
and other financial assets
Please
analysis
of of
investments
and other
financial
assetsand other financial assets
Please refer
refer to
to note
note 19(c)
19(e) for
for the
the ageing
nature and
extent
credit risk arising
from
investments
(b) Nature and extent of risk arising from investments and other financial assets
Please refer to note 19(e) for the nature and extent of credit risk arising from investments and other financial assets

Note 8: Inventories

Note 8: Inventories
Note 8: Inventories
Note 8: Inventories
Pharmaceuticals*
Pharmaceuticals*
At cost
At costStore*
Supply
Supply
At costStore*
Pharmaceuticals*
At cost
Aids
and Appliance*
At cost
Aids
and Appliance*
At cost
Supply
Store*
At cost and Surgical Lines*
Medical
At cost
Medical
and Surgical Lines*
At cost
Aids
and Appliance*
At cost
Pathology*
At cost
Pathology*
At cost and Surgical Lines*
Medical
At costINVENTORIES
TOTAL
At cost
TOTAL INVENTORIES
Pathology*
* All
are valued at the lower of Cost and/or Net Realisable Value.
At categories
cost
* All categories are valued at the lower of Cost and/or Net Realisable Value.
TOTAL INVENTORIES

Consolidated
Consolidated
Consolidated
Consolidated
2016
2015
2016
2015
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000
Consolidated
Consolidated
2,554
20162,499
2015
2,499
2,554
$'000
$'000
1,629
1,655
1,629
1,655
2,499
2,554
79
80
79
80
1,629
1,655
2,486
2,451
2,486
2,451
79
80
875
787
875
787
7,568
7,527
2,486
2,451
7,568
7,527
875
7,568

787
7,527

* All categories are valued at the lower of Cost and/or Net Realisable Value.

Note 9: Prepayments and Other Assets

Note 9: Prepayments and Other Assets
Note 9: Prepayments and Other Assets
Note 9: Prepayments and Other Assets

CURRENT
CURRENT
Prepayments
Prepayments
CURRENT
TOTAL CURRENT OTHER ASSETS
TOTAL CURRENT OTHER ASSETS
Prepayments
TOTAL CURRENT OTHER ASSETS
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Consolidated Consolidated
Consolidated
Consolidated
2016
2015
2016
2015
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000
Consolidated Consolidated
31,405
23,424
2016
2015
31,405
23,424
$'000
$'000
31,405
23,424
31,405
23,424
31,405
23,424
31,405

23,424

Consolidated
Consolidated
2016
2015
2016
2015
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000
Consolidated
2016
2015
$'000
$'000

5,439
5,439
5,439
5,439
5,439
5,439
5,439
5,439
5,439
5,439
5,439
5,439

315
315
315
315
315
315
315
315
315
315
315
315

5,471
5,471
5,471
5,471
5,471
5,471
5,471
5,471
5,471
5,471
5,471
5,471

5,439
5,439

315
315

5,471
5,471

Notes to
and Forming Part of the Financial Statements
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Note 10: Property, plant & equipment

Note 10: Property, plant & equipment

(a) Gross carrying amount and accumulated depreciation
Consolidated
2016
$'000

Consolidated
2015
$'000

98,601
63,820
162,421

79,457
52,979
132,436

11,627

92,154

481,746
65,957
4,595
2,320
429,691

382,698
32,848
4,469
1,877
444,596

47,516
20,394
27,122

39,015
18,664
20,351

117,387
67,094
50,293

103,251
59,233
44,018

30,781
24,019
6,762

25,782
21,602
4,180

Furniture & Fittings
Furniture & Fittings at Fair Value
Less Acc'd Depreciation
Total Furniture & Fittings

3,257
1,754
1,503

2,456
1,544
912

Motor Vehicles
Motor Vehicle Assets at Fair Value
Less Acc'd Depreciation
Total Motor Vehicles

1,553
330
1,223

1,090
80
1,010

679,015

647,503

Land
Crown Land at Fair Value
Freehold Land at Fair Value
Total Land
Buildings
Buildings Under Construction at cost
Buildings at Fair Value
Less Acc'd Depreciation
Leasehold Improvements at cost
Less Acc'd Amortisation
Total Buildings
Plant and Equipment
Plant and Equipment at Fair Value
Less Acc'd Depreciation
Total Plant and Equipment
Medical Equipment
Medical Equipment at Fair Value
Less Acc'd Depreciation
Total Medical Equipment
Computer Equipment
Computer Equipment at Fair Value
Less Acc'd Depreciation
Total Computer Equipment

TOTAL PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT
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162,421

$'000
135,659
(3,223)
132,436
(1,536)
31,521
415,789

$'000
384,199
860
(2,145)
5
(33,069)
349,850
4,360
(4,491)
99,484
(33,414)

Buildings

11,627

Buildings
WIP
$'000
37,759
54,997
(602)
92,154
17,409
(97,936)
2,275

Buildings
Imps L/Hold
$'000
2,946
53
(407)
2,592
106
20
(443)
27,122

Plant &
Equipment
$'000
12,394
8,830
(35)
448
(1,286)
20,351
19,116
(11)
(10,536)
(1,798)
50,293

Medical
Equipment
$'000
43,810
9,065
(305)
53
(8,605)
44,018
8,814
(190)
6,583
(8,932)
6,762

Computer
Equipment
$'000
4,163
2,696
(13)
30
(2,696)
4,180
3,844
(1)
1,791
(3,052)
1,503

Furniture &
Fittings
$'000
978
252
(70)
2
(250)
912
243
558
(210)
1,223

Motor
Vehicles
$'000
1,134
198
(142)
202
(382)
1,010
635
(129)
(293)
679,015

$'000
623,042
76,951
(5,933)
202
(64)
(46,695)
647,503
54,527
(331)
(6,027)
31,521
(36)
(48,142)

Total

An independent valuation of Melbourne Health's land and buildings was performed by the Valuer-General Victoria to determine the fair value of the land and buildings. The valuation, which conforms to Australian
Valuation Standards, was determined by reference to the amounts for which assets could be exchanged between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction. The valuation was based on independent
assessments. The effective date of the valuation is 30 June 2014.
In June 2016, a managerial revaluation of land asset class was undertaken by Melbourne Health in accordance with FRD103F Non-Current Physical Assets by using indices published by DTF from the VGV as approved
by the DHHS. The effective date of the valuation was 30 June 2016.

Land and buildings carried at valuation

Balance at 30 June 2016

Balance at 1 July 2015
Additions
Disposals
Assets Provided Free of Charge
Revaluation Increments/(Decrements)
Net Transfers between Classes
Depreciation and Amortisation (note 4)

Balance at 1 July 2014
Additions
Disposals
Revaluation Increments/(Decrements)
Net Transfers between Classes
Depreciation and Amortisation (note 4)

Land

(b) Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of each class of asset for the consolidated entity at the beginning and end of the previous and current financial year is set out below.

Note 10: Property, plant & equipment (continued)
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Note 10: Property, plant & equipment (continued)

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements
Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements
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Note 10: Property, plant & equipment (continued)

Note 10: Property, plant & equipment (continued)

Note 10: Property, plant & equipment (continued)
(c) Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets
(c) Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets

Land at fair value
Non-specialised land
Land at fairland
value
Specialised
Non-specialised
- Crown land land
Specialised
Total
of landland
at fair value
- Crown land
Total of land
fairvalue
value
Buildings
atat
fair
Specialised buildings
Buildings
at fairatvalue
Total
of building
fair value
Specialised buildings
Total of
building
at fair value
Plant
and
equipment
at fair value
Plant and equipment at fair value
Plantof
and
equipment
at fair at
value
Total
plant
and equipment
fair value
Plant and equipment at fair value
Total of plant
and equipment
at fair value
Medical
equipment
at fair value
Medical equipment at fair value
Medical
equipment
at fair
Total
medical
equipment
at value
fair value
Medical equipment at fair value
Total
medical
equipment
fairvalue
value
Computer
equipment
atat
fair
Computer equipment at fair value
Computer
equipment
at fair
value
Total
computer
equipment
at fair
value
Computer equipment at fair value
Total computer
equipment
fair value
Furniture
& Fittings
at fairatvalue
Furniture & Fittings at fair value
Furniture
& Fittings
atat
fair
Total
furniture
& fittings
fairvalue
value
Furniture & Fittings at fair value
Total
& at
fittings
at fair value
Motorfurniture
vehicles
fair value
Motor vehicles at fair value
Motor
vehicles
at fair
Total motor
vehicles
at value
fair value
Motor vehicles at fair value
Total motor vehicles at fair value
(i)

Classified in accordance with the fair value hierarchy, see Note 1

Carrying
amount as at
30Carrying
June 2016
amount as at
30 June63,820
2016

Fair value measurement at end of reporting
period using:
Fair value measurement at end of reporting
(i)
Levelusing:
2 (i)
Level 3 (i)
Level 1
period
Level 1 (i)

-

Level 2 (i)

-

Level63,820
3 (i)

63,820
98,601
162,421
98,601
162,421
415,789
415,789
415,789
415,789
11,936
11,936
11,936
11,936
50,293
50,293
50,293
50,293
6,762
6,762
6,762
6,762
1,503
1,503
1,503
1,503
1,223
1,223
1,223
1,223
649,927

-

1,223
1,223
1,223
1,223

63,820
98,601
162,421
98,601
162,421
415,789
415,789
415,789
415,789
11,936
11,936
11,936
11,936
50,293
50,293
50,293
50,293
6,762
6,762
6,762
6,762
1,503
1,503
1,503
1,503
648,704-

649,927

-

1,223

648,704

There have been no transfers between levels during the period.
(i)

Classified in accordance with the fair value hierarchy, see Note 1

There have been no transfers between levels during the period.

Land at fair value
Non-specialised land
Land
at fairland
value
Specialised
Non-specialised
- Crown land land
Specialised
Total
of landland
at fair value
- Crown land
Total of land
fairvalue
value
Buildings
atat
fair
Specialised buildings
Buildings
at fairatvalue
Total
of building
fair value
Specialised buildings
Total of
building
at fair value
Plant
and
equipment
at fair value
Plant and equipment at fair value
Plant
and
equipment
at fair at
value
Total of
plant
and equipment
fair value
Plant and equipment at fair value
Total of plant
and equipment
at fair value
Medical
equipment
at fair value
Medical equipment at fair value
Medical
equipment
at fair
Total
medical
equipment
at value
fair value
Medical equipment at fair value
Total
medical
equipment
fairvalue
value
Computer
equipment
atat
fair
Computer equipment at fair value
Computer
equipment
at fair
value
Total
computer
equipment
at fair
value
Computer equipment at fair value
Total
computer
equipment
fair value
Furniture
& Fittings
at fairatvalue
Furniture & Fittings at fair value
Furniture
& Fittings
atat
fair
Total
furniture
& fittings
fairvalue
value
Furniture & Fittings at fair value
Total furniture
& at
fittings
at fair value
Motor
vehicles
fair value
Motor vehicles at fair value
Motor
vehicles
at fair
Total motor
vehicles
at value
fair value
Motor vehicles at fair value
Total motor vehicles at fair value
(i)

Classified in accordance with the fair value hierarchy, see Note 1

Carrying
amount as at
30Carrying
June 2015
amount as at
30 June52,979
2015

Fair value measurement at end of reporting
period using:
Fair value measurement at end of reporting
Level 1 (i)
Levelusing:
2 (i)
Level 3 (i)
period
Level 1 (i)

-

Level 2 (i)

-

Level52,979
3 (i)

52,979
79,457
132,436
79,457
132,436
349,850
349,850
349,850
349,850
7,579
7,579
7,579
7,579
44,018
44,018
44,018
44,018
4,180
4,180
4,180
4,180
912
912
912
912
1,010
1,010
1,010
1,010
539,985

-

1,010
1,010
1,010
1,010

52,979
79,457
132,436
79,457
132,436
349,850
349,850
349,850
349,850
7,579
7,579
7,579
7,579
44,018
44,018
44,018
44,018
4,180
4,180
4,180
4,180
912
912
912
912
538,975-

539,985

-

1,010

538,975

There have been no transfers between levels during the period.
(i)

Classified in accordance with the fair value hierarchy, see Note 1

There have been no transfers between levels during the period.
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Note 10: Property, plant & equipment (continued)
Note 10: Property, plant & equipment (continued)
(d) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value

Balance at 1 July 2014
Purchases (sales)
Transfer between classes (within Level 3)
Gains or losses recognised in net result
- Depreciation
- Disposals
Subtotal
Balance at 1 July 2015

(i)

Purchases (sales)
Transfer between classes (within Level 3)
Gains or losses recognised in net result
- Depreciation
- Disposals
Subtotal
Items recognised in other comprehensive income
- Revaluation
Subtotal
(i)
Balance at 30 June 2016

Land

Buildings

$'000

$'000

Plant &
Equipment
$'000

Medical
Equipment
$'000

384,199
860
5

7,332
957
611

43,810
9,065
53

4,163
2,696
30

978
252
2

(3,223)
(3,223)

(33,069)
(2,145)
(35,214)

(1,286)
(35)
(1,321)

(8,605)
(305)
(8,910)

(2,696)
(13)
(2,709)

(250)
(70)
(320)

132,436
-

349,850
4,360
99,484

7,579
873
5,293

44,018
8,814
6,583

4,180
3,844
1,791

912
243
558

(1,536)
(1,536)

(33,414)
(4,491)
(37,905)

(1,798)
(11)
(1,809)

(8,932)
(190)
(9,122)

(3,052)
(1)
(3,053)

(210)
(210)

31,521
31,521
162,421
415,789
11,936
50,293
Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

6,762

1,503

(i) Excludes assets under construction and leashold assets.

Note 10: Property, plant & equipment (continued)
(e) Description of significant unobservable inputs to Level 3 valuations

Valuation
technique

Significant unobservable inputs

Specialised land
Market approach

Community Service Obligation (CSO)
adjustment

Depreciated
replacement cost

Direct cost per square metre

Specialised buildings

Useful life of specialised buildings
Plant and equipment at fair value
Depreciated
replacement cost

Cost per unit
Useful life of PPE

Medical equipment at fair value
Depreciated
replacement cost

Cost per unit
Useful life of medical equipment

Computer equipment at fair value
Depreciated
replacement cost

Cost per unit
Useful life of computer equipment

Furnitures & fittings at fair value
Depreciated
replacement cost

Cost per unit
Useful life of furnitures & fittings
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Furniture &
Fittings
$'000

135,659
-

There have been no transfers between levels during the period.
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Computer
Equipment
$'000
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Note 11: Intangible assets

Note 11: Intangible assets
Note 11: Intangible assets

Capitalised Costs
Less Acc'd Amortisation
Capitalised Costs
Less
Acc'dLicense
Amortisation
Post
Office
Post
Office
License
Software
Costs
Capitalised
Less Acc'd Amortisation
Software Costs Capitalised
Less Acc'd Amortisation
Total Intangible Assets
Total Intangible Assets

Consolidated
2016
Consolidated
$'000
2016
$'000
16,243
13,990
16,243
2,253
13,990
70
2,253
70
70
14,213
70
13,763
14,213
450
13,763
2,773
450

Consolidated
2015
Consolidated
$'000
2015
$'000
15,551
13,847
15,551
1,704
13,847
70
1,704
70
70
13,931
70
13,474
13,931
457
13,474
2,231
457

2,773

2,231

Reconciliation of the carrying amounts of intangible assets at the beginning and end of the previous and current financial year:
Reconciliation of the carrying amounts of intangible assets at the beginning
Softwareand end of the previous and current financial year:
Capitalised
Costs
Capitalised
$'000
Costs
Balance at 1 July 2014
Additions
(i)
Balance
at 1(note
July 4)
2014
Amortisation
Additionsat 1 July 2015
Balance
Amortisation
(note 4)(i)
Additions
Balance at 1 July 2015
Amortisation (note 4)(i)
Additions
Balance at 30 June 2016
Amortisation (note 4)(i)
Balance at 30 June 2016

$'0001,853
754
1,853
(903)
754
1,704
(903)
692
1,704
(143)
692
2,253
(143)
2,253

Costs
Software
Capitalised
Costs
$'000
Capitalised
$'000 688
262
688
(493)
262
457
(493)
282
457
(289)
282
450
(289)
450

Post Office
License
Post Office
$'000
License
$'000 70
7070-70
7070

Total
$'000
Total
$'0002,611
1,016
2,611
(1,396)
1,016
2,231
(1,396)
974
2,231
(432)
974
2,773
(432)
2,773

(i) The consumption of separately acquired intangible assets is included in the 'amortisation' line item, where the consumption of the internally generated intangible
assets is included in 'net gain/(loss) on non-financial assets' line item on the comprehensive operating statement.
(i) The consumption of separately acquired intangible assets is included in the 'amortisation' line item, where the consumption of the internally generated intangible
assets is included in 'net gain/(loss) on non-financial assets' line item on the comprehensive operating statement.

Note12:
12:
Payables
Note
Payables
Note 12: Payables
CURRENT
Contractual
CURRENT
Trade Creditors
Contractual
Income in Advance
Trade
Creditors
Accrued
Expenses
Income
in Advance
Salary Packaging
Accrued
Other Expenses
Salary Packaging
Other
Statutory
GST Payable
Statutory
PAYG Withholding
GST Payable
PAYG
TOTALWithholding
CURRENT
TOTAL PAYABLES
TOTAL CURRENT
TOTAL PAYABLES

Consolidated
2016
Consolidated
$'000
2016
$'000
46,120
7,741
46,120
19,507
7,741
3,121
19,507
1,475
3,121
77,964
1,475
77,964
990
3,467
990
4,457
3,467
82,421
4,457
82,421
82,421
82,421

Consolidated
2015
Consolidated
$'000
2015
$'000
39,482
6,439
39,482
21,059
6,439
2,522
21,059
2,038
2,522
71,540
2,038
71,540
1,685
1,685
1,685
73,2251,685
73,225
73,225
73,225

(a) Maturity analysis of payables
Please refer to Note 19(d) for the ageing analysis of contractual payables.
(a) Maturity analysis of payables
Please
referand
to Note
19(d)
for the
ageing
analysis
of contractual payables.
(b)
Nature
extent
of risk
arising
from
payables
Please refer to note 19(e) for the nature and extent of risks arising from contractual payables.
(b) Nature and extent of risk arising from payables
Please refer to note 19(e) for the nature and extent of risks arising from contractual payables.
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Note 13: Borrowings

Note 13: Borrowings
Consolidated
2016
$'000

Consolidated
2015
$'000

CURRENT
- Advances from Department of Health and Human Services (i)
Total Australian Dollars Borrowings
Total Current

412
412
412

389
389
389

NON CURRENT
Australian Dollar Borrowings
- Advances from Department of Health and Human Services (i)
Total Australian Dollars Borrowings

1,539
1,539

1,451
1,451

Total Non-Current

1,539

1,451

Total Borrowings

1,951

1,840

(i) The Department of Health and Human Services has provided Melbourne Health with the following two loans:
a) A loan to implement a Laboratory Information System for its Pathology Department. The loan is repayable over five
years commencing from June 2017.
b) A loan for management of organic waste as part of a Victorian Government initiative to divert organic waste from
general waste. The loan is repayayable over four years commencing from May 2017.
Both loans are interest free loans. However, a present value calculation is required as payments are to be made in future
financial years.

(a) Maturity analysis of borrowings
Please refer to note 19(d) for the ageing analysis of borrowings.
(b) Nature and extent of risk arising from borrowings
Please refer to note 19(e) for the nature and extent of risks arising from borrowings.
(c) Defaults and breaches
During the current and prior year, there were no defaults and breaches of any of the borrowings.
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Note 14: Provisions

Note 14: Provisions

Current Provisions
Employee Benefits (Note 14(a))
Annual leave (Note 14(a))
- Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly within 12 months (ii)
- Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly after 12 months (iii)
Long service leave (Note 14(a))
- Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly within 12 months (ii)
- Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly after 12 months (iii)
Other Employee Benefits (Note 14(a))
- Unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months (ii)
Provisions related to Employee Benefit On-Costs
- Unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months (ii)
- Unconditional and expected to be settled after 12 months (iii)
Total Current Provisions
Non-Current Provisions
Employee Benefits (i)
Provisions related to Employee Benefit On-Costs
Total Non-Current Provisions
Total Provisions
(a) Employee Benefits and Related On-Costs
Current Employee Benefits and related on-costs
Unconditional LSL Entitlement
Annual Leave Entitlements
Accrued Wages and Salaries
Accrued Days Off
Substitution Leave
Four Clear Days
Non-Current Employee Benefits and related on costs
Conditional Long Service Leave Entitlements (iii)
Total Employee Benefits and Related On-Costs
(b) Movements in provisions
Movement in Long Service Leave:
Balance at start of year
Provision made during the year
- Revaluations
- Expense recognising Employee Service
Settlement made during the year
Balance at end of year

Consolidated
2016
$'000

Consolidated
2015
$'000

41,566
6,915

40,210
6,697

10,548
80,877

10,427
73,059

23,407
163,313

22,984
153,377

8,066
9,376
17,442
180,755

8,407
10,251
18,658
172,035

27,709
2,992
30,701

21,452
2,789
24,241

211,456

196,276

101,190
53,659
22,710
2,201
466
529

94,339
52,185
22,192
2,245
512
562

30,701
211,456

24,241
196,276

118,580

108,911

4,451
18,839
(9,979)
131,891

2,519
16,228
(9,078)
118,580

(i) Provisions for employee benefits consist of amounts for annual leave and long service leave accrued
by employees, not including on-costs.
(ii) The amounts disclosed are nominal amounts.
(iii) The amounts disclosed are discounted to present values.
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718
12,107
36,938
1,543
52,075

769

646
12,425
36,090
1,328
51,306

817

Consolidated
2015
$'000

77
1,358
852
410
2,780

83

74
439
1,457
352
2,401

79

720
12,864
37,547
1,680

53,707

54,855

896

795
13,465
37,790
1,953

852

Contribution Outstanding at
Total Contribution for the Year
Year End
Consolidated Consolidated Consolidated Consolidated
2016
2015
2016
2015
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000

(i) The basis for determining the level of contributions is determined by the various actuaries of the defined benefit superannuation plans.

Defined contribution plans:
VicSuper
HESTA
First State
Other
TOTAL

Defined benefit plans(i):
State Superannuation Fund - revised and new

Consolidated
2016
$'000

Paid Contribution for the Year

However, superannuation contributions paid or payable for the reporting period are included as part of employee benefits in the comprehensive operating statement of Melbourne Health.
The names, details and amounts expensed in relation to the major employee superannuation funds and contributions made by Melbourne Health are as follows:

Melbourne Health does not recognise any defined benefit liability in respect of the plan(s) because the entity has no legal or constructive obligation to pay future benefits relating to its
employees; its only obligation is to pay superannuation contributions as they fall due. The Department of Treasury and Finance discloses the State’s defined benefits liabilities in its
disclosure for administered items.

Employees of Melbourne Health are entitled to receive superannuation benefits and Melbourne Health contributes to both defined benefit and defined contribution plans. The defined benefit
plan(s) provides benefits based on years of service and final average salary.

Note 15: Superannuation
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Note 15: Superannuation

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements
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Note 16: Other liabilities

Note 16: Other liabilities
Consolidated
2016
$'000

Consolidated
2015
$'000

CURRENT
Monies Held in Trust
- Patient Monies Held in Trust
- Accommodation Bonds (Refundable Entrance Fees)
Total Current
Total Other Liabilities

175
2,607
2,782
2,782

179
1,781
1,960
1,960

Total Monies Held in Trust
Represented by the following assets:
Cash Assets (refer to Note 5)
TOTAL

2,782
2,782

1,960
1,960
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Note 17: Equity

Note 17: Equity
Consolidated

(a) Surpluses
Property, Plant & Equipment Revaluation Surplus 1
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period
Revaluation Increments/(Decrements)
- Land
- Buildings
- Plant and Equipment/Motor Vehicle
Balance at the end of the reporting period*
* Represented by:
- Land
- Buildings
- Plant and Equipment/Motor Vehicle

Financial Assets Available-for-Sale Revaluation Surplus 2
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period
Valuation gain/(loss) recognised
Balance at end of the reporting period

Consolidated

2016

2015

$'000

$'000

300,861

300,659

31,521
332,382

202
300,861

164,396
166,163
1,823
332,382

132,875
166,163
1,823
300,861

1,872
(1,872)
-

1,940
(68)
1,872

(1)

The property, plant & equipment, motor vehicle asset revaluation surplus arises on the revaluation of property, plant
& equipment and motor vehicle.

(2)

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

The financial assets available-for-sale revaluation surplus arises on the revaluation of available-for-sale financial
assets. Where a revalued financial asset is sold, that portion of the reserve which relates to the financial asset, and is
effectively realised, is recognised in the net result. Where a revalued financial asset is impaired, that portion of the
reserve which relates to that financial asset is recognised in the net result.

Note 17: Equity (Continued)

Consolidated
2016
$'000
Restricted Specific Purpose Surplus
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period
Transfer to and from Restricted Specific Purpose Surplus
Balance at the end of the reporting period

33,643
5,734
39,377

29,291
4,352
33,643

Total Surpluses

371,759

336,376

(b) Contributed Capital
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period
Transfers to Contributed Capital
Balance at the end of the reporting period

358,751
13,009
371,760

304,943
53,808
358,751

(c) Accumulated Surpluses/(Deficits)
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period
Net Result for the Year
Transfers to and from Surplus
Other - VCCC
Balance at the end of the reporting period

(160,596)
(26,188)
(5,734)
(15)
(192,533)

(127,979)
(28,247)
(4,352)
(18)
(160,596)

550,986

534,531

Total Equity at end of financial year
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$'000
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Note
18:18:
Reconciliation
of net resultof
fornet
the year
to netfor
cashthe
inflow/(outflow)
fromcash
operating activities
Note
Reconciliation
result
year to net

inflow/(outflow) from operating activities
Consolidated
2016
$'000
(26,188)

Consolidated
2015
$'000
(28,247)

Non-cash movements:
Depreciation & Amortisation
Impairment of Financial Assets
Provision for Doubtful Debts
DHHS Loan discount
Assets Provided Free of Charge

48,574
856
21
6,027

48,091
392
(8)
94
-

Movements included in investing and financing activities
Net (Gain)/Loss from Sale of Plant and Equipment
Net (Gain)/Loss from Sale of Investments

130
(1,189)

(2,319)
-

(12,234)
(7,981)
9,247
15,180
(40)

8,051
381
(21,757)
10,314
601

32,403

15,593

Net Result for the Year

Movements in assets and liabilities:
Change in Operating Assets & Liabilities
(Increase)/Decrease in Receivables
(Increase)/Decrease in Prepayments
Increase/(Decrease) in Payables
Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions
Change in Inventories
NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
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Note 19: Financial instruments
Note 19: Financial instruments
(a) Financial risk management objectives and policies
Melbourne Health's principal financial instruments comprise of:
- Cash Assets
- Term Deposits
- Receivables (excluding statutory receivables)
- Payables (excluding statutory payables)
- Patient Trust Accounts
- Accommodation Bonds
Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are
recognised, with respect to each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 1 to the financial statements.
The main purpose in holding financial instruments is to prudentially manage Melbourne Health's financial risks within the government policy parameters.

Categorisation of financial instruments
Contractual
financial assets Contractual
loans and
financial assets receivables
available for sale
2016
Contractual Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables
- Trade Debtors
- Other Receivables
Other Financial Assets
- Shares in Other Entities
Total Financial Assets (i)
Financial Liabilities
Payables
Borrowings
Other Financial Liabilities
- Accommodation Bonds
- Patient Trust Accounts
Total Financial Liabilities (ii)
2015
Contractual Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables
- Trade Debtors
- Other Receivables
Other Financial Assets
- Shares in Other Entities
- Hybrid Securities
Total Financial Assets (i)
Financial Liabilities
Payables
Borrowings
Other Financial Liabilities
- Accommodation Bonds
- Patient Trust Accounts
Total Financial Liabilities (ii)

Contractual
financial
liabilities at
amortised cost

Total

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

52,750

-

-

52,750

18,969
35,441

-

-

18,969
35,441

107,160

315
315

-

315
107,475

-

-

77,964
1,951

77,964
1,951

-

-

2,607
175
82,697

2,607
175
82,697

57,215

-

-

57,215

14,652
36,779

-

-

14,652
36,779

108,646

4,683
788
5,471

-

4,683
788
114,117

-

-

71,540
1,840

71,540
1,840

-

-

1,781
179
75,340

1,781
179
75,340

(i) The total amount of financial assets disclosed here excludes statutory receivables (i.e. GST input tax credit recoverable)
(ii) The total amount of financial liabilities disclosed here excludes statutory payables (i.e. Taxes payable)

(b) Net holding gain/(loss) on financial instruments by category
Net holding
gain/(loss)

Total interest
income /
(expense)

Impairment loss

Total

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

Cash and Cash Equivalents (i)
Available for Sale (i)
Total Financial Assets
Total Financial Liabilities
2015
Financial Assets

1,189
1,189
-

2,221
2,221
-

-

2,221
1,189
3,410
-

Cash and Cash Equivalents (i)
Available for Sale (i)
Total Financial Assets
Total Financial Liabilities

(68)
(68)
-

3,006
3,006
-

(392)
(392)
-

3,006
(460)
2,546
-

2016
Financial Assets

(i) For cash and cash equivalents, loans or receivables and available-for-sale financial assets, the net gain or loss is calculated by taking the movement in the fair value of the asset, interest revenue, plus or minus foreign
exchange gains or losses arising from revaluation of the financial assets, and minus any impairment recognised in the net result.
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Note 19: Financial instruments (continued)
Note 19: Financial instruments (continued)
(c) Credit Risk
Credit risk arises from the contractual financial assets of Melbourne Health, which comprise cash and deposits, non-statutory receivables and
available for sale contractual financial assets. Melbourne Health’s exposure to credit risk arises from the potential default of a counter party on
their contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Health Service. Credit risk is measured at fair value and is monitored on a regular
basis.
Credit risk associated with Melbourne Health’s contractual financial assets is minimal because the main debtor is the Victorian Government. For
debtors other than the Government, it is Melbourne Health’s policy to only deal with entities with high credit ratings of a minimum Triple-B rating
and to obtain sufficient collateral or credit enhancements, where appropriate.
In addition, Melbourne Health does not engage in hedging for its contractual financial assets and mainly obtains contractual financial assets that
are on fixed interest, except for cash assets, which are mainly cash at bank. As with the policy for debtors, Melbourne Health’s policy is to only
deal with banks with high credit ratings.
Provision of impairment for contractual financial assets is recognised when there is objective evidence that Melbourne Health will not be able to
collect a receivable. Objective evidence includes financial difficulties of the debtor, default payments, receivables which are more than 60 days
overdue, and changes in debtor credit ratings.
Except as otherwise detailed in the following table, the carrying amount of contractual financial assets recorded in the financial statements, net
of any allowances for losses, represents Melbourne Health’s maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any
collateral obtained.
Credit quality of contractual financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

2016
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Loans and Receivables (i)
- Trade Debtors
- Patient Fees
- Inter Hospital Debtors
- Accrued Revenue
Available for Sale
- Shares in Other Entities
Total Financial Assets
2015
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Loans and Receivables (i)
- Trade Debtors
- Patient Fees
- Inter Hospital Debtors
- Accrued Revenue
Available for Sale
- Shares in Other Entities
- Hybrid Securities
Total Financial Assets

Financial
institutions
(AAA to Acredit rating)

Government
agencies
(AAA credit
rating)

Government
agencies
(BBB credit
rating)

Other
(min BBB to
B-credit
rating)

Total

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

10,151

42,599

-

-

52,750

-

7,154
14,246
-

-

11,815
12,608
8,587

18,969
12,608
14,246
8,587

10,151

63,999

-

315
33,325

315
107,475

15,239

41,976

-

-

57,215

-

7,048
9,358
-

-

7,604
9,679
17,742

14,652
9,679
9,358
17,742

3,895
582
19,716

58,382

-Notes to and
788
Forming 4,683
Part of the Financial Statements
206
788
36,019
114,117

(i) The total amounts disclosed here exclude statutory amounts (e.g. amounts owing from Victorian Government and GST input tax credit recoverable).

(c) Credit risk (continued)

Ageing analysis of Financial Asset as at 30 June
Consolidated Not Past Due
Carrying
and Not
Amount
Impaired
2016

$'000

$'000

Less than 1
Month

Past Due But Not Impaired
1-3 Months 3 months 1 Year

$'000

$'000

$'000

1-5 Years

Impaired
Financial
Assets

$'000

$'000

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Loans and Receivables (i)
- Trade Debtors
- Patient Fees
- Inter Hospital Debtors
Other Accrued Revenue
Available for Sale
- Shares in Other Entities
Total Financial Assets
2015
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Loans and Receivables (i)
- Trade Debtors
- Patient Fees
- Inter Hospital Debtors
Other Accrued Revenue
Available for Sale
- Shares in Other Entities
- Hybrid Securities
- Investment in VCCC
Total Financial Assets

52,750

52,750

-

-

-

-

18,969
12,608
14,246
8,587

15,371
6,579
12,319
8,587

2,408
1,994
1,927
-

539
1,870
-

651
2,165
-

-

-

315

315

-

-

-

-

-

107,475

95,921

6,329

2,409

2,816

-

-

57,215

57,215

-

-

-

-

-

14,652
9,679
9,358
17,742

10,966
4,428
8,085
17,742

2,237
2,037
1,273
-

568
1,762
-

881
1,452
-

-

-

4,683
788
-

4,683
788
-

-

-

-

-

-

114,117

103,907

5,547

2,330

2,333

-

-

(i) Ageing analysis of financial assets excludes the types of statutory financial assets (i.e GST input tax credit).
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Note 19: Financial instruments (continued)

Note 19: Financial instruments (continued)
(d) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that Melbourne Health would be unable to meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due. Melbourne Health operates under the Government's fair payments policy of settling financial
obligations within 30 days and in the event of a dispute, making payments within 30 days from the date of
resolution.
Melbourne Health’s maximum exposure to liquidity risk is the carrying amounts of financial liabilities as
disclosed on the balance sheet. Melbourne Health manages its liquidity risk via daily, weekly, monthly and
annual cash flow forecasts.
The following table discloses the contractual maturity analysis for Melbourne Health's financial liabilities. For
interest rates applicable to each class of liability refer to individual notes to the financial statements.
Maturity analysis of Financial Liabilities as at 30 June

2016
Financial Liabilities
At amortised cost
Payables
Borrowings
Other Financial Liabilities (i)
- Accommodation Bonds
- Patient Trusts
Total Financial Liabilities

Carrying
Amount
$'000

Maturity Dates
Less than 1-3 Months 3 months - 1-5 Years
Contractual 1 Month
1 Year
Cash Flows
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000

77,964
1,951

77,964
1,951

58,669
-

18,406
-

889
-

1,951

2,607
175

2,607
175

479
175

345
-

782
-

1,001
-

82,697

82,697

59,323

18,751

1,671

2,952

71,540
1,840

71,540
1,840

54,544
-

15,864
-

1,132
-

1,840

1,781
179

1,781
179

179

200
-

700
-

881
-

75,340

75,340

54,723

16,064

1,832

2,721

2015
Financial Liabilities
At amortised cost
Payables
Borrowings
Other Financial Liabilities (i)
- Accommodation Bonds
- Patient Trusts
Total Financial Liabilities

(i) Ageing analysis of financial liabilities excludes the types of statutory financial liabilities (i.e GST payable)
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Note 19: Financial instruments (continued)

Note 19: Financial instruments (continued)
(e) Market Risk
Melbourne Health's exposures to market risk are primarily through interest rate risk with only insignificant exposure to
foreign currency and other price risks. Objectives, policies and processes used to manage each of these risks are
disclosed in the paragraph below.
Currency Risk
Melbourne Health is exposed to insignificant foreign currency risk through its payables relating to purchases of
supplies and consumables from overseas. This is because of a limited amount of purchases denominated in foreign
currencies and a short timeframe between commitment and settlement.
Interest Rate Risk
Exposure to interest rate risk might arise primarily through Melbourne Health's interest bearing liabilities. Minimisation
of risk is achieved by mainly undertaking fixed rate or non-interest bearing financial instruments. For financial
liabilities, Melbourne Health mainly undertake financial liabilities with relatively even maturity profiles.
Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates.
Melbourne Health has minimal exposure to cash flow interest rate risks through its cash, deposits and term deposits
that are at floating rate.
Melbourne Health manages this risk by mainly undertaking fixed rate or non-interest bearing financial instruments with
relatively even maturity profiles, with only insignificant amounts of financial instruments at floating rate. Management
has concluded for cash at bank, as financial assets that can be left at floating rate without necessarily exposing
Melbourne Health to significant bad risk, management monitors movement in interest rates on a daily basis.
Interest rate exposure of financial assets and liabilities as at 30 June
Weighted
Carrying
Interest Rate Exposure
Average
Amount
Fixed
Variable
NonEffective
Interest
Interest
Interest
Interest
Rate
Rate
Bearing
2016
Rate (%)
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
2.11
52,750
32,350
20,399
Loans and Receivables (i)
- Trade Debtors
18,969
18,969
- Patient Fees
12,608
12,608
- Inter Hospital Debtors
14,246
14,246
Other Accrued Revenue
8,587
8,587
Available for Sale
- Shares in Other Entities
315
315
107,475
32,350
20,399
54,725
Financial Liabilities
At amortised cost
Payables
77,964
77,964
Borrowings
1,951
1,951
Other Financial Liabilities (i)
- Accommodation Bonds
2,607
2,607
- Patient Trusts
175
175
82,697
2,782
79,915
2015
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
2.67
57,215
17,818
39,397
Loans and Receivables (i)
- Trade Debtors
14,652
14,652
- Patient Fees
9,679
9,679
- Inter Hospital Debtors
9,358
9,358
Other Accrued Revenue
17,742
17,742
Available for Sale
- Shares in Other Entities
4,683
4,683
- Hybrid Securities
788
788
114,117
17,818
39,397
56,902
Financial Liabilities
At amortised cost
Payables
71,540
71,540
Borrowings
1,840
1,840
Other Financial Liabilities (i)
- Accommodation Bonds
1,781
1,781
- Patient Trusts
179
179
75,340
1,960
73,380
(i) The carrying amount excludes types of statutory financial assets and liabilities (i.e. GST input tax credit and GST payable).
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Note 19: Financial instruments (continued)
Note 19: Financial instruments (continued)
(e) Market risk (continued)
Sensitivity Disclosure Analysis
Taking into account past performance, future expectations, economic forecasts and management's knowledge and experience of the
financial markets, Melbourne Health believes the following movements are 'reasonably possible' over the next 12 months (Base rates
are sourced from the Reserve Bank of Australia):
- A shift of +0.25% and -0.25% in market interest rates (AUD) from year-end rates of 1.70%;
The following table discloses the impact on net operating result and equity for each category of financial instrument held by Melbourne
Health at year end as presented to key management personnel, if changes in the relevant risk occur.
Carrying
Amount
2016
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Loans and Receivables (i)
- Trade Debtors
- Patient Fees
- Inter Hospital Debtors
Other Accrued Revenue
Available for Sale
- Shares in Other Entities

$'000

Financial Liabilities
At amortised cost
Payables
Borrowings
Other Financial Liabilities (i)
- Accommodation Bonds
- Patient Trusts

(132)

(132)

132

132

-

-

-

-

18,969
12,608
14,246
8,587

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

315

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

77,964
1,951

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,607
175

(132)

(132)

132

132

-

-

-

-

$'000

Financial Liabilities
At amortised cost
Payables
Borrowings
Other Financial Liabilities (i)
- Accommodation Bonds
- Patient Trusts

Other Price Risk
0.00%
0.00%
Profit
Equity
Profit
Equity
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000

52,750

Carrying
Amount

2015
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Loans and Receivables (i)
- Trade Debtors
- Patient Fees
- Inter Hospital Debtors
Other Accrued Revenue
Available for Sale
- Shares in Other Entities
- Hybrid Securities

Interest Rate Risk
-0.25%
+0.25%
Profit
Equity
Profit
Equity
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000

Interest Rate Risk
-0.50%
+0.50%
Profit
Equity
Profit
Equity
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000

Other Price Risk
-13.58%
13.58%
Profit
Equity
Profit
Equity
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000

57,215

(286)

(286)

286

286

-

-

-

-

14,652
9,679
9,358
17,742

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

4,683
788

-

-

-

-

(636)
(107)

(636)
(107)

636
107

636
107

71,540
1,840

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,781
179

(286)

(286)

286

286

(743)

(743)

743

743

(i) The carrying amount excludes types of statutory financial assets and liabilities (i.e. GST input tax credit and GST payable).
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Note 19: Financial instruments (continued)
Note 19: Financial instruments (continued)
(f) Fair Value
The fair values and net fair values of financial instrument assets and liabilities are determined as follows:
• Level 1 - the fair value of financial instrument with standard terms and conditions and traded in active liquid
markets are determined with reference to quoted market prices;
• Level 2 - the fair value is determined using inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the
financial asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
• Level 3 - the fair value is determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis using unobservable market inputs.
Melbourne Health considers that the carrying amount of financial instrument assets and liabilities recorded in
the financial statements to be a fair approximation of their fair values because of the short-term nature of the
financial instruments and the expectation that they will be paid in full.
The following table shows that the fair values of most of the contractual financial assets and liabilities are the
same as the carrying amounts.
Comparison between carrying amount and fair value
Consolidated
Carrying
Amount

Fair value

Consolidated
Carrying
Amount

Fair value

2016
$'000

2016
$'000

2015
$'000

2015
$'000

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Loans and Receivables (i)
- Trade Debtors
- Patient Debtors
- Inter Hospital Debtors
Other Accrued Revenue
Available for Sale
- Shares in Other Entities
- Hybrid Securities
Total Financial Assets

52,750

52,750

57,215

57,215

18,969
12,608
14,246
8,587

18,969
12,608
14,246
8,587

14,652
9,679
9,358
17,742

14,652
9,679
9,358
17,742

315
107,475

315
107,475

4,683
788
114,117

4,683
788
114,117

77,964
1,951

77,964
1,951

71,540
1,840

71,540
1,840

2,607
175
82,697

2,607
175
82,697

1,781
179
75,340

1,781
179
75,340

Financial Liabilities
At amortised cost
Payables
Borrowings
Other Financial Liabilities (i)
- Accommodation Bonds
- Patient Trusts
Total Financial Liabilities

(i) The carrying amount excludes types of statutory financial assets and liabilities (i.e. GST input tax credit and GST payable).

Financial assets measured at fair value
Carrying
Amount as at
30 June
2016
Financial assets at fair value through
profit & loss
Available for Sale Securities
- Shares
Total Financial Assets

Level 1
$'000

$'000

2015
Financial assets at fair value through
profit & loss
- Shares
- Hybrid Securities
Total Financial Assets

Fair value measurement at end of reporting
period using:
Level 2
$'000

Level 3
$'000

315
315

-

315
315

-

4,683
788
5,471

4,683
788
5,471

-

-

There have been no transfers between levels during the period.
The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
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Note 20: Commitments for expenditure

Note 20: Commitments for expenditure

a) Commitments other than public private partnerships
Consolidated
2016
$'000

Consolidated
2015
$'000

Payable:
Land and Buildings
Plant and Equipment
Intangible Assets
Total capital expenditure commitments

8,664
17,081
10,000
35,745

17,953
13,290
6,493
37,736

Other Expenditure Commitments
Payable:
Contracted Services
Total other expenditure commitments

35,869
35,869

43,638
43,638

Lease Commitments
Commitments in relation to leases contracted for at the reporting
date:
Operating Leases
Total lease commitments

117,348
117,348

101,453
101,453

Operating Leases
Non-cancellable
Sub Total
Total lease commitments

117,348
117,348
117,348

101,453
101,453
101,453

188,962

182,827

Capital Expenditure Commitments

Total Commitments (inclusive of GST) other than public
private partnerships

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

All amounts shown in the commitments note are nominal amounts inclusive of GST.

Note 20: Commitments for expenditure (continued)
(b) Commitments payable

2016
$'000
Capital expenditure commitments payable
Less than 1 year
Longer than 1 year but not longer than 5 years
Total capital expenditure commitments
Other expenditure commitments payable
Less than 1 year
Longer than 1 year but not longer than 5 years
5 years or more
Total other expenditure commitments
Lease commitments payable
Less than 1 year
Longer than 1 year but not longer than 5 years
5 years or more
Total lease commitments
Total commitments (inclusive of GST)
Less GST recoverable from the Australian Tax Office
Total commitments (exclusive of GST)

2015
$'000

33,746
1,999
35,745

36,869
867
37,736

14,105
21,478
286
35,869

17,945
25,693
43,638

25,650
37,776
53,921
117,347
188,961
(17,178)
171,783

18,996
28,271
54,186
101,453
182,827
(16,621)
166,206

All amounts shown in the commitments note are nominal amounts.

Note 21: Contingent assets and contingent liabilities
Non-Quantifiable
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The following major public health sector Enterprise Agreements which expired during the 2015-16 financial
year are currently under negotiation:
• Health Professionals, Allied Services Staff, Managers and Administrative Officers;
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Note 21: Contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Note 21: Contingent assets and contingent liabilities
Non-Quantifiable
The following major public health sector Enterprise Agreements which expired during the 2015-16 financial
year are currently under negotiation:
• Health Professionals, Allied Services Staff, Managers and Administrative Officers;
• Nurses working in Mental Health; and
• Public Mental Health Employees.
While the full outcome of the Enterprise Agreements is unknown, Melbourne Health has estimated the liability
to be approximately $3 million.
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Acquisition of Property, Plant and
Equipment and Intangible Assets
Depreciation & Amortisation
Expense
49,734
(30,677)

31,641

(174,338)
(174,338)

515,316
515,316

(20,178)

36,153

(194,514)
(194,514)

553,426
553,426

OTHER INFORMATION
Segment Assets
Total Assets

Segment Liabilities
Total Liabilities

(18,751)

(20,178)

(650,857)
(650,857)

(699,643)
(699,643)

(18,751)

630,679
630,679

2015
$'000

680,892
680,892

Interest Income
Net Result for Year

Net Result from ordinary activities

REVENUE
External Segment Revenue
Total Revenue
EXPENSES
External Segment Expenses
Total Expenses

2016
$'000

Acute

Note 22: Operating segments

14,723

16,822

(90,509)
(90,509)

257,513
257,513

(8,725)

(8,725)

(325,548)
(325,548)

316,823
316,823

2016
$'000

(15,149)

24,560

(86,090)
(86,090)

254,467
254,467

(9,964)

(9,964)

(321,399)
(321,399)

311,435
311,435

2015
$'000

Mental Health

889

1,016

(5,465)
(5,465)

15,548
15,548

(527)

(527)

(19,656)
(19,656)

19,129
19,129

2016
$'000

RAC

(1,048)

1,700

(5,958)
(5,958)

17,611
17,611

(690)

(690)

(22,243)
(22,243)

21,553
21,553

2015
$'000

1,321

1,510

(8,122)
(8,122)

23,109
23,109

2,598
1,815

(783)

(29,214)
(29,214)

28,431
28,431

2016
$'000

Other

(1,217)

1,973

(6,915)
(6,915)

20,438
20,438

3,385
2,585

(800)

(25,814)
(25,814)

25,014
25,014

2015
$'000

48,574

55,501

(298,610)
(298,610)

849,596
849,596

2,598
(26,188)

(28,786)

(1,074,061)
(1,074,061)

1,045,275
1,045,275

2016
$'000

(48,091)

77,967

(273,301)
(273,301)

807,832
807,832

3,385
(28,247)

(31,632)

(1,020,313)
(1,020,313)

988,681
988,681

2015
$'000

Consolidated
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Note 22: Operating segments

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 22a: Operating segments (continued)
The major products/services from which the
above segments derive revenue are:
Acute
Admitted Patient Services (Admitted Patients)
comprises all recurrent health revenue/
expenditure on admitted patient services,
where services are delivered in:
• Public hospitals
• Free standing day hospital facilities
• Palliative care facilities
• Rehabilitation facilities
• A lcohol and drug treatment units
• Hospitals specialising in dental services,
hearing and ophthalmic aids
This category also includes recurrent health
revenue/expenditure on admitted patient
services where service delivery is contracted to
private hospitals or treatment facilities as well
as recurrent funds for scope patient transport,
training, research and telemedicine where it
relates to admitted patient services.
Outpatient Services (Outpatients) comprises all
recurrent health revenue/expenditure on public
hospital type outpatient services, where services
are delivered in:
• Public hospital outpatient clinics
• Free standing day hospital facilities
• Rehabilitation facilities
• A lcohol and drug treatment units

Off Campus, Ambulatory Services (Ambulatory)
comprises all recurrent health revenue/
expenditure on public hospital type services
provided under the following agreements:

Other
Other comprises revenue/expenditure for
services not separately classified above,
including:

• Services that are provided or received by
hospitals (or area health services) but are
delivered/received outside a hospital campus.

• 
Aged Care including Home and Community
Care (HACC) programs, Allied Health,
Aged Care Assessment and support services

• Services which have moved from a hospital to
a community setting since June 1998.

• 
Public Health Services including Laboratory
testing, Blood Borne Viruses/Sexually
Transmitted Infections clinical services, Koori
Health liaison officers, immunisation and
screening services

• Services which fall within the agreed scope of
inclusions under the new system, which have
never been delivered within hospitals i.e. in
rural/remote regions.
This category includes recurrent health revenue/
expenditure for scope patient transport, training,
research and telemedicine where it relates to offcampus, ambulatory services.
Mental Health
Mental Health Services (Mental Health)
comprises all recurrent health revenue/
expenditure on specialised mental health
services (child and adolescent, general and
adult, community and forensic) managed
or funded by the state or territory health
administrations and includes:

• 
Disability Services including aids and
equipment and flexible support packages
to people with a disability
• 
Community Care programs including sexual
assault support, early parenting services,
parenting assessment and skills development,
and various support services
• 
Health and Community Initiatives
• 
Clinical support, infrastructure and corporate

• Admitted patient services (including
forensic mental health)

• 
Business Units; Diagnostics laboratory and
medical imaging services

• Outpatient services

Geographical Segment
Melbourne Health operates predominantly
in Melbourne, Victoria. Effectively all of
revenue, net surplus from ordinary activities
and segment assets relate to operations in
Melbourne, Victoria.

• Emergency department services (where it is
possible to separate emergency department
mental health services)

• Outpatient clinics specialising in ophthalmic
aids or palliative care

• Community-based services

This category includes recurrent health revenue/
expenditure for scope patient transport, training,
research and telemedicine where it relates to
outpatient services.

This category includes recurrent health
expenditure for scope patient transport, training,
research and telemedicine where it relates to
mental health services.

Emergency Department Services (EDS)
comprises all recurrent health revenue/
expenditure on emergency department
services that are available free of charge to
public patients.

• 
Drugs Services including drug withdrawal,
counselling and the needle and syringe
program

• Residential and ambulatory services

RAC
• Residential Aged Care comprises of residential
high care and low care facilities

This category includes recurrent health
expenditure/revenue for scope patient transport,
training, research and telemedicine where it
relates to emergency department services.
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Note 23a: Responsible persons disclosures

Note 23a: Responsible persons disclosures
In accordance with the Ministerial Directions issued by the Minister for Finance under the Financial Management Act 1994 , the following disclosures are
made regarding responsible persons for the reporting period.
Period
Responsible Ministers:
The Honourable Jill Hennessy, Minister for Health, Minister for
Ambulance Services
The Honourable Martin Foley, Minister for Housing, Disability and
Ageing, Minister for Mental Health

1/07/2015 - 30/06/2016
1/07/2015 - 30/06/2016

Governing Board
Prof Stephen Smith
Mrs Jane Bell

1/07/2015 - 31/08/2015

Mr David Cartwright

1/07/2015 - 30/06/2016

Mr Robert Doyle

1/07/2015 - 30/06/2016

1/07/2015 - 30/06/2016

Mr Michael Gorton AM

1/07/2015 - 30/06/2016

Ms Penelope Hutchinson

1/11/2015 - 30/06/2016

Ms Angela Jackson
Mr William Mountford
Mr Desmond Pearson AO

1/09/2015 - 30/06/2016
1/07/2015 - 30/06/2016
1/07/2015 - 30/06/2016

Accountable Officers
Dr Gareth Goodier

1/07/2015 - 30/06/2016

Remuneration of Responsible Persons
The number of Responsible Persons are shown in their relevant income bands;
Consolidated
Income Band
$0 - $9,999
$20,000 - $29,999
$30,000 - $39,999
$70,000 - $79,999
$510,000 - $519,999
$530,000 - $539,999
Total Numbers
Total remuneration received or due and receivable by Responsible Persons from the reporting entity
amounted to:
Amounts relating to Responsible Ministers are reported in the financial statements of the Department of Premier
and Cabinet. For information regarding related party transactions of ministers, the register of members' interests
is publicly available from: www.parliament.vic.gov.au/publications/register of interests

2016
No.

2015
No.
1
2
5
1
1
10

1
7
1
1
10

$839,812

$852,863

Other Transactions of Responsible Persons and their Related Parties
$'000
R. Doyle is an exofficio member of the Cancer Council of Victoria which provide biospecimens through the
Victorian Cancer Biobank on normal commercial terms and conditions.
M. Gorton is a Principal at Russell Kennedy Partners which provide legal services on normal commercial terms
and conditions.
R. Doyle is a Principal at The Nous Group which provides management consulting services.
J. Bell is a Director of the Hudson Institute of Medical Research which is specialised in medical research
towards prevention, diagnosis and treatments.
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$'000
-
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5

13

163

-
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-
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Notes toNOTES
and Forming
Part of the Financial Statements

Note 23b: Executive officer disclosures

Note 23b: Executive officer disclosures
Executive Officers' Remuneration
The numbers of executive officers, other than Ministers and Accountable Officers, and their total remuneration during the
reporting period are shown in the first two columns in the table below in their relevant income bands. The base
remuneration of executive officers is shown in the third and fourth columns. Base remuneration is exclusive of bonus
payments, long-service leave payments, redundancy payments and retirement benefits.

$100,000 - $109,999
$110,000 - $119,999
$130,000 - $139,999
$140,000 - $149,999
$170,000 - $179,999
$180,000 - $189,999
$200,000 - $209,999
$210,000 - $219,999
$230,000 - $239,999
$240,000 - $249,999
$250,000 - $259,999
$260,000 - $269,999
$270,000 - $279,999
$320,000 - $329,999
$330,000 - $339,999
$340,000 - $349,999
$350,000 - $359,999
$370,000 - $379,999
$380,000 - $389,999
$400,000 - $409,999
$410,000 - $419,999
$430,000 - $439,999
Total
Total annualised employee equivalents (AEE) (i)
Total Remuneration

CONSOLIDATED
Total Remuneration
Base Remuneration
2016
2015
2016
2015
No.
No.
No.
No.
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
2
2
1
1
1
2
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
2
1
1
1
1
2
1
1
1
11
10
11
10
9
9
8
9
3,191,528 $ 3,154,408
2,598,434 $ 2,832,730

(i) Annualised employee equivalent is based on paid working hours of 38 ordinary hours per week over the 52 weeks for a reporting period.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note
Remuneration
of
Note
24.24.
Remuneration
of auditors
Victorian
Auditor-General's
Office

auditors

2016
$'000

Audit or review of financial statement
2016
$'000
Victorian Auditor-General's Office
Audit or review of financial statement

2015
$'000
225
225

2015
$'000

225
225

221
221

221
221

Note 25. Ex-gratia expenses

Note 25. Ex-gratia expenses
Melbourne Health has made the following ex gratia expenses:

2016
$'000

Note 25. Ex-gratia expenses

Redress payment
Redundancy payment
Total ex-gratia expenses
Melbourne Health has made the following ex gratia expenses:

2016
$'000

2015
$'000
13
13

100
2015 100
$'000

Includes ex-gratia for both individual items and in aggregate that are greater than or equal to $5,000.
Redress payment
100
Redundancy payment
13
Total ex-gratia expenses
13
100
Includes ex-gratia for both individual items and in aggregate that are greater than or equal to $5,000.
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Note 26: Jointly controlled operations and assets

Note 26: Jointly controlled operations and assets
Name of Entity

Principal Activity

Victorian Comprehensive Cancer Centre Limited

Cancer Research & Treatment

Ownership Interest
2015
2016
%
%
10

11.11

2016
$'000

2015
$'000

Melbourne Health's interest in assets employed in the above jointly controlled operations
and assets is detailed below. The amounts are included in the financial statements and
consolidated financial statements under their respective asset categories:

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables
Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets

256
4
4
264

241
5
4
250

1
4
5
269

4
4
254

Current Liabilities
Payables
Income in Advance
Employee Benefits and Related On-Costs
Total Current Liabilities

18
35
43
96

51
38
89

Non-Current Liabilities
Employee Benefits and Related On-Costs
Total Non-Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

5
5
101
168

5
5
94
160

EQUITY
Accumulated Surpluses/(Deficits)
TOTAL EQUITY

168
168

160
160

Non Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Total Non Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

Melbourne Health's interest in revenues and expenses resulting from jointly controlled
operations and assets is detailed below:

Revenues
Grants
Other - Interest
Other - Revenue
Total Revenue
Expenses
Employee Benefits
Depreciation
Research
Supplies and Services
Total Expenses
Profit

2016
$'000

2015
$'000

292
5
20
317

340
6
10
356

(153)
(1)
(24)
(115)
(293)
24

(151)
(1)
(72)
(101)
(325)
31
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Note 27: Events occurring after the balance sheet date
No events have occurred since reporting date and
date of certification of this report which will have a
material effect on the information contained in the
financial report.

Note 28: Economic dependency
The financial performance and position of Melbourne
Health has declined since the prior year, with the
health service reporting a deficit net result before
capital and specific items of $2.8m (2015: deficit
$1.5m), a net current asset position of $116m (2015:
$104m), resulting in a current asset ratio of 0.56 (2015:
0.58) and a cash outflow from operations of $1,039m
(2015: $994m).
As a result of the financial performance and position,
Melbourne Health has obtained a letter of support
from the State Government and in particular, the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS),
confirming that the department will continue to
provide Melbourne Health adequate cash flow to meet
its current and future obligations up to 30 September
2017. A letter was also obtained for the previous
financial year.
On that basis, the financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.
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